
 
 
 
 
 
 

Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

 
 

February 17, 2021 



Six Mile Creek 
 Community Development District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

Phone: 904-940-5850 - Fax: 904-940-5899 
February 12, 2021 
 
Board of Supervisors  
Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District 
 
Dear Board Members: 
 
The Board of Supervisors Meeting of the Six Mile Creek Community Development 
District will be held Wednesday, February 17, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. at the Renaissance 
World Golf Village Resort, 500 South Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, Florida 32092.  
Following is the advance agenda for the meeting: 
 
 
 I. Roll Call 
 II. Audience Comments 
 III. Approval of Minutes of the December 9, 2020 Meeting 
 IV. Matters Related to Series 2021 Bonds 
  A. Consideration of Supplemental Assessment Resolution 2021-07 
   1. Engineer’s Report Dated January 19, 2021 
   2. 2021 Assessment Report Dated February 10, 2021 
 V. Construction Matters 
  A. Consideration of Phase 9 Construction Proposals 
 VI. Ratification of Agreement with Carlton Construction, Inc. for Amenity Center 

and Hardscape and Landscape Features 
 VII. Ratification of Agreement with Envera for Security Cameras Purchase, 

Installation and Monitoring 
 VIII. Ratification of Environmental Services, Inc. Contract Change Order 
 IX. Consideration of Sign Proposal with Signtalk Graphix 
 X. Ratification of Agreement with ECS Florida, LLC for Geotechnical Engineering 

Services 
 XI. Consideration of Dog Park Policies 
 XII. Appointment of Audit Committee 
 XIII. Other Business 
 XIV. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney - E-Verify Memo and Memorandum of Understanding 
  B. Engineer  
   1. Consideration of Requisitions 60-80 (2020 Bond Series) 
   2. Consideration of Requisitions 31-34 (2017 NW Parcel Subaccount 

(Phase 6) 



 
   3. Consideration of Requisitions Phase 9 Bond Series – Developer 

Funded 
   4. Ratification of Change Order No. 1 – Trailmark Phase 6 
  C. Manager  
  D. Operations / Amenity Manager  
   1. Report 
   2. Proposals for Patio Lounge Chairs 
   3. VakPak Quarterly Report 
 XV. Supervisor’s Requests and Audience Comments 
 XVI. Financial Reports 
  A. Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2020 and Statement of Revenues and 

Expenses for the Period Ending December 31, 2020 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
  C. Check Register 
XVII. Next Scheduled Meeting – April 21, 2021 @ 2:00 p.m.  
XVIII. Adjournment 
 
Enclosed for your review is a copy of the minutes from the December 9, 2020 meeting.  
 
The fourth order of business is matters related to Series 2021 Bonds.  Enclosed for your 
review is a copy of the items as outlined above. 
 
The fifth order of business is constriction matters.  Enclosed is a copy of the ranking 
sheet and a copy of the proposals have been emailed to you. 
 
The sixth order of busines is ratification of agreement with Carlton Constriction, which is 
enclosed for your review. 
 
The seventh order of business is ratification of agreement with Envera, which will be sent 
under separate cover. 
 
The eighth order of business is ratification of agreement with ESI, which is enclosed for 
your review. 
 
The ninth order of business is consideration of sign proposal, which is enclosed for your 
review. 
 
The tenth order of business is ratification of agreement with ECS, which is enclosed for 
your review. 
 
The eleventh order of business is consideration of Dog Park Policies, which are enclosed 
for your review. 
 
Enclosed under the Attorney’s report is the MOU. 
 
Enclosed under the Engineer’s report are the items as outlined above.   



 
Enclosed under the Operations & Amenities report are the items as outlined above. 
 
Enclosed is a copy of the financial reports as outlined above. 
 
The balance of the agenda is routine in nature, and any additional support material will be 
presented and discussed at the meeting.  I look forward to seeing you at the meeting and 
in the meantime if you have any questions, please contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
James Oliver 
James Oliver 
District Manager 
 
cc:  Wes Haber Scott Wild   



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 



Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

 
Wednesday  Renaissance World Golf Village Resort  
February 17, 2021 500 South Legacy Trail  
2:00 p.m. St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
 www.SixMileCreekCDD.com  
  
 
 I. Roll Call 
 
 II. Audience Comments 
 
 III. Approval of Minutes of the December 9, 2020 Meeting 
 
 IV. Matters Related to Series 2021 Bonds 
  A. Consideration of Supplemental Assessment Resolution 2021-07 
   1. Engineer’s Report Dated January 19, 2021 
 
   2. 2021 Assessment Report Dated February 10, 2021 
 
 V. Construction Matters 
  A. Consideration of Phase 9 Construction Proposals 
 
 VI. Ratification of Agreement with Carlton Construction, Inc. for Amenity Center and 

Hardscape and Landscape Features 
 
 VII. Ratification of Agreement with Envera for Security Cameras Purchase, Installation and 

Monitoring 
 
 VIII. Ratification of Environmental Services, Inc. Contract Change Order 
 
 IX. Consideration of Sign Proposal with Signtalk Graphix 
 
 X. Ratification of Agreement with ECS Florida, LLC for Geotechnical Engineering 

Services 
 
 XI. Consideration of Dog Park Policies 
 
 XII. Appointment of Audit Committee 
 
 XIII. Other Business 
 
 XIV. Staff Reports 
  A. Attorney - E-Verify Memo and Memorandum of Understanding 



   
  B. Engineer  
   1. Consideration of Requisitions 60-80 (2020 Bond Series) 
 
   2. Consideration of Requisitions 31-34 (2017 NW Parcel Subaccount (Phase 6) 
 
   3. Consideration of Requisitions Phase 9 Bond Series – Developer Funded 
 
   4. Ratification of Change Order No. 1 – Trailmark Phase 6 
 
  C. Manager  
 
  D. Operations / Amenity Manager  
   1. Report 
 
   2. Proposals for Patio Lounge Chairs 
 
   3. VakPak Quarterly Report 
 
 XV. Supervisor’s Requests and Audience Comments 
 
 XVI. Financial Reports 
  A. Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2020 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses 

for the Period Ending December 31, 2020 
 
  B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 
 
  C. Check Register 
 
XVII. Next Scheduled Meeting – April 21, 2021 @ 2:00 p.m.  
 
XVIII. Adjournment 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MINUTES 
 



  
MINUTES OF MEETING 

SIX MILE CREEK  
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 

 The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek Community 

Development District was held on Wednesday, December 9, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. at the Renaissance 

World Golf Village Resort, 500 South Legacy Trail, St. Augustine, Florida. 

 

 Present and constituting a quorum were: 
 
  Gregg Kern Chairman 
  Mike Taylor Vice Chairman 
  Wendy Hartley Supervisor 
  Darren Glynn Supervisor 
   
 Also present were: 
 
 Jim Oliver District Manager 
 Wes Haber by phone District Counsel   
 Zach Brecht District Engineer   
 Alex Boyer Operations Manager 
 Deputy Robert Nelson SJSO  
 
 
 The following is a summary of the actions taken at the December 9, 2020 Six Mile Creek 

Community Development District’s Regular Board of Supervisor’s Meeting. 

 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Roll Call 

 Mr. Oliver called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. Four Supervisors were in attendance 

constituting a quorum.  

 
SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 

 Mr. Oliver explained the comment protocol for audience comments. There was a question 

on the agenda and about  the problems with the pool. Mr. Oliver explained this would be addressed 

later in the meeting in the Engineer’s section.  

 

  



December 9, 2020   Six Mile Creek CDD 

2 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Affidavit of Publication 

 Mr. Oliver noted that the affidavit of publication is dated November 22, 2020. 

 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Organizational Matters 
A. Oath of Office for Newly Elected Supervisors 

 Mr. Oliver introduced the new supervisors Wendy Hartley, Blake Weatherly, and Darren 

Glynn and administered the oath of office to them. New officer Blake Weatherly was not in 

attendance.  

 
B. General Information for New Supervisors 

 Mr. Oliver reviewed the Sunshine Law and the Public Records Law. He recommended 

keeping CDD records separate from personal records. He reviewed social/media and suggested 

that Board members refrain from posting any comments about CDD business. Wes Haber 

reviewed communication via texts, emails, or written exchange with Board members.  

 
C. Consideration of Resolution 2021-04, Canvassing and Certifying the Results of the 

Landowners Election 
 Mr. Oliver stated that landowners had 1 vote for every lot or acre owned this election cycle. 

Blake Weatherly was elected to a four-year term.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor seconded by Mr. Kern with all in favor, 
Resolution 2021-04 Canvassing and Certifying the Results of the 
Landowners’ Election, was approved. 

 
D. Election of Officers Resolution 2021-05 

 Mr. Oliver stated that Gregg Kern serves as Chairman and Mike Taylor as Vice Chairman. 

The remainder of the Board serves as Assistant Secretaries. Members of the GMS office serve as 

Treasurer, Secretary, Assistant Secretaries, and Assistant Treasurers.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Ms. Hartley, with all in favor, 
Resolution 2021-05 Election of Officers with Gregg Kern as 
Chairman, Mike Taylor as Vice Chairman, and Wendy Hartley, 
Darren Glynn, and Blake Weatherly as Assistant Secretaries, was 
approved. 

 
 



December 9, 2020   Six Mile Creek CDD 

3 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Minutes of the October 21, 2020 
Meeting and November 5, 2020 Continued 
Meeting 

 Mr. Oliver asked if the Board had any comments, corrections, or changes to the minutes. 

The Board had no changes.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Taylor, with all in favor, 
the Minutes of the October 21, 2020 Meeting and November 5, 2020 
Continued Meeting, were approved. 

 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Acceptance of the Minutes of the November 
18, 2020 Landowners Meeting  

 Mr. Oliver asked if the Board had any comments, corrections, or changes to the minutes. 

The Board had no changes. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Taylor with all in favor, 
the Minutes of the November 18, 2020 Landowners’ Meeting, were 
approved. 

 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Public Hearing Regarding Series 2020 
 Assessments 

 Mr. Oliver asked for a motion to open the Public Hearing. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern seconded by Mr. Glynn, with all in favor, 
the motion to OPEN the Public meeting, was approved. 

  

 Mr. Haber explained that the CDD finances public infrastructure through the issuance of 

bonds, and today they were levying assessments in Assessment Area 3, Phases 1A and 1B. This 

area is not presently encumbered by debt assessments that are paid for by homeowners and there 

are no homes located within this area. The process will levy a lien on that property and in the near 

future the Board will issue a series of bonds that will fund all or a portion of the improvements to 

be constructed in that area. The documents the Board are considering today seek to levy the 

maximum amount of assessments that could be levied. The resolution included in the package 

includes an Engineer’s Report which includes a description of the improvements and cost. The 



December 9, 2020   Six Mile Creek CDD 

4 

second is the Assessment Methodology which details the number of homes anticipated to be 

constructed and the level of assessments.  

 Mr. Brecht reviewed the Engineer’s Report. Mr. Oliver reviewed the Assessment 

Methodology. Mr. Oliver asked for any other questions, and hearing none, from either the Board 

or members of the public, he asked to close the public hearing.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Taylor with all in favor, 
the motion to CLOSE the Public Hearing, was approved. 

 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2021-06, Supplemental Assessment Resolution  

 Mr. Haber noted that the resolution finds that these improvements and the issuance of 

bonds are in the best interest of the CDD. The estimated improvement and costs are outlined. The 

Landowner will be obligated to make true-up payments if necessary.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Taylor with all in favor, 
the Resolution 2021-06 Supplemental Assessment Resolution, was 
approved. 

 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Staff Reports 
A. Attorney 

 Mr. Haber noted for the new Board members that the Board had previously approved and 

filed a Boundary Amendment petition to add acreage to the CDD. Mr. Haber noted the petition 

had been approved by the state and they are currently waiting for sign-off from the county. The 

CDD Board will need to hold a public meeting to consider this Boundary Amendment. He would 

share specifics later.  

 

B. Engineer 
1. Ratification of Work Authorization No. 51 

 Mr. Brecht presented the ratification of work authorization No. 51. He noted this lays out 

all of the roads and plots for the remainder of the property with in the CDD. It is an hourly contract 

for up to $25,000. 

 



December 9, 2020   Six Mile Creek CDD 

5 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Kern, with all in favor, 
Work Authorization No. 51, was ratified. 

 

2. Consideration of Work Authorization No. 52 
 Mr. Brecht explained that this was for the 2021 general consulting services for District 

Engineering for $16,000. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Kern, with all in favor,  
Work Authorization No. 52, was approved.  

 

3. Consideration of Requisitions 45-55 (2020 Bond Series) 
 Mr. Brecht noted that the requisitions in the packet also included No. 56. These are related 

to the 2020 Bond Series. The amount is $51,180.60. This will cover work done by either the 

Engineer, the Landscape Architect, and fees associated with Hopping, Green and Sam’s for 

professional services, and others.  

 

4. Consideration of Requisitions 27-29 (2017 NW Parcel Subaccount (Phase 6)) 
 Mr. Brecht explained that this for Phase 6 with a total amount of $11,106.91 for work 

associated with the construction and oversight with the coordination of contractor.  

 

5. Consideration of Requisitions (Phase 9 Bond Series-Developer Funded) 
 Mr. Brecht explained that these were associated with the continued issuance of Phase 9. 

These are associated with design elements and getting ready for breaking ground and construction. 

It is for a total of $112,544.29.  A question on the second series on page 6. It was clarified this was 

for an hourly agreement.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor seconded by Mr. Kern with all in favor, 
the Requisitions 45-56 (2020 Bond Series), Requisitions 27-29 (2017 
NW Parcel Subaccount (Phase 6), and Requisitions (Phase 9 Bond 
Series-Developer Funded) , was approved. 

 
 

C. Manager’s Report 
 Mr. Oliver reviewed the Manager’s Report. He clarified a question regarding contracts and 

change control processes. Mr. Oliver noted the fee schedule was included.  



December 9, 2020   Six Mile Creek CDD 

6 

D. Operations/ Amenity Manager 
1. Report  

 Mr. Boyer reviewed the Security contracts for on-site security monitoring and the on-site 

guard. He discussed issues and problems that have occurred over the last several months and 

proposed the termination of the current contract with Giddens Security with a 30-day notice.  

 

2. Envera Proposal 

 Mr. Boyer proposed termination of Pro-Vigil with a 60-day notice and suggested using a 

new company, Envera, for security cameras purchase, installation, and monitoring services for a 

full contract proposal of $19,614.32. Discussion ensued regarding payments and purchasing plans 

and cost differences, equipment options, and cost of options, as well as the addition of new 

property.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor seconded by Mr. Kern with all in favor, 
the Termination of Existing Contract with Pro-Vigil with a 60-day 
notice, was approved. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Taylor, with all in favor, 
Authorizing the Chairman and Mr. Haber to enter into an agreement 
with Envera, was approved. 

  

 The security contract with the sheriff’s office on-site was also discussed and termination 

of Giddens with 30-day notice due to on-going issues. This would allow more surveillance and 

additional hours by using Sherriff’s office within budget.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Glynn, with all in 
favor, the Termination of Gidden’s Security with 30-day notice, and 
addition of St. Johns’ Sherriff’s office for additional hours, was 
approved. 

   

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Supervisor’s Requests and Audience  
    Comments 
 Mr. Oliver asked if there were any audience comments. 

  A resident asked the Board members their names and their role. Ms. Kern explained the 

CDD Board member role. The meeting format was also discussed.  



December 9, 2020   Six Mile Creek CDD 

7 

 A resident asked about the facility issues and funding. It was explained how the budget 

works on repair items and maintenance items budgeted and the role of the CDD Board. 

 Another resident asked about the proposed security system and what areas it included. Mr. 

Boyer replied that at this point there was not a definite plan for extended area security and the 

extended cost. He did note there was insurance for those extended areas.  

    

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS  Financial Reports 
A. Balance Sheet as of October 31, 2020 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses for 

the Period Ending October 31, 2020 
 Mr. Oliver noted that the unaudited financial statements were included in the agenda 

packets and that October 31, 2020. He added that there were no unusual findings on the General 

Fund Budget. 

 
B. Assessment Receipt Schedule 

 Mr. Oliver noted that the assessment collections would begin again when the tax collector 

sent out the property tax bills on November 1st. 

 

C. Check Register 
 Mr. Oliver noted that the check register was included in the agenda packet for Board 

approval. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Kern, with all in favor, 
the Check Register, was approved. 

 

D. FY 2021 Funding Request – No. 2 
 Ms. Oliver noted that the total amount for this funding request was for $19,248.53 from 

the General Fund. He asked if there were any questions, and hearing none, asked for a motion to 

approve all requests.  

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Kern, with all in favor, 
Funding Requests No. 2 for $19,248.53, was approved. 

 

  



December 9, 2020   Six Mile Creek CDD 

8 

E. FY 2021 Funding Request – No. 3 

 Ms. Oliver noted that the total amount for this funding request was for $46,856.78. He 

asked if there were any questions, and hearing none, asked for a motion to approve all requests. 

 

On MOTION by Mr. Taylor, seconded by Mr. Kern, with all in favor, 
Funding Requests No. 3 for $46,856.78, was approved. 

 
 
TWELTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Next Scheduled Meeting- February 17, 2020  
   at 2:00 p.m. 
 Mr. Oliver noted that the next meeting date was February 17, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. It was 

noted that a special meeting could be called with a 7-day advance notice if needed.  

 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 

On MOTION by Mr. Kern, seconded by Mr. Taylor, with all in favor, 
the Meeting was adjourned.  

 
 

________________________    _____________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman/Vice Chairman 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



RESOLUTION 2021-07 
 

A RESOLUTION SETTING FORTH THE SPECIFIC TERMS OF THE 
DISTRICT’S CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 
2021 (ASSESSMENT AREA 3, PHASE 1); MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS 
AND CONFIRMING AND ADOPTING AN ENGINEER’S REPORT AND 
AN ASSESSMENT REPORT; CONFIRMING THE MAXIMUM 
ASSESSMENT LIEN SECURING 2021 BONDS; ADDRESSING THE 
ALLOCATION AND COLLECTION OF THE ASSESSMENTS SECURING 
THE 2021 BONDS; ADDRESSING TRUE-UP PAYMENTS; PROVIDING 
FOR THE SUPPLEMENTATION OF THE IMPROVEMENT LIEN BOOK; 
PROVIDING FOR THE RECORDING OF A NOTICE OF ASSESSMENTS; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (“District”) has 

previously indicated its intention to undertake, install, establish, construct or acquire certain public 
improvements and to finance such public improvements through the imposition of special 
assessments on benefited property within the District and the issuance of bonds; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (“Board”) previously adopted, after 
notice and public hearing, Resolution 2021-06, relating to the imposition, levy, collection and 
enforcement of such special assessments for both Assessment Area 3, Phase 1; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to and consistent with the terms of Resolution 2021-06, this 
Resolution shall set forth the terms of bonds actually issued by the District, and apply the adopted 
special assessment methodology to the actual scope of the project to be completed with a series of 
bonds and the terms of the bond issue; and  
 

WHEREAS, on February 10, 2021, the District entered into that certain Bond Purchase 
Agreement with FMSbonds, Inc., whereby the District agreed to sell its $10,150,000 Six Mile 
Creek Community Development District Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 
(Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) (“2021 Bonds”), and 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to and consistent with Resolution 2021-06, the District desires to 
set forth the particular terms of the sale of the 2021 Bonds and confirm the lien of the levy of 
special assessments securing the 2021 Bonds.  
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 SECTION 1.  INCORPORATION OF RECITALS.  All of the above representations, 
findings and determinations are recognized as true and accurate and are expressly incorporated 
into this Resolution. 
 



SECTION 2.  AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION.  This Resolution is adopted 
pursuant to the provisions of Florida law, including Chapters 170, 190 and 197, Florida Statutes, 
and Resolution 2021-06. 

 
 SECTION 3.  FINDINGS; ADOPTION OF ENGINEER’S REPORT AND 2021 
ASSESSMENT REPORT.  The Board of Supervisors of the Six Mile Creek Community 
Development District hereby finds and determines as follows: 
 
 (a) On December 2, 2020, the District, after due notice and public hearing, adopted 
Resolution 2021-06, which, among other things, equalized, approved, confirmed and levied special 
assessments on property benefiting from the improvements authorized by the District.  That 
Resolution provided that as each series of bonds were issued to fund all or any portion of the 
District’s improvements, a supplemental resolution would be adopted to set forth the specific terms 
of the bond and certify the amount of the lien of the special assessments securing any portion of 
the bonds, including interest, costs of issuance, the number of payments due, any true-up amounts 
and the application of receipt of any true-up proceeds. 
 
 (b) The Six Mile Creek Community Development District Supplemental Engineers Report 
for Series 2021 Capital Improvements dated January 19, 2021, attached to this Resolution as 
Exhibit A (“Engineer’s Report”), identifies and describes the presently expected components of 
the infrastructure improvements to be financed in part with the Series 2021 Bonds (the “Series 
2021 Project”), and sets forth the costs of the Series 2021 Project as $17,849,526, which includes 
the improvements for Assessment Area 3, Phase 1A and Phase 1B.  The District hereby confirms 
that the Series 2021 Project serves a proper, essential, and valid public purpose.  The use of the 
Engineer’s Report in connection with the sale of the Series 2021 Bonds is hereby ratified.  
 
 (c) The Six Mile Creek Community Development District Final Supplemental Special 
Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds 
Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1) dated February 10 2021, attached to this Resolution as Exhibit B 
(“2021 Assessment Report”), applies the adopted Special Assessment Master Methodology Report 
dated March 30, 2007 (the “Master Assessment Report”), as supplemented by the District’s 
Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report, Final Numbers dated June 28, 2007 (the 
“First Supplemental Assessment Report”), Second Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology 
Report for the Capital Improvement Bonds Series 2014A and Series 2007 dated October 15, 2014, 
Final Special Assessment Methodology Report for the 2014 Refunding Bonds and the Remaining 
2007 Bonds dated November 14, 2014 (the “Refunding Report”), Final numbers Special 
Assessment Methodology Report for the Series 2016A and 2016 B Capital Improvement Bonds 
dated April 22, 2016 (the “2016 Assessment Report”), the Supplemental Special Assessment 
Methodology Report for the Series 2017A and 2017B Capital Improvement Bonds Assessment 
Area 2 (Phase 2) dated November 14, 2017 (the “2017 Assessment Report”), and the Six Mile 
Creek Community Development District Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report 
for the Capital Improvement Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2020 (Assessment Area 2, 
Phase 3A) dated June 12, 2020 (the “2020 Assessment Report”) to the 2021 Project and the actual 
terms of the 2021 Bonds.  The 2021 Assessment Report is hereby approved, adopted and 
confirmed.  The District ratifies its use in connection with the sale of the 2021 Bonds.  
 



 (d) The 2021 Project will specially benefit all developable property within the District, 
including Assessment Area 3, Phase 1.  It is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the portion 
of the costs of the 2021 Project financed with the 2021 Bonds to the specially benefited properties 
within Assessment Area 3, Phase 1 as set forth in Resolution 2021-06, the 2021 Assessment 
Report, and this Resolution.   
 
 SECTION 4.  SETTING FOR THE TERMS OF THE SERIES 2021 BONDS; 
CONFIRMATION OF MAXIMUM ASSESSMENT LIEN SECURING 2021 BONDS.  As 
provided in Resolution 2021-06, this Resolution is intended to set forth the terms of the 2021 
Bonds and the final amount of the lien of the special assessments securing those bonds.  The 2021 
Bonds, in a par amount of $10,150,000 shall bear such rates of interest and maturity as shown on 
Exhibit C attached hereto.  The estimated sources and uses of funds of the 2021 Bonds shall be as 
set forth in Exhibit D.  The debt service due on the 2021 Bonds is set forth on Exhibit E attached 
hereto.  The lien of the special assessments securing the 2021 Bonds shall be the principal amount 
due on the 2021 Bonds, together with accrued but unpaid interest thereon, and together with the 
amount by which annual assessments are grossed up to include early payment discounts required 
by law and costs of collection. 
 
 SECTION 5.  ALLOCATION OF ASSESSMENTS SECURING 2021 BONDS.  
 
 (a)  The special assessments for the 2021 Bonds (“2021 Assessments”) shall be allocated 
in accordance with Exhibit B, which allocation shall initially be on an acreage basis and further 
allocated as set forth in the 2021 Assessment Report.  The 2021 Assessment Report, considered 
herein, reflects the actual terms of the issuance of the District’s 2021 Bonds.  The estimated costs 
of collection of the 2021 Assessments are as set forth in the 2021 Assessment Report.  
 
 (b)  To the extent land is added to the District as presently contemplated by the 2021 
Assessment Report, the District may, by supplemental resolution, determine such land to be 
benefited by the 2021 Project and reallocate the 2021 Assessments and impose special assessments 
on the newly added and benefited property. 
 
 (c)  Taking into account capitalized interest and earnings on certain funds and accounts as 
set forth in the Master Trust Indenture and the Eighth Supplemental Trust Indenture, the District 
shall begin annual collection of the 2021 Assessments using the methods available to it by law.  
Debt service payments and semi-annual installments of interest are reflected on Exhibit E.  
 
 (d)  Section 7 of Resolution 2021-06 sets forth the terms for collection and enforcement of 
the 2021 Assessments.  The District hereby certifies the 2021 Assessments for collection and 
directs staff to take all actions necessary to meet the time and other deadlines imposed by St. Johns 
County for collection and other Florida law.  The District Manager shall prepare or cause to be 
prepared each year a tax roll for purposes of effecting the collection of the special assessments and 
present same to the District Board as required by law.  The District Manager is further directed 
and authorized to take all actions necessary to collect special assessments on property using 
methods available to the District authorized by Florida law in order to provide for the timely 
payment of debt service. 
 



 SECTION 6.  APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS.  Pursuant to Resolution 
2021-06, there may be required from time to time certain True-Up Payments (as defined in 
Resolution 2021-06).  As parcels of land are platted, the 2021 Assessments shall be allocated as 
set forth in Resolution 2021-06, this Resolution, and the 2021 Assessment Report, including, 
without limitation, the application of the true-up process set forth in Section 8 of Resolution 2021-
06.  The District shall apply all True-Up Payments related to the 2021 Bonds only to the credit of 
the 2021 Bonds.  All True-Up Payments, as well as all other prepayments of assessments, shall be 
deposited into the accounts specified in the Eighth Supplemental Indenture dated as of February 
1, 2021, governing the 2021 Bonds.  
 
 SECTION 7.  IMPROVEMENT LIEN BOOK.  Immediately following the adoption of 
this Resolution, the 2021 Assessments as reflected herein shall be recorded by the Secretary of the 
Board of the District in the District’s Improvement Lien Book.  The 2021 Assessments shall be 
and shall remain a legal, valid and binding first lien against all benefitted property as described in 
Exhibit B until paid and such lien shall be coequal with the lien of all state, county, district, 
municipal or other governmental taxes and superior in dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims.  
 
 SECTION 8.  ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District’s Secretary is hereby directed to 
record a Notice of 2021 Assessments in the Official Records of St. Johns County, Florida, or such 
other instrument evidencing the actions taken by the District. 
 

SECTION 9. CONFLICTS.  This Resolution is intended to supplement Resolution 2021-
06, which remains in full force and effect. This Resolution and Resolution 2021-06 shall be 
construed to the maximum extent possible to give full force and effect to the provisions of each 
resolution. All District resolutions or parts thereof in actual conflict with this Resolution are, to 
the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed. 
 
 SECTION 10.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section or part of a section of this resolution be 
declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a 
section of this resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that 
such other section or part of a section of this resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon 
the section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional. 

 
SECTION 11.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its 

adoption. 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this 17th day of February, 2021. 

ATTEST: SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

 
 
______________________________ ________________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairman 
      



Exhibit A:   Engineer’s Report dated January 19, 2021 
Exhibit B:   2021 Assessment Report dated February 10, 2021 
Exhibit C:   Maturities and Coupons of 2021 Bonds 
Exhibit D:   Sources and Uses of Funds for 2021 Bonds 
Exhibit E:   Annual Debt Service Payment Due on 2021 Bonds 
 
  



Exhibit A 
  



Exhibit B 



Exhibit C 
Maturities and Coupon of Series 2021 Bonds 

 
 

  

BOND PRICING 

Six ,,_tile Creek Community De\'elopmcnt District 
Capital tmproYement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment Arca 3, Pha,;e I) 

Maturity Call Call 
Bond Component Date Amount Rate Yield Price Oatc Price 

Tenn 1: 
05/0112026 1,075,000 2.500o/, 2500% 100.000 

Tenn 2: 
05/01/2031 1,240,000 3.000o/, 3.000% 100.000 

Tenn 3: 
05/0112041 3,185,000 3.500o/, 3500% 100.000 

Tenn 4: 
05/01/2051 4,650,000 4.000o/o 3.700% 102.522 C 05/01/2031 100.000 

10,150,000 

Oated Oate 02/24/2021 
Odh-cry Date 02/24/2021 
First Coupon 11/01/2021 

Par-Amount 10,150,000.00 
Premium 117,273.00 

Production 10,267,273.00 101.155399¾ 
Underwriter's DL,;oount -203,000.00 -2.000000% 

Purcha,;e Price I0,064,273.00 99.155399% 
Accrued Interest 

Net Proceeds 10,064,273.00 



Exhibit D 

 
 

 
 
  

SOURCES ANO US£S OF FUNDS 

Six ,,_i"ile Creek Community Oe\'elopmcnt District 
Capital tmproYement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment Arca 3, Pha,;e I) 

Souroes: 

Bond Proceeds: 
Par Amount 
Premium 

Uses: 

Other Fund Oeposits: 
OSRF (MADS wl rckosc) 
Capitalized Interest f'und (through 1 I /1/2021) 

Delivery Date Expenses: 
Cost of Issuance 
Underwriter's OL,;oount 

Other Uses of funds: 
Construction Ftmd 

10,150,000.00 
117,273.00 

10,267,273.00 

566,450.00 
248,063.47 
814,513.47 

183,636.25 
203.000.00 
386,63625 

9,066,123.28 

10,267,273.00 



Exhibit E 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

OOND 01!:0T S~RVJCC 

Six Mile Creek Commur.ity De\'elopmcnt District 
Capital tmpro,-ement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (Assessment Arca 3, Pha,;e I) 

Period 
£nding Principal Coupon lntercst Debt Service 

11/0IIW21 248,063.47 248,063.47 
11/0IIW22 205,000 2.5001', 358,987.50 563,987.50 
11/0IIW23 210,000 2.5001', 353,800.00 563,800.00 
11/0IIW24 215,000 2.5001', 348,487.50 563,487.50 
11/0IIW25 220,000 2.5001', 343,050.00 563,050.00 
11/0IIW26 225,000 2.5001', 337,487.50 562,487.50 
11/0IIW27 235,000 3.0001', 331,150.00 566,150.00 
11/0IIW28 240,000 3.0001', 324,025.00 564,025.00 
11/0IIW29 245,000 3.0001', 316,750.00 561,750.00 
11/01/WJ0 255,000 3.0001', 309,250.00 564,250.00 
11/0IIW31 265,000 3.0001', 301,450.00 566,450.00 
11/0IIW32 270,000 3.5001', 292,750.00 562,750.00 
11/01/Wll 280,000 3.5001', 283,125.00 563,125.00 
11/0IIW34 290,000 3.5001', 273,150.00 563,150.00 
11/0IIW35 300,000 3.5001', 262,825.00 562,825.00 
11/0IIW36 310,000 3.5001', 252,150.00 562,150.00 
11/0IIW37 325,000 3.5001', 241,037.50 566,037.50 
11/0IIW38 335,000 3.5001', 229,487.50 564,487.50 
11/0IIW39 345,000 3.5001', 217,587.50 562,587.50 
11/0IIW40 360,000 3.5001', 205,250.00 565,250.00 
11/0IIW41 370,000 3.5001', 192,415.00 562,475.00 
11/0IIW42 385,000 4.00CWo 178,300.00 563,300.00 
11/0IIW43 400,000 4.00CWo 162,600.00 562,600.00 
11/0IIW44 420,000 4.00CWo 146,200.00 566,200.00 
11/0IIW45 435,000 4.00CWo 129,100.00 564,100.00 
11/0IIW46 455,000 4.00CWo 111,300.00 566,300.00 
11/0IIW47 470,000 4.00CWo 92,800.00 562,800.00 
11/0IIW48 490,000 4.00CWo 73,600.00 563,600.00 
11/0IIW49 510,000 4.00CWo 53,600.00 563,600.00 
11/0IIW50 530,000 4.00CWo 32,800.00 562,800.00 
11/0IIW51 555,000 4.00CWo 11,100.00 566,100.00 

10,150,000 7,013,738.47 17,163,738.47 



 

        

Period Annual 
Ending Prine-ipal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service 

11/01/2021 248,063.47 248,063.47 248,063.47 
05/01/2022 205,000 2.5000/4 180,775.00 385,775.00 
11/01/2022 178,212.50 178,212.50 563,987.50 
05/01/2023 210,000 2.5000/4 178,212.50 388,212.50 
11/01/2023 175,587.50 175,587.50 563,800.00 
05/01/2024 215,000 2.5000/4 175,587.50 390,587.50 
11/01/2024 172,900.00 172,900.00 563,487.50 
05/01/2025 220,000 2.5000/4 172,900.00 392,900.00 
11/01/2025 170,150.00 170,150.00 563,050.00 
05/01/2026 225,000 2.5000/4 170,150.00 395,150.00 
11/01/2026 167,337.50 167,337.50 562,487.50 
05/01/2027 235,000 3.0000/4 167,337.50 402,337.50 
11/01/2027 163,812.50 163,812.50 566,150.00 
05/01/2028 240,000 3.0000/4 163,812.50 403,812.50 
11/01/2028 160,212.50 160,212.50 564,025.00 
05/01/2029 245,000 3.0000/4 160,212.50 405,212.50 
11/01/2029 156,537.50 156,537.50 561,750.00 
05/01/2030 255,000 3.0000/4 156,537.50 411,537.50 
11/01/2030 152,712.50 152,712.50 564,250.00 
05/01/2031 265,000 3.0000/4 152,712.50 417,712.50 
11/01/2031 148,737.50 148,737.50 566,450.00 
05/01/2032 270,000 3.5000/4 148,737.50 418,737.50 
11/01/2032 144,012.50 144,012.50 562,750.00 
05/01/2033 280,000 3.5000/4 144,012.50 424,012.50 
11/01/2033 139,112.50 139,112.50 563,125.00 
05/01/2034 290,000 3.5000/4 139,112.50 429,112.50 
11/01/2034 134,037.50 134,037.50 563,150.00 
05/01/2035 300,000 3.5000/4 134,037.50 434,037.50 
11/01/2035 128,787.50 128,787.50 562,825.00 
05/01/2036 310,000 3.5000/4 128,787.50 438,787.50 
11/01/2036 123,362.50 123,362.50 562,150.00 

05/01/2037 325,000 3.5000/4 123,362.50 448,362.50 
11/01/2037 117,675.00 117,675.00 566,037.50 
05/01/2038 335,000 3.5000/4 117,675.00 452,675.00 
11/01/2038 111,812.50 111,812.50 564,487.50 
05/01/2039 345,000 3.5000/4 111,812.50 456,812.50 
11/01/2039 !05,775.00 105,775.00 562,587.50 
05/01/2040 360,000 3.5000/4 105,775.00 465,775.00 
11/01/2040 99,475.00 99,475.00 565,250.00 
05/01/2041 370,000 3.5000/4 99,475.00 469,475.00 
11/01/2041 93,000.00 93,000.00 562,475.00 
05/01/2042 385,000 4.0000/4 93,000.00 478,000.00 
11/01/2042 85,300.00 85,300.00 563,300.00 
05/01/2043 400,000 4.0000/4 85,300.00 485,300.00 
11/01/2043 77,300.00 77,300.00 562,600.00 
05/01/2044 420,000 4.0000/4 77,300.00 497,300.00 
11/01/2044 68,900.00 68,900.00 566,200.00 
05/01/2045 435,000 4.0000/4 68,900.00 503,900.00 
11/01/2045 60,200.00 60,200.00 564,100.00 
05/01/2046 455,000 4.0000/4 60,200.00 515,200.00 
11/01/2046 51,100.00 51,100.00 566,300.00 
05/01/2047 470,000 4.0000/4 51,100.00 521,100.00 
11/01/2047 41,700.00 41,700.00 562,800.00 
05/01/2048 490,000 4.0000/4 41,700.00 531,700.00 
11/01/2048 31,900.00 31,900.00 563,600.00 



 

 

 

BOND DEBT SERVICE 

Six Mile Crcd: Community Development District 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 202 l (Assessment Area 3, Phase I) 

Period Annual 
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service 

05/01/2049 510,000 4.0000/4 31,900.00 541,900.00 
11/01/2049 21,700.00 21,700.00 563,600.00 
05/01/2050 530,000 4.0000/4 21,700.00 551,700.00 
11/01/2050 ll,100.00 ll,100.00 562,800.00 
05/01/2051 555,000 4.0000/4 ll,100.00 566,100.00 
11/01/2051 566,100.00 

10,150,000 7,013,738.47 17,163,738.47 17, I 63,738.47 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

1. 



E 19-215 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

SUPPLEMENTAL ENGINEERS REPORT 
For 

SERIES 2021 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

Prepared for 

Board of Supervisors 
Six Mile Creek 

Community Development District 

Prepared by 

ETm 
En9land-Thlm) g. mi11ar,lnc. 
VISION • EXPERIENCE • RESULTS 

14775 Old St. Augustine Road 
Jacksonville, Florida 32258 

904-642-8990 

January 19, 2021 



January 19, 2021 

Mr. Gregg Kern 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
Six Mile Community Development District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

www.etminc.com 
tel 904-642-8990 • fax 904-646-9485 

14775 Old St. Augustine Road• Jacksonville, Florida 32258 

Reference: Supplemental Addendum to the Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006 

Dear Mr. Kern: 

Pursuant to your request, England, Thims & Miller, Inc. has prepared the enclosed rep011 in an effo11 to provide 
information regarding the anticipated capital improvements to be funded in the year 2020. This repo11 is a supplement to 
the adopted Six Mile Creek CDD Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006, and the Supplemental Engineer's Repo11s 
dated May 25, 2007, November 12, 2014, April 12, 2016, June 5, 2017, October 27, 2017 and June 3, 2020. 

Please don't hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or comments regarding this repo11. 

Sincerely, 

ENGLAND, THIMS & MILLER, INC. 

Scott A Wild, P .E. 
Executive Vice President/Shareholder 

SAW/shb 

Enclosures 

ENGINEERS • PLANNERS • SURVEYORS• GIS • LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 
, , Jacksonville• Lake Mary • Palm Coast 

En9le1nd-Th1m~ & m1llczr. Inc. CA-00002584 LC-0000316 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Six Mile Creek Community Development District (The "Six Mile Creek CDD" or the 
"District") is a 1,282 ± acre community development district located in St. Johns County, Florida. 
(Refer to Plate 1, location map). The land within the District consists of a parcel within the Saint 
Johns DRI, referred to herein as the "South Tract". The authorized land uses within the District 
include residential development as well as substantial open space and recreational amenities. The 
full development within the Six Mile Creek CDD boundaries is anticipated to include 
approximately: 

TYPE 
Acreage Residential 
Acres Units 

Residential 773+ 2278 
Amenity Village 7+ 
Community Park 30± 
Neighborhood Parks System 17+ 
Wetlands 357+ 
Upland Buffer 98± 
TOTALS 1282+ 2278 

(Refer to Plate 2 for the map of the District boundaries and Plate 3 for legal description of the District.) 

In anticipation of development within its boundaries, on March 30, 2007 the District adopted its 
Improvement Plan dated December 1, 2006, describing master and neighborhood infrastructure 
improvements the District intended to finance ( or advance finance), construct, install and/or 
acquire within and adjacent to the boundaries of the District. Subsequently, the District adopted 
the Supplemental Engineer's Reports dated May 25, 2007, November 12, 2014, April 12, 2016, 
June 5, 2017, October 27, 2017 and June 3, 2020. The purpose of this report is to supplement the 
existing Improvement Plan and Supplemental Engineer's Reports in an effort to identify 
infrastructure improvements that will be funded in whole or part with proceeds from the issuance 
of the Six Mile Creek Community Development District (St. Johns County, Florida) Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 AA3 Phase 1 related to the next phase of development 
within the District.' The anticipated costs to construct and/or install the Series 2021 AA3 Phase I 
Project are set fo1th in Tables IA, 1B and 1 C. 

The unit distributions for previous assessment areas are as follows: 

Assessment Area I Assessment Area 2 (Phase 1) Assessment Area 2 (Phase 2) 
43' lots 27 43' lots 160 43' lots 69 
53 'lots 25 53' lots 63 53' lots 216 
63'lots 81 70' lots 21 63' lots 34 
70' lots 19 80' lots 61 70' lots 8 
Total Lots 152 Total Lots 305 80' lots 74 

Total Lots 401 
Assessment Area 2 (Phase 3A) 
43' Lots 57 
53' Lots 62 
63' Lots 62 
Total Lots 181 

1 The District anticipates that it will issue additional series of bonds in the future to fund the construction, 
acquisition and installation of portions of the Improvement Plan not funded by the Series 2007, Series 2016, Series 
2017 and Series 2020 Bonds. 

Page I 



The anticipated unit distribution for the Series 2021 AA3 Phases 1 Bonds is as follows: 

Proposed Unit Mix for Series 2021 AA3 Phase 1 
Bonds2 

Assessment Area 3 (Phase lA) 
2021 AA3 Phase 1 Bonds 

/Series 2021 AA3 Phase l Proiect) 
Lot Size (Feet) Number 

43 76 
53 74 
63 45 

TOTAL 195 

Proposed Unit Mix for Series 2021 AA3 Phase 1 
Bonds 

Assessment Area 3 fPhase lB) 
2021 AA3 Phase 1 Bonds 

(Series 2021 AA3 Phase l Proiect) 
Lot Size (Feet) Number 

43 107 
53 61 

TOTAL 168 

The unit distribution for the remaining district lands has not yet been determined. 

In comparison with the Improvement Plan and Supplemental Engineer's Reports, the Master and 
Neighborhood Infrastructure costs have been updated to present the estimated cost for the Series 
2021 AA3 Phase I Project. 

Plate 4 depicts the limits and area for Assessment Area 3 (Phase IA) and Assessment Area 3 
(Phase IB). It also depicts the currently anticipated lot mix and total unit count for and Assessment 
Area 3 (Phase IA) and Assessment Area 3 (Phase IB). Plate 5 provides the legal description for 
Assessment Area 3 (Phase IA). Plate 6 provides the legal description for Assessment Area 3 
(Phase IB). 

The limits of Assessment Area 2 (Phases I, 2 and 3) are also depicted on Plate 4, together with the 
existing lot mix and total unit count within Assessment Area 2 (Phases 1, 2 and 3). 

2 Proposed unit mix includes 24 proposed lots within lands being added to the District under a proposed boundary 
amendment being completed at this time. 

Page 2 



MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 

The following sections of this report describe those Master Infrastructure Improvements that benefit Assessment 
Area I, Assessment Area 2, Phases I through 3A and Assessment Area 3, Phases IA through 1B Project areas. 
These include transportation and miscellaneous other improvements, such as common area landscape/hardscape 
and a master lift station. 

TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENTS 

The Six Mile Creek COD presently intends to finance, design and construct certain master transportation facilities 
necessary for development within the Dish-ict boundaries. These improvements have been designed and will be 
constructed to St. Johns County standards. Landscaping and irrigation of completed roadways will be operated 
and maintained by the District, although the roadways themselves will be owned and maintained by St. Johns 
County. 

This total proposed improvement includes approximately 14,200 linear feet of two-lane urban section roadway, 
with appropriate tum lanes ("Loop Road"). The po1tion of Loop Road included in the Series 2021 AA3 Phase 1 
Project is approximately 2,750 linear feet of two-lane urban section roadway within Assessment Area 3 (Phase 
IA) and Assessment Area 3 (Phase IB). The Loop Road improvements are depicted on Plate 8. 

MISCELLANEOUS IMPROVEMENTS 

Utility Improvements 

The Six Mile Creek COD financed, designed and constructed ce1tain water utility infrastructure necessary for 
development within the District boundaries. These improvements were designed and constructed to St. Johns 
County standards, and are owned and maintained by St. Johns County. It is anticipated that the cost of construction 
for these improvements will be paitially reimbursed to the District through the utility agreement described below. 

In accordance with the Six Mile Creek Water and Sewer Connection Fee Reimbursement Agreement adopted 
January 29, 1999 ("Agreement"), St. Johns County will reimburse the cost of construction of the transmission 
components of the water and sewer facilities located within and adjacent to the Six Mile Creek COD. This 
reimbursement will be paid from one-third of the connection fees collected by St. Johns County at the time 
connection fees are paid. The reimbursement for a completed pmtion of the infrastructure must be completed 
within a 12-year period following the construction of the improvement. It is anticipated that $4,311,421 ( of which 
$728,698 has been received to date) of the master utility infrastructure cost will be reimbursed to the District 
through this Agreement and that the District will use the funds to construct additional po1tions of the 
improvements described in the Improvement Plan. 

Common Area Landscape/Hardscape 

The Six Mile Creek COD presently intends to finance, design and construct certain common area landscape and 
hardscape improvements to benefit the development within the District boundaries. These improvements will be 
designed and constructed to St. Johns County standards, and will be owned and maintained by the District. 
Landscaping will be installed continuously along the length of the Loop Road and within other areas of the 
District. These improvements a1so include soft costs for all common area improvements. 

1:\:!019\19-215Uonddevlsupp\emen!ol rngine<rs n;,ort-1020 capitol improvrnimlsln..,isc'<l ;upp!emen!ol report Ol .l9.2l\4 • bao~grourJ.docx 

I 



BASIS OF COST ESTIMATE FOR 
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 

The following is the basis for the infrastructure cost estimates: 

► Water and Sewer Facilities have been designed in accordance with SJ CUD and FDEP standards. 

► The stormwater management system has been designed per SJRWMD and SJC standards. 

► The engineering, permitting, construction inspection and other soft cost fees have been included in the 
estimated cost. 

► Cost estimates contained in this report are based upon year 2019 dollars. 

► Costs have been included for street lighting and electrical conduit on all roadways in accordance with 
FPL standards for the Series 2021 AA3 Phase 1 Project. 

NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 

The Series 2021 AA3 Phase I Project includes the cost of the neighborhood infrastructure improvements for 195 
single family units in Assessment Area 3 (Phase IA) and 168 single family units in assessment area 3 (Phase IB), 
as depicted on Plate 4. 

The Six Mile Creek CDD presently intends to finance certain infrastructure improvements for each neighborhood 
within the District boundaries. The improvements include complete construction of the basic infrastructure for 
each neighborhood, including but not limited to: clearing and grubbing, earthwork, water and sewer underground 
utility construction, drainage, stormwater management, grassing, sodding, underground electrical conduit and 
neighborhood street lighting. 

The cost estimate for the roadways included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements is based upon curb 
and gutter section roadways with variable pavement widths, within variable width rights-of-way. The clearing, 
grubbing and earthwork estimates include all work necessa1y for the complete right-of-way area, and include 
utility easements for underground electrical conduit for roadway street lighting. Disturbed areas within the rights
of-way, which are outside of the paved areas, will be sodded and/or seeded and grassed in order to provide erosion 
and sediment control in accordance with St. Johns County standards. 

Stormwater management cost estimates included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements provide for the 
attenuation and treatment of stormwater runoff from the project roadways in accordance with St. Johns River 
Water Management District and St. Johns County standards. Costs include detention pond construction, outfall 
control structures, and any site fill required to provide a complete stormwater management system. 

Water and sewer cost estimates included in the neighborhood infrastructure improvements consist of the 
underground water transmission system, wastewater (sewer) collection system, and lift station serving the 
development. Costs include piping, manholes, valves, services, and all appurtenances required in order to 
construct the system in accordance with St. Johns County Utility Department, and Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection standards. 

The neighborhood infrastructure improvements have been designed and will be constructed to St. Johns County, 
St. Johns County Utility Depaitment, Florida Depaitment of Environmental Protection, and St. Johns River Water 
Management District standards. Roadways shall be owned and maintained by St. Johns County in Assessment 
Area 3 (Phase IA) and Assessment Area 3 (Phase IB). Water and sewer facilities shall be owned and maintained 
by St. Johns County Utility Depaitment. The neighborhood street lighting shall be owned and operated by the 
District, and the electrical cost to operate it is presently expected to be paid by the District. The District shall 
maintain stormwater management improvements. 

t\2019\1 9-2! S~!lll<ldm.\.supplernrnlal engin«..--, 11:port-2020 copit,,I improvrmcnts\m•ised supplementol report Ol .! 9.211-t • backgro\lM.do<X 

2 



TABLElA 
NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE SUMMARY OF COSTS FOR 

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE lA) 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Improvement Description 
Estimated 

Costs 

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE 

Loop Road $1,172,272 

Lift Station $256,873 

Common Area Landscaoe/Hardscane $1,205,000 

Traffic SiQnal $175,000 
NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE 

Sanitary Sewer, Lift Stations and Force Mains $885,494 

Stormwater ManaQement $890,494 

NeiQhborhood Roadwavs $4,315,494 
Street Lighting $195,750 
Water Distribution Svstem $640,494 

Common Area Landscaoe/Hardscaoe $650,000 
MASTER & NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL $10,386,872 

TABLE 1B 
NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE SUMMARY OF COSTS FOR 

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE lB) 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Improvement Description 
Estimated 

Costs 

MASTER INFRASTRUCTURE 

Loop Road $566,700 

Lift Station $256,874 

Common Area Landscane/Hardscane $450,000 

Traffic Signal $175,000 
NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE 

Sanitarv Sewer, Lift Stations and Force Mains $783,395 

Stormwater Management $803,395 
Neighborhood Roadwavs $3,388,395 
Street LiQhting $166,500 
Water Distribution Svstem $572,395 
Common Area Landscaoe/Hardscane $300,000 

MASTER & NEIGHBORHOOD INFRASTRUCTURE TOTAL $7,462,654 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS PERMIT STATUS 

Regulatory permits necessary for construction of infrastructure improvements within Assessment Area 3 (Phase 
IA) and Assessment Area 3 (Phase IB) have either been applied for or received. The current status of the 
regulatmy pennits is reflected in Exhibit A. It is our opinion that there are no technical reasons that would 
prohibit the implementation of the plans presented herein and that all pe1mits/approvals not already issued but 
are necessaiy for the Series 2021 AA3 Phase I Project should be obtained in the ordinaiy course of development. 

t:\20!9\!9-215~ondde\'\supplementol cngin«n n.vort-2020 capital impruvm,cnts\n,,;j,ed ,upplcmcntnl report 01.19.2114 • backgro10,tdnc,; 

3 



EXHIB!T"A" 

PERMIT STATUS 

Assessment Area 3 {Phase 1A) 

12/11/2020 

Item# Permit Agency 
File Number I Permit Description 
Number 

Grantor Grantee Issue Date Expiration Date 

1 ACOE NIA NJA NIA NIA NIA 

2 SJRWMO In Progress Individual Permit SJRWMD Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending 

3 SJRWMD !n Progress Consumptive Use Permit SJRWMD Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending 

4 Sl Johns County Subcon 2020-08 Construction Plan Approval (Phase SA & SC) Sl Johns County Six Mile Creek COD 1011912020 10/1912025 

' St. Johns County In Progress Construction Plan Approval (Phase 98) Sl Johns County Six Mile Creek COD Pending 

6 FDEP 0128650-178-DSGP 
Water Distribution System Permit (Phase 9A 

FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC 10/1512020 1011412025 
&9C) 

7 FDEP In Progress Water Distribution System Permit (Phase 98) FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending 

8 FDEP 0332217-055-DWC 
Sanitary Sewer Collection System Permit 
(Phase 9A & SC} 

FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC 10/15/2020 10/14/2025 

9 FDEP In Progress 
Sanitary Sewer Collection System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending 
(Phase98) 

-

Assessment Area 3 (Phase 18) 

12/11/2020 

Item# Permit Agency 
File Number I Permit Description 
Number 

Grantor Grantee Issue Date Expiration Date 

1 ACOE NJA NIA NIA NIA NJA 

2 SJRWMD In Progress Individual Permit SJRWMD Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending 

3 SJRWMD In Progress Consumptive Use Permit SJRWMD Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending 

4 St. Johns County In Progress Construction Plan Approval St. Johns County Six Mile Creek COD Pending 

' FDEP !n Progress Water Distribution System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending 

6 FDEP 1n Progress Sanitary Sewer Collection System Permit FDEP Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC Pending 

T:\2019\19-215\LandOev\Supplemental Engineers Report-2020 Capital lmprovements\Revised Supplemental Report 01.19.21 \Permit Summa,y 12.11.20.docx 



APPENDIX 
Description 

Plate No. 

2 

3 

4 

5-5A 

6-6A 

7 

8 

9 

9A 

10 

JOA 

11 

!IA 

12 

12A 

13 

13A 

14 

14A 

Location Map 

District Boundary Map 

Legal Description - District Boundary 

Master Site Plan 

Legal Description - Assessment Area 3 (Phase lA) 

Legal Description - Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1 B) 

Transportation Improvement - Loop Road (Series 2021 AA3 Phase I Project) 

Typical Cross-Section- Loop Road (2-Lane) 

Sanitary Sewer Lift Stations and Forcemains 

Sanitary Sewer Forcemains (Series 2021 AA3 Phase I Project) 

Stormwater Management Plan 

Stormwater Management Plan (Series 2021 AA3 Phase 1 Project) 

Neighborhood Roadways 

Neighborhood Roadways (Series 2021 AA3 Phase I Project) 

Street Lighting 

Street Lighting (Series 2021 AA3 Phase I Project) 

Water Distribution System 

Water Distribution System (Series 2021 AA3 Phase 1 Project) 

Sanitary Sewer Collection System 

Sanitary Sewer Collection System (Series 2021 AA3 Phases 1 Project) 

t.\2019119-215\l:rndde1•\suppk1ncntol ongine<n report-2020 capillll imprm•c,nents\m•i=I ,upplemenlol r<.j)Otl 01.19.:ll \4 - baekg,ooro:1.doc< 

4 



'----o /7 ('-.._½~'. < _:::::· 
/ . " ' --/ , "--; ·-----/q; --.:..__ -/ 
•a a ----...... 

16 

--:-~~ 

'-------

'SIMO 
IS 

M 
S!)(MIL[ 

NE:c, 

' ·~ 

-X,rX-

Mt.th8.asanf 

::0 
0 
0 
0.. 

--..1--- ':::._2:.· 

PROJE€3T 
SITE . ", 

~-· 

lie -

~~v\\ 
- 208' -"' 
~ i +Ill - >-

Pork_·~-• cc~;~~ 
,__,---------~--~ ~-.. ~ ~, 

'--"s 

' GRAPHIC SCALE 
Siiono Pt. 0 3000 6000 12000 

En9land • Thim) 
_ &millczr,lnc. LOCATION MAP 

- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS =-~~-= j~~z;on5v\i1:"?i~~,~~e 3~;ii 
:"'"..=""~=:."=."";: Certificcte of Authorizotion No: 2584 

~~~n~/(gJ~f~J~~j~90 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

~ ,y ~~~.....,..,_____,_________,,------

u 
q;; 

Q) 
_o 

ETM. NO. 19-215 

DATE: JANUARY 19. 2021 

SCALE: 1" ~ 6.000' 

PLATE NO: 



0 

0 
~(". 

0--:) 

OUTPARCEL NOT TO 
BE INCLUDED IN CDD) 

OWNER: SIX MILE CREEK 
INVESTMENT GROUP, LLC 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1500 3000 6000 

'3'22"E: 

•,~~;A'W 
<e' 
'O"J8'.S•E 
o.:w :~r•rw 
DZ'£ ,. 
""' ''"·" 

,·5,•52•w 

•:~~a"w 
o·o~·w 
,o' 
;:,o•ww 
00' 
ll'OO"W 
'0' 
·,a'o7"w ,,. 

''lb 
"·'.'-'· 

sa~·•s·,an: 

1282.14 ACRES 
(CDD AREA) 

I U Ill :I 1,r-~:s,~' "" ;i\ '>]./:;.~ 

11 
10. 

' 
'·! 

•~s2,_o_r 

~~~-~ 

"7'ioJ~"i; 

Sll9"<<J'57"E 
1179.7?" 

R-2'02.0l' 
1~1•·:wJO· 
L.,o604.:l1" 
l-JO:l.77' 
CH-£"2.70" 
s~soo'Oll'o1"w-

+-' 
+-' 

Q) 

u 
0 

ll 

208 

Bakersville 

_f~::;i.~~~im) DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAP DATE JANUARY 19, 2021 

ETM. NO. 19-215 

- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS " ' 

- - '"'"''°" - "'"sc"' "'"'""' SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: 1 - 3.000 ~--~ ~~IJ;on5v\i1/u?i~~.~~e 3~i~i 
:"'.=".:==':,'S.."S Certificate of Authorization No.; 2584 

r----• ~~~nN/(9d!?~J!§j§SO PLATE NO: 2 



Six Mile Creek Community Development District 

A part of Sections 31 and 38, Township 6 South, Range 28 East, together with a part of Sections 
6, 38 and 41, Township 7 South, Range 28 East, St. Johns County, Florida, being more 
particularly described as follows: for a Point of Reference, commence at the intersection of the 
Southerly line of said section 41, Township 7 South, Range 28 East, with the Westerly 
right-of-way line of County road no. 13a (a 100.00 foot right-of-way as now established): thence 
North 71 °03'40" West, along the said South line of section 41, a distance of 1065.59 feet to the 
Point of Beginning; thence continue North 71 °03'40" West, along the Southerly line of said 
section 41, a distance of3030.75 feet; thence North 60°13'49" West, continuing along said 
section line, a distance of 1734.02 feet to the common comer to Sections 41, 5 and 6; thence 
South 03°24'47" East, along the Easterly line of said section 6, a distance of 3052.10 feet; thence 
South 03°20'35" East, along the Easterly line of said section 38, a distance of2086.25 feet; 
thence North 86°59'59" West, a distance of 863.15 feet to the waters of Six Mile Creek; thence 
North 46°05'12' West, along the waters of s8.ld Six Mile Creek, a distance of 1430.00 feet; 
thence North 45°06'48" West, along the waters of Six Mile Creek, a distance of 1973.08 feet; 
thence North 15°52'42" West, along the waters of said Six Mile Creek, a distance of 639.84 feet; 
thence North 07°08'17" East, a distance of 540.00 feet to a point in the division line between 
section 6 and 38; thence North 89°07'35" West, along said division line, a distance of 540.00 
feet; thence North 01 °20'1 l" West, along the Westerly line of the North 28 acres of the 
Northeast one quarter and Northwest one quarter of said section Six, a distance of2665.80 feet 
to a point in said Six Mile Creek; thence with the waters of said Six Mile Creek, the following 
fourteen (14) courses; course no. 1) North 21 °46'57" West, a distance of 115.71 feet; course no. 
2) North 04°03'00" West, a distance of 471.70 feet; course no. 3) North 15°30'16" West, a 
distance of 530.00 feet; course no. 4) North 74°15'52" West, a distance of 160.00 feet; course 
no. 5) North 31°54'28" West, a distance of147.65 feet; course no. 6) North 14°54'52" West, a 
distance of 655.70 feet; course no. 7) North 58°35'33" West, a distance of336.l 7 feet; course 
no. 8) North 38°53'09" West, a distance of291.63 feet; course no. 9) North 07°47'32" East, a 
distance of 480.55 feet; course no. IO) North 31 °04'47" West, a distance of 88.74 feet; course 
no. 11) North 20°38'46" East, a distance of219.13 feet; course no. 12) North 32°56'28" West, a 
distance of 141.49 feet; course no. 13) North 08°25'22" East, a distance of 515.92 feet; course 
no. 14) North 15°06'25" West, a distance of 651.10 feet; thence North 77°45'24" East, leaving 
the waters of Six Mile Creek, a distance of2251.55 feet; thence South 40°06'20" East, a distance 
of3560.03 feet; thence South 85°45'56" East, a distance of 4260.63 feet to a point in the 
division line between said section 38 and section 37; thence South 01 °06'48" East, along said 
Westerly line of section 37, a distance of 258.39 feet to the Southwest comer of said section 37; 
thence South 89°40'57" East, along the South line of said section 37, a distance of 1179.79 feet 
to the Northwest comer of a 30.00 foot wide drainage easement, as recorded in deed book 182, 
page 133; thence South 37°05'42" East, a distance of930.18 feet; thence South 12°23'05" West, 
along a line parallel with and lying 50.00 foot Westerly of when measured at right angles to the 
Westerly right-ofMway line of state road no. 13a (a 100.00 foot rightMofMway as now established), 
a distance of 1482.90 feet to the point of curve, concave Easterly, having a radius of2392.01 
feet; thence Southwesterly, continuing along said parallel line and along the arc of said curve, an 

arc distance of 604.31 feet, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing of South 05°08'51" 
West and a chord distance of 602. 70 feet to the point of tangency of said curve; thence South 
02°05'24" East, continuing along said parallel line, a distance of 868.99 feet; thence South 
87°54'35" West, leaving said parallel line, a distance of944.62 feet; thence South 02°05'25" 
East, a distance of759.38 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Containing 1288.95 acres more or less. 

Less and except those lands as described in Official Records Book 250, page 693 of the Public 
Records of said County, being more particularly described as follows: beginning at the 
Southeast comer of the Northeast quarter (NEl/4) of the Northwest quarter (NWl/4) of sec. 6, 
Township 7 South, Range 28 East; thence run North 420 feet to a stake, thence run West 330 
feet to a stake, thence run South 420 feet to a stake, thence run East 330 feet to Point of 
Beginning; containing three (3) acres more or less and being a part of the property conveyed by 
Gordon Ferreira and wife to john y. Smith by deed dated October 25, 1899, and recorded in 
deed record n3, page 133, St. Johns County Records. 
Beginning at the Southeast comer of the Northeast quarter (NEl/4) of the Northwest quarter 
(NWI/4) of section 6, Township 7 South, Range 28 East; thence run West 330 feet to a stake, 
thence run South 10 chains to a stake, thence run East 330 feet to a stake, thence run North 10 
chains to a Point of Beginning; containing four (4) acres more or less, and being part of the 
property conveyed by r. I. Knowles to john y. Smith by deed dated April 16, 1888, and recorded 
in deed record "II", page 675, St. Johns County Records. (6.80 acres more or less or296,208 
square feet more or less). 

Total area- 1288.95 - 6.80 - 1282.15 acres 

ETM. NO. 19-215 

_ -~~::;,.~ 1~:~im) LEGAL DESCRIPTION - DISTRICT BOUNDARY DATE JANUARY 19. 2021 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS =.. ..= v~r7~yit\~ u~~~s~~~~ ARCHITECTS SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
.,.-..,...., • ..__._ Jacksonville. ~orido 32258 
~==:=.."'a Certifico\e of Authotizction No.:2584 
~----~ Phone No. (904) 642-8990 

Fox No. (904) 646-94-85 

SCALE: N/A 

PLATE NO: 3 



ASSESSMENT 
AREA 2 (PHASE 2) 

~ 

ASSESSMENT 
AREA 2 {PHASE 2) 

ASSESSMENT 
AREA 2 (PHASE 1) 

ASSESSMENT 
AREA 2 (PHASE 2) 

ASSESSMENT 
AREA 3 (PHASE 1A) 

ASSESSMENT 
AREA 3 (PHASE 1 B) 

LJ ASSESSMENT AREA 1 (152.20Ac.) 

□ ASSESSMENT AREA2 (PHASE 1) (112.68Ac.) 

D ASSESSMENT AREA2 (PHASE 2) (156.31 Ac.) 

11!!1 ASSESSMENT AREA2 (PHASE 3) (272.30Ac.) 

LJ 2007 ASSESSMENT AREA (550.00 Ac.) 

- ASSESSMENT AREA3 (PHASE 1) (173.62Ac.) 

England• Thim) 
======= & mma:r ,Inc. 
_. ._ ENGINEERS· PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS• LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS 

;.B== ~~:J;on
5
v~i1:u~~~i~~e 3~2si 

==--.=.==.":::.: Certificate of Authorization No: 2584 

~~~"~/<ii~i?~4~~~jl90 

ASSESSMENT AREA 1 
43' Lots (27) 
52' Lots (25) 
63' Lots (81) 
7':1 Lots (19) 

fot:al Lots (152) 

ASSESSMENT AREA2 (PHASE 3A) 
43' Lots (57) 
53'Lots (82) 
63' lets (62) 

Tot:11 Lots (18'1) 

·ASSESSMENT 
AREA1 

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 1) 
43' Lots (160) 
63' lets (63) 
70'Lots (21) 
80' Lots (61) 

Tool lots (305) 

ASSESSMENT ABEA2 (PHASE 3B) 
43' Lots (87) 
53' Lots (71) 
63' lets (39) 

Tat::111 Lots (197) 

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 1A) 
43' Lots (76) 
53' Lots (74) 

Tot:ail'!Lots ~~) 

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 2) 
43' Lots (69) 
53'lots (216) 
63'Lotl (34) 
7rJLots (8) 
80'lets {7-4) 

Tot:11 Lots (401) 

ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3Cj 
43' Lots (80) 
S3'Lots (62) 
63' Lots (34J 

Tot:11 Lots (176) 

ASSESSMENT AREA 3 {?HASE 18) 
<43'Lo~ (107) 
53'Lots (61) 

Tot:al Lots (168) 

1J1f ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3A) 

,SSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3C) 

·2007 ASSESSMENT AREA 
·ASSESSMENT AREA 2 (PHASE 3B) 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

t /ih ,a;j · ft :::;tw ~ 

MASTER SITE PLAN 
ETM. NO. 19-215 

DATE: OCTOBER 30. 2020 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: 7" = 2.000· 

PLATE NO: 4 



A portion of Section 6, and Section 38, Jose Papy Grant, all lying in Township 7 South, Range 
28 East, St. Johns County, Florida, also being portion of the plat of whisper creek phase 4, unit d 
as recorded in map book 83, pages 59 through 69 (inclusive) of the Public Records of St. Johns 
County, Florida and also being a portion of the plat of whisper creek phase 5 unit bas recorded 
in map book 93, pages 1 through 8 (inclusive) of said Public Records and being more 
particularly described as follows: 

For a Point of Reference, commence at the Southeast corner of the plat of Whisper Creek Phase 
4 Unit D, as recorded in map book 83, pages 59 through 69 (inclusive), also being the Southwest 
corner of the plat of whisper creek phase 5 unit b, as recorded in map book 93, pages 1 through 
8 (inclusive) all of the Public Records of St. Johns County, Florida; thence South 67°55'56" 
West, along the Southeast line thereof, a distance of 460.78 feet to the Point of Beginning. 
Thence North 21°55'30" West, a distance of 113.51 feet to a point on the South line of tract no. 
7, as shown on the said plat of Whisper Creek Phase 4 Unit D; thence Northeasterly along said 
South line, the following 11 Courses and distances: Course 1) thence North 73°55'15" East, a 
distance of 64.55 feet; Course 2) thence North 78°01'17" East, a distance of 34.06 feet; Course 
3) thence North 74°24'30" East, a distance of 43.00 feet; Course 4) thence North 71 °03'31" East, 
a distance of 53.57 feet; Course 5) thence North 63°19'13" East, a distance of 38.92 feet; Course 
6) thence North 72°00'55" East, a distance of 38.74 feet; Course 7) thence North 45°03'38" East, 
a distance of 38.98 feet; Course 8) thence North 83°06'21" East, a distance of 21.59 feet; Course 
9) thence North 62°51'26" East, a distance of 65.80 feet; Course 10) thence North 60°41154" 
East, a distance of 39.90 feet; Course 11) thence South 86°01'16" East, a distance of 66.32 feet 
to a point on the East line of the said plat of Whisper Creek Phase 4 Unit D, also being the West 
line of said plat of whisper creek phase 5 unit b; thence South 74°07'15" East, a distance of 
345.04 feet; thence South 37°22'51" East, a distance of 185.81 feet; thence South 60°53'56" 
East, a distance of 666.95 feet; thence South 78°58159" East, a distance of 1147.41 feet; thence 
South 19°29'28" East, a distance of 757.57 feet; thence South 68°02159" West, a distance of 
287.92 feet; thence South 81°26'35" West, a distance of 166.70 feet; thence South 88°47'16" 
West, a distance of 532.60 feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve concave Northwesterly 
and having a radius of 45.00 feet; thence Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 
65.49 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 40°58113" West, 
59.86 feet to the point of reverse curvature of a curve concave Southerly and having a radius of 
355.00 feet; thence Westerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 115.03 feet, said curve 
being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 73°22'56" West, 114.53 feet to the 
point of reverse curvature of a curve concave Northerly and having a radius of 40.00 feet; thence 
Westerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 43.90 feet, said curve being subtended by a 
chord bearing and distance of North 84°27'30" West, 41. 73 feet to the end of said curve; thence 
South 35°22'29" West, a distance of 553.04 feet; thence South 67°16'16" West, a distance of 
46.97 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Southeasterly and having a radius of 
25.00 feet; thence Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 6.82 feet, said curve 
being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 59°27'15" West, 6.80 feet to the point 
of tangency; thence South 51 °38' 14" West, a distance of 37.18 feet to the point of curvature of a 

curve concave Southeasterly and having a radius of 25.00 feet; thence Southwesterly along the 
arc of said curve, a distance of 5.01 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing and 
distance of South 45°53156" West, 5.00 feet to the point of tangency; thence South 40°09139" 
West, a distance of 38.61 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Easterly and having a 
radius of 25.00 feet; thence Southerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 27.52 feet, said 
curve being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 08°37'24" West, 26.15 feet to 
the point of tangency; thence South 22°54152" East, a distance of 25.55 feet; thence South 
17°33'58" West, a distance of 36.53 feet; thence South 47°45'02" West, a distance of 27.29 feet; 
thence South 63°42'55" West, a distance of 34.54 feet; thence South 46°22123" West, a distance 
of 38.45 feet; thence South 62°04145" West, a distance of 26.87 feet to the point of curvature of 
a curve concave Southeasterly and having a radius of 25.00 feet; thence Southwesterly along the 
arc of said curve, a distance of 18.34 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing and 
distance of South 41°03'40" West, 17.93 feet to the point of tangency; thence South 20°02'35" 
West, a distance of 18.19 feet; thence South 50°35'22" West, a distance of 87.92 feet to the 
point of curvature of a curve concave Northerly and having a radius of 429.37 feet; thence 
Westerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 330.13 feet, said curve being subtended by a 
chord bearing and distance of South 69°27'13" West, 322.06 feet to the point of tangency; 
thence North 88°31'13" West, a distance of 119.10 feet; thence North 75°59'31" West, a 
distance of 47.23 feet; thence North 69°09'18" West, a distance of 118.71 feet to the beginning 
of a non-tangent curve concave Southerly and having a radius of 25.00 feet; thence Westerly 
along the arc of said curve, a distance of 19.80 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord 
bearing and distance of North 74°55152" West, 19.29 feet to the point of tangency; thence South 
82°22'47" West, a distance of 40.15 feet; thence North 72°54'11" West, a distance of 30.00 feet; 
thence North 72°31 '12" West, a distance of 18.42 feet; thence North 43°39'23" West, a distance 
of 23.45 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Southerly and having a radius of 25.00 
feet; thence Westerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 25.83 feet, said curve being 
subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 73°15'23" West, 24.70 feet to the point of 
tangency; thence South 77°08'36" West, a distance of 24.40 feet; thence South 78°02158" West, 
a distance of 38.04 feet; thence South 60°59'52" West, a distance of 6.82 feet; thence North 
77°15119" West, a distance of 75.98 feet; thence North 55°18'57" West, a distance of 48.47 feet; 
thence North 52°511 17" West, a distance of 18.62 feet; thence North 25°26'04" West, a distance 
of 24.38 feet; thence North 19°17'11" West, a distance of 84.11 feet; thence North 20°46'21" 
West, a distance of 92.03 feet; thence North 04°36'29" West, a distance of 2.38 feet; thence 
North 04°06'34" West, a distance of 73.63 feet; thence North 03°24'02" East, a distance of 
105.31 feet; thence North 15°07'18" East, a distance of 141.79 feet; thence North 13°56'34" 
East, a distance of 105.27 feet; thence North 07°47'33" East, a distance of 102.70 feet; thence 
North 03°50'15" West, a distance of 39. 70 feet; thence North 38°38'37" East, a distance of 24.79 
feet; thence North 44°39'11" East, a distance of 23.86 feet; thence North 74°29'59" East, a 
distance of 26.81 feet; thence North 71°44'17" East, a distance of 32.21 feet; thence North 
87°02'40" East, a distance of 21.27 feet; thence South 67°54'57" East, a distance of 31.61 feet to 
the point of curvature of a curve concave Northerly and having a radius of 50.00 feet; thence 
Easterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 61.64 feet, said curve being subtended by a 
chord bearing and distance of North 76°45'52" East, 57 .81 feet to the point of tangency; thence 

Enc;,~and•Thim) LEGAL DESCRIPTION - ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE lA) ETM. No. 
19

-
215 

_ _ &ffl1llc:r,lnc. DATE: JANUARY 19. 2021 , 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS EN I ~s~_: ):i{;,,~!;,,'."~;;,);•,~3;i SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPM T DISTRICT SCALE: N/ A 
¥1§'.§§.~ Certificate of Authorization No.:2584 

~~~nNo~taiJ!f~.J~~j~90 PLATE N 0: 5 



North 41 °26'40" East, a distance of 16.30 feet; thence North 82°15'05" East, a distance of 14.27 
feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Northwesterly and having a radius of 50.00 
feet; thence Northeasterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 29.05 feet, said curve being 
subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 65°36'23" East, 28.64 feet to the point of 
tangency; thence North 48°57'42" East, a distance of 25.84 feet; thence North 65°59'43" East, a 
distance of 28.26 feet; thence North 59°00'04" East, a distance of 28.42 feet; thence North 
63°51 '02" East, a distance of 121.28 feet; thence South 87°12'07" East, a distance of 50.99 feet 
to the point of curvature of a curve concave Northerly and having a radius of 25.00 feet; thence 
Easterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 13.96 feet, said curve being subtended by a 
chord bearing and distance of North 76°47'55" East, 13.78 feet to the point of tangency; thence 
North 60°47'57" East, a distance of 28.47 feet; thence North 79°16'50" East, a distance of 18.38 
feet; thence North 10°43'10" West, a distance of 20.69 feet to a point on the South line of those 
lands as described in Official Records Book 4666, page 1496 of said Public Records of St. Johns 
County; thence North 88°46'23" East, along the South line thereo4 a distance of 31.91 feet to 
the Southeast comer thereof; thence North 01°13'37" West, along the East line thereof, a 
distance of 1080.00 feet to the Northeast comer thereof; thence South 88°46'23" West, along the 
North line thereo4 a distance of 330.00 feet to the Northwest comer thereof; thence South 
01°13'37" East, along the West line thereof, a distance of 920.47 feet; thence North 84°12'55" 
West, departing last said West line, a distance of 32.10 feet to the point of curvature of a curve 
concave Southerly and having a radius of 50.00 feet; thence Westerly along the arc of said 
curve, a distance of 31.57 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of 
South 77°41'56" West, 31.04 feet to the point of tangency; thence South 59°36'48" West, a 
distance of 41.54 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Southeasterly and having a 
radius of 50.00 feet; thence Southwesterly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 19.11 feet, 
said curve being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 48°39'57" West, 18.99 feet 
to the point of tangency; thence South 37°43'06" West, a distance of 16.86 feet; thence North 
89°16'00" West, a distance of 25.95 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Southerly 
and having a radius of 50.00 feet; thence Westerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 
16.36 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 81 °21 '27" West, 
16.29 feet to the point of tangency; thence South 71°58'54" West, a distance of 31.29 feet; 
thence North 81 °44'44" West, a distance of 19.38 feet; thence North 80°27'42" West, a distance 
of 52.47 feet; thence North 62°23'06" West, a distance of 31.72 feet; thence North 33°58'28" 
West, a distance of 7.85 feet; thence North 29°43'10" East, a distance of 38.19 feet to the point 
of curvature of a curve concave Westerly and having a radius of 50.00 feet; thence Northerly 
along the arc of said curve, a distance of 29.52 feet, said curve being subtended by a chord 
bearing and distance of North 12°48'24" East, 29.09 feet to the point of tangency; thence North 
04°06'22" West, a distance of 106.98 feet; thence North 05"54'55" West, a distance of 131.86 
feet; thence North 03°36'23" West, a distance of 136.60 feet; thence North 05°56'34" East, a 
distance of 130.37 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Westerly and having a 
radius of 50.00 feet; thence Northerly along the arc of said curve, a distance of 15.73 feet, said 
curve being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 03°04'05" West, 15.66 feet to 
the point of tangency; thence North 12°04'45" West, a distance of 121.83 feet; thence North 
05°02'28" West, a distance of 147.80 feet; thence North 01°41'11" West, a distance of 63.95 
feet; thence North 20°24'01" East, a distance of 43.65 feet; thence North 11°38'18" East, a 

distance of 19.58 feet; thence North 21°55'30" West, a distance of 155.38 feet to a point on the 
aforementioned Southeasterly line of Whisper Creek Phase 4 Unit D and the Point of Beginning. 

The above described lands contain 89.62 acres, more or less. 

Less and except any portion of those lands as described in Official Records Book 4666, page 
1496 of the Public Records of St. Johns County. 

eng~and ·Thim) LEGAL DESCRIPTION - ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE lA) ETM. NO. 
79

-
275 

_s.m1llc:r,lnc. DATE: JANUARY 79, 2021 
- - £NGlNEERS - PLANNERS I 
::.._ ,: ~~ffsYitsA~ uLs~~~s~~~~ ARCHITECTS SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCAi E· N A 1 

~~~§ l~~t~~~t~eo/lz~~t0or?lo~~o~ No.: 2584 - . / 

~~~nN/(sd!?~J~~j~90 PLATE NO: 5A 



A portion of Section 6 and Section 38 of the Jose Papy Grant, all lying in 
Township 7 South, Range 28 East, St. Johns County, Florida, being a portion 
of those lands described and recorded in Official Records Book 3781, page 
1560, of the Public Records of said county, Florida, being more particularly 
described as follows: 

For a Point of Reference, commence at the Southwesterly corner of Whisper 
Creek Phase 5 Unit B, a plat recorded in Map Book 93, pages 1 through 8, of 
the Public Records of said county; thence North 67°55'56" East, along the 
Southerly line of said Whisper Creek Phase 5 Unit B, a distance of 118.10 
feet; thence South 82°48'53" East, continuing along said Southerly line, 
112.12 feet; thence South 56°36'29" East, departing said Southerly line, 
2615.75 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

From said Point of Beginning, thence South 48°29'01" East, 323.07 feet; 
thence South 32°12'52" West, 507.91 feet; thence South 08°25'34" West, 
130.00 feet; thence South 07°59'38" West, 50.00 feet; thence South 
08°21'35" West, 130.00 feet to a point on a curve concave Northwesterly 
having a radius of 127.34 feet; thence Southwesterly along the arc of said 
curve, through a central angle of 32°50'03", an arc leng1h of 72.97 feet to the 
point of tangency of said curve, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing 
and distance of South 35°51'53" West, 71.98 feet; thence South 52°16'54" 
West, 432.66 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Northwesterly 
having a radius of 300.00 feet; thence Southwesterly along the arc of said 
curve, through a central angle of 11 °28'49", an arc leng1h of 60.11 feet to the 
point of tangency of said curve, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing 
and distance of South 58°01'19" West, 60.01 feet; thence South 63°45'43" 
West, 136.45 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Southeasterly 
having a radius of 192.00 feet; thence Southwesterly along the arc of said 
curve, through a central angle of 16°35'24", an arc leng1h of 55.59 feet to a 
point of reverse curvature, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and 
distance of South 55°28'01" West, 55.40 feet; thence Southwesterly along the 
arc of a curve concave Northwesterly having a radius of 60.00 feet, through a 
central angle of 13°11'45", an arc length of 13.82 feet to a point on said 
curve, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 

53°46'12" West, 13.79 feet; thence South 38°45'17" West, 77.60 feet; thence 
South 44°31'10" West, 80.00 feet; thence South 40°05'02" West, 756.65 feet; 
thence North 54°03'57" West, 96.48 feet to a point on a curve concave 
Northerly having a radius of 60.00 feet; thence Westerly along the arc of said 
curve, through a central angle of 78°16'15", an arc leng1h of 81.97 feet to a 
point on said curve, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance 
of South 76°11'26" West, 75.74 feet; thence North 65°06'32" West, 16.01 
feet; thence South 24°27'36" West, 789.00 feet; thence North 45°04'07" 
West, 1323.53 feet; thence North 01°02'10" West, 273.60 feet; thence North 
00°36'33" East, 122.06 feet; thence North 11 °35'40" East, 105.83 feet; thence 
North 16°44'27" East, 92.20 feet; thence North 14°51'08" East, 87.83 feet; 
thence North 14°06'33" West, 204.81 feet; thence South 52°51'17" East, 
18.62 feet; thence South 55°18'57" East, 48.47 feet; thence South 77°15'19" 
East, 75.98 feet; thence North 60°59'52" East, 6.82 feet; thence North 
78°02'58" East, 38.04 feet; thence North 77°08'36" East, 24.40 feet to the 
point of curvature of a curve concave Southerly having a radius of 25.00 feet; 
thence Easterly along the arc of said curve, through a central angle of 
59°12'01", an arc leng1h of 25.83 feet to the point of tangency of said curve, 
said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of South 73°15'23" 
East, 24.70 feet; thence South 43°39'23" East, 23.45 feet; thence South 
72°31'12" East, 18.42 feet; thence South 72°54'11" East, 30.00 feet; thence 
North 82°22'47" East, 40.15 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave 
Southerly having a radius of 25.00 feet; thence Easterly along the arc of said 
curve, through a central angle of 45°22'42", an arc length of 19.80 feet to a 
point on said curve, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance 
of South 74°55'52" East, 19.29 feet; thence South 69°09'18" East, 118.71 
feet; thence South 75°59'31" East, 47.23 feet; thence South 88°31'13" East, 
119.10 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Northerly having a 
radius of 429.37 feet; thence Easterly along the arc of said curve, through a 
central angle of 44°03'10", an arc leng1h of 330.13 feet to a point on said 
curve, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 
69°27'13" East, 322.06 feet; thence North 50°35'22" East, 87.92 feet; thence 
North 20°02'35" East, 18.19 feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave 
Southeasterly having a radius of 25.00 feet; thence Northeasterly along the 
arc of said curve, through a central angle of 42°02'10", an arc length of 18.34 

enm9~a11"
d

1•Thim) LEGAL DESCRIPTION - ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 1B) DATE JANUARY 19. 2021 
_ -• 1 <?r, nc. 

ETM. NO. 19-215 

- ._ ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 

- - sc,-c,oes ~ """"" ,ecamos SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: N/ A :!..~a.: jci:Z;on5vii::,u~~;';~~e 3~2si 
='"~~~ Certificate of Authori,;olion No.:2584 PLATE NO· 6 

~~;n~/(sd!f~4~~ij~90 
. 



feet to the point of tangency of said curve, said arc being subtended by a 
chord bearing and distance of North 41 °03'40" East, 17.93 feet; thence North 
62°04'45" East, 26.87 feet; thence North 46°22'23" East, 38.45 feet; thence 
North 63°42'55" East, 34.54 feet; thence North 47°45'02" East, 27.29 feet; 
thence North 17°33'58" East, 36.53 feet; thence North 22°54'52" West, 25.55 
feet to the point of curvature of a curve concave Easterly having a radius of 
25.00 feet; thence Northerly along the arc of said curve, through a central 
angle of 63°04'31", an arc length of 27.52 feet to the point of tangency of 
said curve, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 
08°37'24" East, 26.15 feet; thence North 40°09'39" East, 38.61 feet to the 
point of curvature of a curve concave Southeasterly having a radius of 25.00 
feet; thence Northeasterly along the arc of said curve, through a central angle 
of 11 °28'35", an arc length of 5.01 feet to the point of tangency of said curve, 
said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 45°53'56" 
East, 5.00 feet; thence North 51°38'14" East, 37.18 feet to the point of 
curvature of a curve concave Southeasterly having a radius of 25.00 feet; 
thence Northeasterly along the arc of said curve, through a central angle of 
15°38'02", an arc length of 6.82 feet to the point of tangency of said curve, 
said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 59°27'15" 
East, 6.80 feet; thence North 67°16'16" East, 46.97 feet; thence North 
35°22'29" East, 553.04 feet to a point on a curve concave Northerly having a 
radius of 40.00 feet; thence Easterly may radius of 355.00 feet, through a 
central angle of 18°33'57", an arc length of 115.03 feet to a point of reverse 
curvature, said arc being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 
73°22'56" East, 114.53 feet; thence Northeasterly along the arc of a curve 
concave Northwesterly having a radius of 45.00 feet, through a central angle 
of 83°23'24", an arc length of 65.49 feet to a point on said curve, said arc 
being subtended by a chord bearing and distance of North 40°58'13" East, 
59.86 feet; thence North 88°47'16" East, 532.60 feet; thence North 81 °26'35" 
East, 166.70 feet; thence North 68°02'59" East, 287.92 feet to the Point of 
Beginning. 

Containing 84.00 acres, more or less. 

En9land•Thim) ETM No. 19~215 

_ _ &millc:r,lnc. LEGAL DESCRIPTION - ASSESSMENT AREA 3 (PHASE 1B) DATE JANUARY 19_ 2021 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS I 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS M NT DISTRICT ... 
- - 1m5 St '">"''''' Rooo SIX MILE CREEK CO MUNITY DEVELOPME SCALE: N/ A 
§'".:§",§§~"¥ Jacksonville, tlorido 32258 
~..:=".:==:.'=:."":: Certificate of Authorization No.:2584 

~ti"~/(9Jlf'J4i~~~~~90 PLATE N 0: 6A 



l22'Zi! DENOTES SERIES 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 
PROJECT LOOP ROAD 

0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
500 1000 2000 

ETM. NO. 19~215 England•Thim:. TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT - LOOP ROAD 
=_==_=!:,n:w~<;r:,t':!;· <sER1Es 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 PROJECT) DATE JANUARY 19. 2021 

- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT .. . ::.-~~= j!:J;
0
n5v\iie~u~~~,~~e3~25i SCALE: 1 = 1,000 

~~~~ Cer\ificote of Authorizolion No.:2584 

~~~n00~(9J!f~4~~~4~ggo PLATE NO: 7 



5' SJCUD 
EASEMENT! 

EXISTING GRADE 

3.0' 

R/W LINE 

SEED AND 
MULCH 

80' R/W 

16" SOD 
STRIP 

R/W LINE· 

SEED AND 

II MULCH I ~--18" STD. CURB-i, 
'.?.f.O' PAVEMENT _ 1, _ 36.5' 

· ' - · MUL11-PURPOSE PATH 
12 o· ~ ~2 O' I ra· CONC. OR ASPHALT 

~ ~ (LOCATION MAY VARY) 

UNDERDRAIN 
(AS REQUIRED) 

TYPICAL CROSS-SECTION 
LOOP ROAD (2-LANE) 

N.T.S. 

0--FORCEMAIN 
5' TO 31.5' 

AS APPLICABLE 

10' FPL 
EASEMENT 

EXISTING 
GRADE 

FILL AT 2:1 MAXIMUM 
SLOPE TO EXISTING 
GRADE (SEED AND 
MULCH SIDE SLOPES 
AND ALL DISTURBED 
AREAS) 

England•Thim) ~ _ ETM. No. 19-215 , 

;;;- -;;;;~,IT,W~<;~~!ilf· YPICAL CROSS-SECTION - LOOP ROAD (2-LANE DATE JANUARY 19, 2021 I 
=... .= ~Xfi'rrr\~ u~~~~s2~:~ ARCHITECTS SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE· NTS 1 

~.,;¥§"S.~"¥ Jccksonville, ~orido 32258 · 
:"".=".:S =:;"'::..";; C~rtiticate of Authorization No.: 2584 

~~~nN/(9J!f~J~i:il~so PLATE NO: 8 



Q 
~ 
0 
n:; 

,~t---L.S. 

NOTE: LABELED LIFT STATIONS 
HAVE NOT YET BEEN CONSTRUCTED 

LS. NO. 7 

En9land• Thim) 
_ _ a.mmc:r,lnc. I SANITARY SEWER LIFT ST A TIONS AND FORCEMAINS 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS =- ~ f~r;,pg~sA~ LI~~~~s~~~~ ARCHITECTS I SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
~~~""-.~ Jacksonville, ~ondo 32258 
~,=",=;;:::.-=."':: Certificate of Authorization No.:2584 

~~~n~ 0N(gJ~f4JJ~ijg9o 

0 

NO. 2 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19-215 

DATE; JANUARY 19, 2021 

SCALE; 1" ~ 2,000' 

PLATE NO; 9 



l DENOTES SERIES 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 
PROJECT FORCEMAIN 

LS. NO. 7 

c:, 
.. "1 

0 
Cl:; 

L.S. 
NO. 2 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

en9land•Thim) SANITARY SEWER FORCEMAINS (SERIES ETM. NO. 19-215 

=_==_=~Gm~•~~~it~f- 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 PRoJEcn DATE JANUARY 19. 2021 

:_ _: {~f~Y~tsA;-qu~~~s~~~~ ARCHITECTS SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: 1" = 2 000' 
~~~~ i~;t,~~~t~e~/ii:ifn~rfz~1P! Ne., 2584 , 

~~~nN/(gJ~?~4~~~jlso PLATE NO, 9A 



En9land• Thim) 
_&mill<?r,lnc. 

- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS =..s!a= ~1~J1onsvii1/u?i~~;~~e:,~2%1 
S°S~~ Certiflcate of Authorization No.:2584 

~~~nN0~(9d~f4d4~~i4~~go 

;,;,,,-.--,-:'\:' = --

~-c::::,_""~-::-

DENOTES UNCONSTRUCTED 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 
FACILTY 

DENOTES OUTFALL 
0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 

ETM. NO. 19-215 

4000 

SlORMWA TER MANAGEMENT PLAN OAff JANUARY 79, 2021 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: 1" ~ 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 10 



DENOTES SERIES 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 
PROJECT STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITY 

DENOTES SERIES 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 
PROJECT OUTFALL 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

England-Thim) STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN 
=_==_=!f!,m~•~~fa~~f- csERIEs 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 PROJECT) DATE JANUARY 19. 2021 

ETM. NO. 19-215 

- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS c EEK COM y o MENT DISTRICT · =..a!;;£= j~J~;
0
nsv\ii/uFl~~;~6e

3
~2Si SIX MILE R MUNITY DE EL P SCALE: 1" = 2,000 

§"~~~ ~h~~~c~i.,e. no1)tir1~i~9o No.: 2584 
Fa~ No, (904) 646-9485 PLATE NO, 1 DA 



En9land • Thim) 
_a.mmczr,lnc. 

- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 
- - SURVEYORS ~ LANDSCAPE ARCHl1ECTS ~~§.= }~~[;'on5v\i1/u?i~~;~~e 3~2%i 
~.;;;.:::=;=:.:."'i': Cect;ficote of Authorization No. 2584 

~~in~/},Jif4J4i~i4~~go 

l 
E 
{j 
"<1/ 

'' 0.. 

= DENOTES UNCONSTRUCTED 
NEIGHBORHOOD ROADWAYS 

0 

NEIGHBORHOOD ROADW A VS 
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM NO. 19~215 

DATE, JANUARY 19, 2021 

SCALE, 1" - 2,000' 

PLATE NO: 11 



= DENOTES SERIES 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 PROJECT 
NEIGHBORHOOD ROADWAYS 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
0 1000 2000 4000 

England•Thim) NEIGHBORHOOD ROADWA VS (SERIES ETM No. 19-21s 

=_===_=~,n:w~~fat~f- 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 PROJEcr> DATE JANUARY 19. 2021 

=. .= ~~i7v:PitsA~qu~~~~s~~tJ ARCHITECTS SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: 1" = 2 000' 
§~~~ i~~~;f~~1~eJ~:~t°o.fz~1fo~ No.:2584 ' 

f~~n~/(gd~f4J4t~4~~90 PLATE NO: 11A 



• DENOTES APPROXIMATE STREET LIGHT LOCATION FOR 
STREET LIGHTS NOT YET INSTALLED 0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19-215 
En9land•Thim) IET LIGHTING 

_a.fflillC!r,lnc. STRIE □ ATE JANUARY 19, 2021 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 

:,. ~ f~fjfYit\~ u~1~~s~~~J ARCHITECTS SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: 1" - 2,000' 
/!""..<!:""~~~~~""le Jacksonville, ~orido 32258 
~..;;'"~~~ Certificate of Authorization No.,2584 PLATE NO· 12 

~~ti/(9Jl?4J4~~i4f~90 
I . 



• DENOTES APPROXIMATE SERIES 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 
PROJECT STREET LIGHT LOCATION 0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 

England•Thim) STREET LIGHTING (SERIES 2021 AA3 ETM. No. 19-21s 

4-000 

_ _ ~
0
r;i:!,~•~~r,i~~f• PHASE 1 PROJECT) DATE JANUARY 19. 2021 , 

- - SURVEYORS - LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS COM o N DIST ICT -, ~.!!'~= j~~J;oJJi1/"~~~i~~e3~i%f SIX MILE CREEK MUNITY DEVEL PME l R SCALE: 1" = 2,000' 
~.:S!~~ Certificate of Authorizot;on No.: 2584 

~~~nN0~(9J~f4J4ttt~l 90 PLATE N 0: 12A 



DENOTES UNCONSTRUCTED 
WATER MAIN 

WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTIEM 

~ 
"-"'"'~' ti:: ··-"·· I 

0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19-215 

DA ff JANUARY 19, 2021 

England· Thim) 
a.millar,lnc. 

- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS I I I 
::., .,: r~r;igy~~SAC° ulj~~s~~~~ ARCHITECT:, SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: 1" = 2,000' 
~~~~ i~~t;~~~1~e~f~Z~\t0orfz~1fo~ No.:2584 

~~~n~/(gJ~f4J4~~J;~ggo PLATE NO, 13 



DENOTES SERIES 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 
PROJECT WATER MAIN 

i 

0 

GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 200D 4000 

ETM. NO. 19-215 England•Thim) WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM (SERIES 
~===~1tmmar,lnc. 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 PROJECT DATE JANUARY 19, 2021 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS =- ..= f¥i71'(i~\~ ULS~~i;,S~~~~ ARCHITECT$ SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: 1" = 2,000' 
&"..€.Ela~~ Jacksonville, (lo,ido 32258 
:;"'.=";;;;;;';;;;;.~ Certificate of Authorization No.:2584 

f~~ni/{gJ]f~4~~~4i~9o PLATE NO: 13A 



DENOTES UNCONSTRUCTED 
SANITARY SEWER 

England· Thim) 
a.mmc:r,lnc. 

- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 

SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM 

~ 
~ 
13 
tJ 

,~ 

0 

I 
GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19-215 

DATE: JANUARY 19, 2021 

:_ .,: f~flPrtsA~ u~1~~s~~~~ ARCHITECTS SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: 1" = 2,000' 
~~~'l:a"i..'\l!,..""< Jocksonv;lle, ~orido 32258 
¥.§'§"§:.~ Certificate of Authorization No. 2584 

~~~n~o~(gJ~f4J4i~~j~go PLATE NO, 14 



DENOTES SERIES 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 
PROJECT SANITARY SEWER 

0 

I 
GRAPHIC SCALE 
1000 2000 4000 

ETM. NO. 19-215 England•Thim) SANITARY SEWER COLLECTION SYSTEM 
~===~&millczr,lnc. (SERIES 2021 AA3 PHASE 1 PROJECT) □ATEc JANUARY 79 , 2021 
- - ENGINEERS - PLANNERS 

:,. ,.-::: 1if!'rnf\; c',1~~s;::~ "'""'m SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT SCALE: 7" ~ 2,000' 
~~~!!!!,.'ii!'!,.-...., Jocksonville, ~orido 32258 
::"'..:=".:==:.-=."';: Certificate ot Authorizot,on No.:2584 

~~inN/(sd!?4J4~!~4~l90 PLATE N 0: 14A 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

2. 



                            
 

Six Mile Creek 
Community Development District 

 
 
 
 

 
Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report 

for the Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue 
Bonds Assessment Area 3 (Phase 1) 

  
 

                                    February 10, 2021 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Prepared by 
 

Governmental Management Services, LLC 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



   2 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 

 
1.0 Introduction 

1.1 Executive Summary ......................................................................  3 
1.2 Special Benefits and General Benefits ........................................ 5          
1.3 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology .................. 5
           

 
2.0 The Series 2021 Capital Improvement Bonds AA3 Phase 1 

2.1 Development Plan Overview ....................................................... 6  
2.3      Bond Description              …………………………………………… 6 
 
 

3.0 Assessment Allocation 
3.1 Structure ......................................................................................... 6  
3.2 Assessment Allocation .................................................................. 7          
 
 

4.0 True Up Mechanism     ............................................................................. 8         
  

5.0 Final Assessment Rolls     ......................................................................... 8         
        .......................................................................................................... 
            .................................................................................................  
6.0 Appendix 
 
            Table 1   Development Program       ……………………………………10 
            Table 2   Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds  AA3        
                           Phase 1……………………………………………………….…….11 
            Table 3   Par Debt and Debt Service Assessments Series 2021 

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds  AA 3 Phase 1 …...12 
            Table 4   Par Debt and Debt Service Assessments Series 2021 

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds AA3 Phase 1 with  
                           Annexed Lands     …………………………… …………..……..13 
            Table 5   Assessment Roll Series 2021 Capital Improvement  

Revenue Bonds  AA 3 Phase 1  …………….…………………14      
 
  
Attachment Assessment Area 3 Phase 1 - Legal description  
 
 1.0 Introduction 
        



   3 

1.1 Executive Summary 
 
1.1.1 The District 

 
Six Mile Creek Community Development District (the “District”), 
a local unit of special-purpose government, was established 
by rule number 42GGG-1 adopted by the Florida Land and 
Water Adjudicatory Commission on March 7, 2007. The District 
encompasses approximately 1,282.15 acres of land located 
within the unincorporated area of St. Johns County, Florida, 
and was established for the purpose of, among other things, 
financing and managing the acquisition, construction, 
maintenance and operation of major infrastructure necessary 
for development to occur within the District. 
 
The TrailMark development located within the District is a 
master planned, amenitized, residential community. The 
planned development will include approximately 2,278 
residential units composed of single-family, patio and 
townhomes along with multi-family housing. 
 
1.1.2 Assessment Areas 
 
The District has created three (3) separate Assessment Areas to 
carry out its financing program. Additional Areas may be 
created over time.   
 
Assessment Area 1, consists of approximately 153 acres and 
has been developed into 152 residential lots, all of which have 
been platted.  
 
Assessment Area 2 consists of approximately 543 acres and is 
planned for 1,260 residential lots.  Assessment Area 2 is being 
developed in 3 Phases:  305 lots in Phase 1, 401 lots in Phase 2 
and 554 lots in Phase 3.  
 
 
Assessment Area 3 (also referred to as the 2007 Assessment 
Area) consists of approximately 550 acres and Phase 1 is 
planned for 339 single family units on approximately 173.62 
acres. Other lands within Assessment Areas 3 will be developed 
in the future.   
 



   4 

The District is in the process of annexing approximately 6.80 
acres into the District that is planned for 24 single family units. 
These annexed lands would be included in Assessment Area 3 
and as such this report would be supplemented when such 
annexation is completed to include such lands. 
 
 
1.1.3 The 2007, 2016, 2017, 2020 and 2021 Bonds 
 

                        The District’s Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) adopted the 
Improvement Plan for the Purpose of Special Assessment Bonds 
dated December 1, 2006 (the “CIP”), as supplemented by the 
District’s Supplemental Engineers Report for Series 2007 Capital 
Improvements dated May 25, 2007, the Supplemental 
Engineers Report for 2014 Capital Improvements dated 
November 12, 2014, the Supplemental Engineers Report for the 
Series 2016 Capital Improvements (“2016 Engineers Report”)  
dated March 16, 2016 and the supplemental Engineers Report 
for the Series 2017 Capital Improvements dated June 5, 2017 
(collectively, the Engineer’s Report”), which describe the 
public infrastructure improvements financed in part by the 
District’s issuance of Bonds secured by special assessments 
levied on the lands within the District (the “CIP”). 

 
The District has previously issued its Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2007 (the “2007 Bonds”), its Capital 
Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A (the “2016A 
Bonds”), its Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2017A 
(Assessment Area 2, Phase 2) (the “2017A Bonds”) and its 
Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B 
(Assessment area 2, Phase 2)(the “2017B Bonds”), its Capital 
Improvement and Refunding Bonds Series 2020 (Assessment 
Area 2, Phase 3A), to finance portions of the CIP. For the Phase 
1 Bonds an additional Supplemental Engineer’s Report dated 
January 19, 2021 for the Series 2021 Capital Improvements 
(“2021 Engineer’s Report”) describes the project, which will be 
partially funded by the $10,150,000 Capital Improvement 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2021 (the “Phase 1 Bonds”) which are 
secured by assessments levied on District Lands within 
Assessment Area 3 Phase 1 (the “Phase 1 2021 Assessments”).  

 
                      The Board has previously adopted Resolutions 2007-12, 2007-13 

and 2007-18 (collectively the “Master Assessment Resolutions”) 
and approved its Special Assessment Master Methodology 



   5 

Report dated March 30, 2007 (the “Master Assessment 
Report”).  Together, the Master Assessment Resolutions and the 
Master Assessment Report levied a master assessment lien 
across all developable property within the District based on the 
benefit derived from the CIP (the “Master Assessment Lien”).  

 
                      In connection with the issuance of the 2007 Bonds, the Board 

adopted Resolution 2007-24 (the “2007 Assessment 
Resolution”) and approved its Supplemental Special 
Assessment Methodology Report Final Numbers dated June 
28, 2007 (the “2007 Assessment Report”).  The Series 2007 
Assessment Resolution and the Series 2007 Supplemental 
Assessment Report provided for the manner in which a portion 
of the Master Assessment Lien would be allocated to secure 
the 2007 Bond. 
 
A detailed estimated Sources and Uses of funds for the Phase 
1 Bonds is contained in Table 2.  

 
 

1.2 Special Benefits and General Benefits 
 

Improvements undertaken by the District as described in the 
CIP create special and peculiar benefits, different in kind and 
degree than general benefits, for properties within its borders 
as well as general benefits to the public at large.  

 
As contained in the Master Assessment Report the benefit from 
the CIP was based upon $131,449,000 of construction costs for 
the system of improvements. The 2014 Engineer’s Report 
estimates construction costs of $156,326,750 for the CIP, in part 
because it describes additional improvements. Because the 
CIP is a system of improvements, the additional improvements 
increase the overall benefit to all developable lands within the 
District. Notwithstanding the additional improvements 
described in the 2014 Engineer’s Report, the benefit findings 
and methodology contained in the Master Methodology 
report still apply and are incorporated herein by reference. 

 
1.3 Requirements of a Valid Assessment Methodology 

 
Special assessments under Florida law, to be valid, must meet 
two requirements. The first requirement is that the properties 
assessed must receive a special benefit from the 



   6 

improvements paid for by the assessments. The second 
requirement is that the assessments must be fairly and 
reasonably allocated to the properties being assessed. 
 
Florida law provides for a wide application of special 
assessments that meet these two characteristics of special 
assessments.  
 

 
2.0 The Series 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Assessment 

Area 3 Phase 1 
 
                      

2.1 Development Plan - Overview 
 

The Developer of the property within the District has defined 
the land uses for the property. The land uses are described in 
in Table 1 (Appendix) (“Development Plan”) associated with 
the Phase 1 Bonds. The Development Plan may change 
dependent upon future market conditions. The lands securing 
the Phase 1 Bonds are referred to as Phase 1A planned for 171 
lots and Phase 1B planned for 168 lots. If the planned 
annexation of 6.80 acres and 24 single family units takes place, 
then the District will spread the lien of the special Assessments 
securing the Phase 1 Bonds upon such lands in accordance 
with this Report and the Master Report. 
 

2.2 Bond Description 
 

The Phase 1 Bonds are to be issued with a thirty-year term and 
an anticipated average coupon rate of 3.78%. Interest is 
capitalized for 8 months and the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
(“DSRF”) is equal to the annual Maximum Annual Debt Service 
(“MADS”) of $566,450 
 
The Phase 1 Bonds are to be issued at a par amount of 
$10,150,000. See estimated bond terms on Table 2. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



   7 

 
3.0 Assessment Allocation 
 

3.1      Structure 
 

The debt required to finance the CIP is allocated to the 
benefited lands within the District consistent with the Master 
Assessment Report. As noted above, the 2014 Engineer’s 
Report estimates construction costs of $156,326,750 for the CIP 
increasing the overall benefit to all developable lands within 
the District. The Phase 1 Project costs are estimated at 
$17,849,532.50. The Phase 1 Bonds will provide for construction 
funds in the approximate amount of $9,066,123 for the Phase 1 
Project.  
 

  
3.2 Assessment Allocation 

 
Based upon the CIP, the District’s assessment consultant and 
underwriter determined the amount of Phase 1 Bonds required 
to fund the infrastructure costs. 
 
The CIP consists of roadway improvements, potable water, 
wastewater, landscaping, monumentation, signage and 
community recreation improvements that benefit all lands 
within the District. The CIP consists of a system of improvements 
that benefits all developable property equally. The 2007 Bonds 
were issued to finance a portion of the acquisition and 
construction of the 2007 Improvement Plan, which comprises a 
portion of the CIP.  The Phase 1 Bonds are being issued to fund 
a portion of the Phase 1 2021 Project, which makes up an 
additional portion of the CIP. As with the Phase 1 Bonds, it is 
anticipated that future bond issues will occur to finance future 
projects associated with the remaining CIP.   

 
 
Assessments securing the Phase 1 Bonds are levied on the 
173.62 gross undeveloped acres in Phase 1.  As land is 
developed and platted, the Phase 1 2021 assessments will be 
allocated on a first platted basis to developed and platted lots 
with an identifiable folio number. The Phase 1 Bonds are 
expected to be allocated to and fully absorbed by the 339 lots 
in Phase 1 as contained on Table 3.  
 



   8 

The District has petitioned to annex of 6.80 acres that are 
planned for 24 single family units into the District. If the 
annexation takes place, then this report will be supplemented 
to include such lands and the planned 24 single family units. If 
the annexation does not occur, then it is anticipated that the 
Developer will prepay a portion of the debt on each of the 339 
lots. Alternatively, the developer may not make such 
prepayments and the assessment amounts per lot remain 
unchanged. Such prepayment amounts have not been 
established at this time. 
 
 

 
4.0 True – Up Mechanism  

 
In order to assure that the District’s debt will not build up on 
unsold acres, and to assure that the requirements that the non-
ad valorem assessments will be constitutionally lienable on the 
property will continue to be met, the District shall determine the 
following. 
 
To assure that there will always be sufficient development 
potential in the undeveloped property to assure payment of 
debt service after a plat or site plan approval, the following 
test will be applied. The test is that the par debt per acre 
remaining on the undeveloped property within Assessment 
Area 3 Phase 1 is never allowed to increase above its 
maximum per acre level.  
 
The Phase 1 Bonds are to be issued at par for $10,150,000. 
Phase1, planned for 339 units as contained on Table 1, is 173.62 
acres. The maximum debt per acre is $58,461.01 for the Phase 
1 Bonds. Therefore, at the time of platting, if only a portion of 
the parcel is platted, then the remaining undeveloped 
property within the parcel cannot exceed a per acre debt of 
$58,461.01. If the remaining undeveloped property has debt in 
excess of $58,461.01 per acre, a true-up payment will be due 
upon platting or site plan approval. If the entire parcel is 
platted and the assignment of debt to the platted lots is not 
sufficient to absorb the total debt a true-up payment will be 
due upon platting or site plan approval.  
 

 
 



   9 

 
5.0 Final Assessment Rolls 

 
Final assessment rolls reflecting the allocation of special 
assessments securing repayment of the Phase 1 Bonds are 
attached hereto as the lands to be developed into the 339 lots 
in Phase 1. As previously noted, If the planned annexation of 
6.80 acres and 24 single family units takes place, then the 
District will spread the lien of the special Assessments securing 
the Phase 1 Bonds to such lands in accordance with this Report 
and the Master Report. Table 4 provides for the Par Debt and 
Debt Service Assessments Phase 1 Bonds which includes the 
annexed lands and additional 24 development units. 
 



Table 1
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Development Program Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2021
(Assessment Area 3 , Phase 1)

Land Use 2021 Units

Single Family 
Residential:

Phase 1
43' lot 159

53' lot 135

63' lot 45

Current Units 339

43' Annex 24

Total Units With Annexed Lots 363

Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC



 Table 2
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds Series 2021
(Assessment Area 3, Phase 1) - Sources and Uses of Funds

Sources: 2021

Bond Proceeds - Par Amount $10,150,000
Premium $117,273

Total Sources of Funds $10,267,273

Uses:

Construction Funds $9,066,123
Debt Service Reserve Fund MADS (1) $566,450
Interest Reserve $248,063
Cost of Issuance $183,636
Underwriter's Discount $203,000

Total Uses of Funds $10,267,273

Average Coupon Interest Rate 3.78%

Term 30 years

CAPI period 8 months

(1) Net of maximum early payment discount and collection costs.

Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC



Table 3
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Par Debt and Debt Service Allocations - Series AA3 Phase 1
2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds

Land Use 2021 Bond 2021 Bond 2021 Bond
 Par Total  Net per Unit Total  Gross per Unit

Single Family Debt per Unit Par Debt Annual  Annual Net Annual
Residential: No. of Units  2021 Bond  2021 Bond Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service (1)

43' lot 159 $24,788 $3,941,236 $1,383 $219,952 $1,472

53' lot 135 $32,715 $4,416,544 $1,826 $246,478 $1,942

63' lot 45 $39,827 $1,792,221 $2,223 $100,020 $2,364

Total 339 $10,150,000 $566,450

(1) Include 4% provision for early payment discount and 2% collection costs for St Johns County.

Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC



Table 4
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Par Debt and Debt Service Allocations - Series AA3 Phase 1
2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds

Including Annexed Lands

Land Use 2021 Bond 2021 Bond 2021 Bond
 Par Total  Net per Unit Total  Gross per Unit

Single Family Debt per Unit Par Debt Annual  Annual Net Annual
Residential: No. of Units  2021 Bond  2021 Bond Debt Service Debt Service Debt Service (1)

43' lot 183 $23,415 $4,284,991 $1,307 $239,136 $1,390

53' lot 135 $30,904 $4,172,017 $1,725 $232,831 $1,835

63' lot 45 $37,622 $1,692,992 $2,100 $94,482 $2,234

Total 363 $10,150,000 $566,450

(1) Include 4% provision for early payment discount and 2% collection costs for St Johns County.

Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC



Table 5
Six Mile Creek Community Development District

Assessment Roll Series AA3 Phase 1 2021 Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds

                         Annual Assessments

2021 2021 2021 2021
Asmnt Gross Asmnt Net Asmnt Total Net Bond Debt Total 2021

Account # Owner Lot Type Units Per Unit (2) Per Unit Assessments Per Unit Bond Debt

029010-0000 (1) 43' 159 $1,472 $1,383 $219,952 $24,788 $3,941,236

029010-0000 (1) 53' 135 $1,942 $1,826 $246,478 $32,715 $4,416,544

029010-0000 (1) 63' 45 $2,364 $2,223 $100,020 $39,827 $1,792,221

Phase 1 339 $566,450 $10,150,000

(1) Owner is Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC

(2) Gross assessment per unit includes 4% for early payment discount and 2% for St Johns County collection costs.

Prepared By: Governmental Management Services, LLC



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



EVALUATION CRITERIA
SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ST. JOHNS COUNTY, FLORIDA

PERSONAL (10 POINTS)

E.g., geographic location of firm’s headquarters or permanent office in relation to the project; capabilities and
experience of key personnel, including the project manager and field supervisor; present ability to appropriately
staff and manage this project; evaluation of existing work load; proposed staffing levels, etc.

PROPOSER’S EXPERIENCE (20 POINTS)

E.g., past record and experience of the respondent in similar community infrastructure projects; volume of work
previously performed by the firm; past performance for this District and other community development districts in
other contracts; character, integrity, reputation of respondent, etc.

UNDERSTANDING SCOPE OF WORK (10 POINTS)

Extent to which the proposal demonstrates an understanding of the District’s needs for the services requested.

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY (10 POINTS)

Extent to which the proposal demonstrates the adequacy of Proposer’s financial resources and stability as a
business entity, necessary to complete the services required.

PRICE (25 POINTS)

Points available for price will be allocated as follows:

15 Points will be awarded to the Proposer submitting the lowest cost proposal (i.e., the summation of the unit
price extensions using quantity estimates provided, the allowances shown, plus the proposal contractor’s fee) for
completing the work.  All other Proposers will receive a percentage of this amount based upon the difference
between the Proposer’s bid and the low proposer.

10 Points are allocated for the reasonableness of unit prices and balance of proposer.

SCHEDULE (25 POINTS)

Points available for schedule will be allocated as follows:

15 Points will be awarded to the Proposer submitting the proposal with the most expedited construction schedules
(i.e. the fewest number of days) for completing the work.  All other Proposals will receive a percentage of this
amount based upon the difference between the Proposer’s timeline and the most expedited construction schedules.

10 Points will be allocated based on the Proposer’s ability to credibly complete the project within the Proposer’s
schedule without a premium cost for accelerated work and demonstrate on-time performance. These points will
also take into account the demonstration of Proposer’s understanding (through presentation in the proposal of a
milestone schedule) of how to meet the required substantial and final completion dates and the delivery approach
outlined in the Project Manual.

TOTAL POINTS (100 POINTS)



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



.-Al.A Document A133. - 2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

for the following PROJECT: 
(Name and address or location) 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District Amenity Center and Hardscape and 
Landscape Features 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
c/o Governmental Management Services, LLC 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Carlton Construction, Inc., a Florida corporation 
License No. CGC 1508883 
Attention: Clinton Thomas, Vice President 
4615 US Highway 17, Suite 1 
Fleming Island, Florida 32003 
Telephone: (904) 284-8321 
Email: Clint@carltonconstruction.net 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreement, the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agreement to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price. As agreed by the Owner 
and Construction Manager, the Guaranteed Maximum Price is an amount that the Contract 
Sum shall not exceed. The Contract Sum consists of the Construction Manager's Fee plus 
the Cost of the Work, as that tennis defmed in Article 6 of this Agreement. 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed one 
million eight hundred seventeen thousand five hundred twenty-five dollars and sixty-one 
cents ($ 1,817,525.61 ), subject to additions and deductions by Change Order as provided 
in the Contract Documents. 

§ A.1.1.2 ltamlzed Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingencies, altemates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
(Provide below or reference an attachment.) 

See Exhibit 1 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alternates, if any, 
which are described in the Contract Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner: 
(State the numbers or other identification of accepted alternates. /fthe Contract 
Documents permit the Owner to accept other alternates subsequent to the exee1,tion of this 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Additions and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to the 
standard form text is available from 
the author and should be reviewed. A 
vertical line in the left margin of this 
document Indicates where the author 
has added necessary information 
and where the author has added to or 
deleted from the original AIA text. 

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney Is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification. 

AIA Document A201 ™-2007, 
General Conditions of the Contract 
for Construction, Is adopted in this 
document by reference. Do not use 
with other general conditions unless 
this document is modified. 

AIA Document A133"' - 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright Cl 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. The "American Institute of 
Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission This document was produced 1 
by AIA software al 09:09:14 ET on 01/21/2021 under Order No.9148614954 which expires on 09/11/2021, is not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and 
may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents• Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyright@ala.org. 
User Notes: (1313557869) 



Amendment, attach a schedule of such other alternates shawing the amount for each and the date when the amount 
expires.) 

Not Applicable. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, if any: 
(ldent(fy allowance and state exclusions, if any, from the allowance price.) 

Item Price ($0.00) 

§ A.1.1.5 Assumptions, if any, on which the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based: 

See Exhibit 1 

§ A.1.1.6 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplementary and other Conditions of the 
Contract: 

Document Tltle Date 

§ A.1.1.7 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
(Either list the Specifications here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 
See Exhibit 1 

Section Date 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawings here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 
See Exhibit 2 

Number Title Date 

Pages 

Pages 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following other documents and information: 
(List any other documents or information here, or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.) 

See Exhibit I and Exhibit 2 

ARTICLE A.2 
§ A.2.1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion established by this Amendment: 

OWNER (Signature) 

Asf6hMmN 
(Printed name and title) 

Clint Thomas Vice President 
(Printed name and title) 

AIA Document A 133 m - 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright C 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The American Institute of Architects. AH right& reserved. The "American Institute of 
Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission. This document was produced 2 
by AIA software at 09:09:14 ET on 01/21/2021 under Order No.9148814954 which expires on 09/11/2021, is not for resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and 
may only be used In accordance with the AIA Contract Documents4' Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail copyrlght@ala.org. 
User Notes: (1313557869) 



Additions and Deletions Report for 
A/A® Document A 133™ - 2009 Exhibit A 

This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has added 
to the standard form AIA document in order to complete It, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from the original 
AIA text. Added text Is shown underlined. Deleted text Is Indicated with a horizontal line through the original AIA text. 

Note: This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any part 
of the associated AJA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated simultaneously by 
AIA software at 09:09:14 ET on 01/21/2021. 

PAGE1 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District Amenity Center and Hardscape and Landscape Features 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
ofo Governmental Management Services, LLC 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

(Name, legal status and address) 

Carlton Construction, Inc .• a Florida corporation 
License No. CGC1508883 
Attention: Clinton Thomas. Vfoe President 
4615 US Highway 17, Suite I 
Fleming Island, Florida 32003 
Telephone: {904) 284-832 l 
Email: Clint@carltonconstruction.net 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed one million eight hundred 
seventeen thousand five hundred twenty-five dollars and sixtv-one cents ($ 1,817,525.6 I ). subject to additions and 
deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract Documents. 

See Exhibit l 
PAGE2 

Not Applicable. 

See Exhibit l 

See Exhibit 1 

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A133N - 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright~ 1991, 2003 and 2009 by Tha American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. The "American Institute of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are registered trademarks and may not be used without 1 
permission This document was produced by AIA software at 09:09:14 ET on 01/21/2021 under Order No.9148814954 which expires on 09/11/2021, Is not for 
resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AIA Contract Documents• Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, 
a-mall copyright@ala.org. 
User Notaa: (1313557869) 



See Exhibit 2 

See Exhibit l and Exhibit 2 

May 14,2021 

Addition, and Deletion, Report for AIA Document A133• - 2009 Exhibit A. Copyright C 1991, 2003 11nd 2009 by The American lnatitute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. The "American Institute of Architects,' 'AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents' are registered trademarks and may not be used without 2 
permission. This document was produced by AIA sottware at 09:09:14 ET on 01/21/2021 under Order No.9148814954 which expires on 09/11/2021, Is not for 
resale, Is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used In accordance with the AIA Contract Documentae Terms or Service. To report copyright violations, 
e-mail copyrtght@ala.org. 
User Notea: (1313557869) 



Certification of Document's Authenticity 
AIA® Document D401™ -2003 

I, , hereby certify, to the best ofmy knowledge, information and belief, that I created the attached final document 
simultaneously with its associated Additions and Deletions Report and this certification at 09:09: 14 ET on 0 1/21/2021 
under Order No. 9148614954 from AIA Contract Documents software and that in preparing the attached final 
document I made no changes to the original text of AIA ® Document A 133™- 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximum 
Price Amendment, as published by the AIA in its software, other than those additions and deletions shown in the 
associated Additions and Deletions Report. 

(Signed) 

(Title) 

(Dated) 

AIA Document D401 ™ - 2003. Copyright C 1992 and 2003 by The American Institute of Arehitects. All rights reserved. The "'American Institute of Architects." 
"AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents" are registered trademarks and may not be used without permission This document was produced by AIA 1 
software at 09:09:14 ET on 01/21/2021 under Order No.9148614954 which expires on 09/11/2021, Is not for resale, I& licensed for one-time use only, and may only 
be used In accordance with the AIA Contract Documents• Terms of Service. To report copyright vlolatlons, e-mail copyrlght@ala.org. 
User Notes: (1313557869) 



Project: Trailmark Entry & Parks CARLTON 
Trailmark Phase 1: FINAL Revised GMP Budget 1-13-2021 

( I I ! 1 

Bid Item 111 Project Management 
1000 General Requirements 

Unit Qty 

1000 Project Management LS 4.00 
INCLUDES - ParMime Superintendent, Project Manager & Project Assistant from home office. 

1000 General Requirements Subtotal: 

Bid Item# 1 Project Management Subtotal: 
Bid Item# 2 General Requirements 

1000 General Requirements 
702 Job Trailer 
780 Small Tools 

1003 Surveying 
Allowance for Main Entry and Pavilion and all hardscape 

1009 Blueprints-Copies for subs 
1009 Photos 
1010 Temp Locks 
1019 Building Permit Fees (Allowance) 
1019 Development Fees 

By Owner 
1019 NOC Filing 
1030 Builders Risk Insurance 
1044 Mailing/Shipping 
1050 Safety 
1055 Ice/Water 
1201 Portable Toilets 
1221 Temp Power 
1241 Temp Water via Hydrant Meter 

Hydrant meter with St. Johns County. 
1241 Permanent Water 

Meters, Accounts, Deposits, Impact, and Connection fees by Owner. 

MO 
LS 
LS 

EA 
LS 
LS 
LS 
LS 

LS 
LS 

MO 
LS 

WK 
MO 
MO 
MO 

LS 

1241 Permanent Power LS 

Meters, Accounts, Deposits, Impact, and Connections fees by Owner. 
1241 WaterTrailer LS 

Carlton water trailer on site for duration of project 
1250 Temporary Barricades LS 

Roadway barricades, entryway perimeter, safety barricades at excavations, etc. 
1300 Submittals LS 
1305 Field Office Supplies MO 
1316 Procore LS 

Online management software and project documentation for client. 
1550 Equipment Rental LS 

Crane and/or Lull for Timbers and Steel at Pavilion and Entry Sign 

Page 1 

4.00 
1.00 
1.00 

16.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 
1.00 

1.00 
1.00 
4.00 
4.00 

18.00 
4.00 
1.00 
4.00 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 
4.00 
1.00 

1.00 

Amount 

$70,000.00 

$70,000.00 

$70,000.00 

$2,200.00 
$350.00 

$18,188.00 

$640.00 
$500.00 
$150.00 

$4,500.00 
$1.00 

$100.00 
$6,311.00 

$48.00 
$1,000.00 

$720.00 
$1,320.00 
$1,000.00 
$3,200.00 

$1.00 

$1.00 

$800.00 

$2,000.00 

$500.00 
$400.00 

$2,100.00 

$3,000.00 



CARLTON Project: Trailmark Entry & Parks 

; f 
Trailmark Phase 1: FINAL Revised GMP Budget 1-13-2021 

l . I I f I 

1580 Project Signs LS 1.00 

One large Carlton sign at main entry and one smaller sign on job trailer at Beer Garden area. 
1710 Intermediate Cleanup WK 20.00 
1720 Dumpsters EA 12.00 

20 yard container at entry and beer garden for duration of project. 
1730 Closeout documents/As-bullts 
1800 Punch Out 
1875 Final Clean 

LS 
LS 
LS 

Wash down of all features and wipe clean as well as trash out of all common areas. 

1000 General Requirements Subtotal: 

Bid Item # 2 General Requirements Subtotal: 

1.00 
1.00 
1.00 

$750.00 

$2,400.00 
$6,000.00 

$400.00 
$1,000.00 
$3,000.00 

$62,580.00 

$62,580.00 
Bid Item # 3 Main Entry; H1 .2, IR1 .1, L 1.1 A 1.0E through SP1 

2000 Site Work 
2100 Sleeves for Islands LS 1.00 $1.00 

By civil contractor. 
2110 Site Grading LS 1.00 $2,000.00 

*Reduced as requested by client. Vallencourt to provide initial grades per clvil plans. Carlton includes safety 
grading at entry columns, at misc. parks, and common areas as needed for scopes of work for duration of project 

2830 Wood Fencing at Main Entry LS 1.00 $6,255.00 
Priced per elevations on hardscape plans. Stain to be SW Hawthrone 

2835 Entry Gate System, Barrier Arms, & Controls LS 1.00 $30,250.00 

Envera Gate System {turnkey) 
2835 Entry Gate Frame & Install LS 1.00 $16,550.00 

42" H x 24" wide aluminum with faux wood board attached for rustic appearance, 6x6 gate posts (black), 2x6 

framing (black), Pair of Entry & Exit Gate Leaf included. 
4511 Roadway Pavers and Base LS 1.00 $30,250.00 

2,400sf of Tremron Tuscany 4x4x4 pavers (oak run) on 1" setting sand over 8" of compacted crushcrete base with 
polymeric sand finish at joints 

2000 Site Work Subtotal: $85,306.00 

3000 Concrete 
3001 Concrete Ribbon Curbs LS 1.00 $4,290.00 

Per civil plan layout, will coordinate with Gate System Provider for underground sensors and wiring prior to install 
3001 Concrete Foundatlons@Gates LS 1.00 $12,640.00 

3,000 psi mix 
3001 Concrete Foundations@ Fence Columns LS 1.00 $12,390.00 

3,000 psi mix 

3000 Concrete Subtotal: $29,320.00 

Page 2 



Project: Trailmark Entry & Parks CARLTON 
Trailmark Phase 1: FINAL Revised GMP Budget 1-13-2021 

! ' I' 
, I I 

4000 Masonry 
3001 Concrete Foundations @ Monument Sign 

3,000 psi mix 
4001 Masonry@Gates 

8" CMU with fill cell 
4001 Masonry @ Fence Columns 

8" CMU with fill cell 
4001 Masonry @ Monument Sign and Planters 

8" CMU with knockouts evenly spaced around base for drainage. 
441 O Rough Stone Veneer@ Call Box 

Stone per specs. 
4410 Rough Stone Veneer@ Main Gate & Fence Columns 

Stone per specs 
4410 Rough Stone Veneer@ Monument Sign 

Stone per specs. 
4420 Precast @ Gates & Fence Columns 

Precast per specs. 
4430 Precast at Monument Sign 

Precast per spec. 

4000 Masonry Subtotal: 

6000 Wood & Plastics 

LS 1.00 

LS 1.00 

LS 1.00 

LS 1.00 

LS 1.00 

LS 1.00 

LS 1.00 

LS 1.00 

LS 1.00 

15 Framing Labor at Entry LS 1.00 
Main Entry Sign Column Rooftops and Heavy Timber install with pt bucks and fasteners 

6001 Framing Materials LS 1.00 
Heavy timbers, misc. lumber, and materials for carpentry 

8000 Wood & Plastics Subtotal: 

7000 Thermal/Moisture Protection 
7336 Metal Roofing at Columns 

26ga galvalume to match pavilion 
7920 Sealants and Caulks 

waterproof monument rooftops and flashing for heavy timbers (if needed) 

7000 Thermal/Moisture Protection Subtotal: 

9000 Finishes 

LS 

LS 

60 Paint/Stain main Sign Timbers & Fence LS 
Stain is to match stained Cypress Beams @ Entry Sign with SW Hawthorne Stain. 

60 Theme Paint Roof Tops @ Entry LS 
Theme Painted to match Pavilion "aged" look. 

9000 Finishes Subtotal: 

Page 3 

2.00 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

$7,500.00 

$12,240.00 

$10,615.00 

$7,400.00 

$2,068.00 

$29,808.00 

$7,020.00 

$14,550.00 

$17,300.00 

$108,501.0D 

$4,500.00 

$11,550.00 

$16,050.00 

$3,700.00 

$250.00 

$3,950.00 

$8,995.00 

$3,000.00 

$11,995.00 



CARLTON Project: Trailmark Entry & Parks 
Trailmark Phase 1: FINAL Revised GMP Budget 1-13-2021 

' I I ' 1 j ' l 

10000 Speclaltlea 

10430 Theme Roadway Signage LS 1.00 

By OwnerNallencourt 
10430 Monument Signage LS 1.00 

"Reverie at Trailmark with Leaf' approx. 9' x 2'. ALUMINUM POWDER COATED, STUD MOUNTED 

13000 Special Construction 

13150 Fountain & Controller Panel 

10000 Speclaltles Subtotal: 

LS 1.00 

$1.00 

$8,450.00 

$8,451.00 

$10,000.00 

3PH Equinox floating fountain. w/LED lights and control panel. Power for lights and panel by others. 200ft of wire 
included, any additional length will be at additional cost. 

13000 Special Construction Subtotal: $10,000.00 

16000 Electrical 

16001 Electrical Scope LS 1.00 $39,184.00 

Electrical permit, Panel and Service for gates and lights 
• Sixteen (16) "SA" fixtures 
• Two (2) "SB" fixtures 
• Twelve (12) "SC" fixtures 
• Two (2) ·so· fixtures 
• Power to call box (single point connection, call box by others) 
• Power to gate operators (2) (single point connection, all gate equipment by others) 
• 1" conduit w/ pull string as indicated on plans 
*Does not include "light poles" shown on DWG L 1.1 landscape drawings. Only includes fixtures shown on E2.1 E 
Entry Package. 

16000 Electrlcal Subtotal: $39,184.00 

Main Entry; H1.2, IR1.1, L1.1 A1.0E through SP1.0E Subtotal: $312,757.00 

Bid Item # 4 Pavilion; A 1.0 • S2.2, H1 .3,2.2,2.3; IR1 .3; L 1. 

2000 Site Work 

8 Asphalt Trail -reduced spec LS 1.00 $19,575.00 

95% stabilized subgrade, 4" crushcrete, 1.5" asphalt 
211 O Site Grading and Pad Prep per Civil LS 1.00 $46,450.00 

*Adjusted per site meeting 12.11 (scope excludes Valiencourt) Includes all necessary prep to beer garden by 
grubbing/clearing trees as surveyed/staked by Carlton. Pavilion pad to be prep by Carlton. Path to be cleared by 
Carlton. Asphalt by Carlton. *Root rake only where required so as not to damage existing trees to remain. 

2115 Mulch@ Beer Garden LS 1.00 $8,250.00 
No Weed screen. Natural hardwood chip mulch @ 4" depth. NO BOARDERS or Aluminum Edging included. 

Page 4 



CARLTON Project: Trailmark Entry & Parks 

Trailmark Phase 1: FINAL Revised GMP Budget 1-13-2021 

2517 Concrete Walks and Pads @ Garden LS 1.00 $8,540.00 

Sidewalks at woodwind court and berry blossom parks as well as concrete pads for bag toss stations. *broom 
finish and one (1) concrete pump. *Includes 5,000psl grout at columns. 

2720 Storm Drainage @ Park per Civil LS 1.00 $22,275.00 

See Civil plans, 4 yard drains, 15" / 12" / 1 O" ADS pipe. 
2832 Dog Park Wood Fencing LS 1.00 $18,250.00 

Includes sally port gates and wood 3 rail fence with vinyl coated black mesh behind slats. 
4511 Flagstone Pavers and Slab LS 1.00 $25,500.00 

VE Option Selected on dry set application. Will include polymeric sand mix for grout between stones. Will also 
include "thickened" 6" locked concrete edge around pavers and will density test base layer to ensure 100% max 
density prior to crushcrete installation and compaction. 

3000 Concrete 

3001 Concrete Entry @ Sally Port 

broom finish, includes 1 concrete pump 
3001 Concrete Pavilion Foundations 

3,000 psi mix 

2000 Site Work Subtotal: 

3000 Concrete Subtotal: 

4000 Masonry 

4410 Rough Stone Veneer for Columns 

Custom layout per new large stone specs provided. 

4000 Masonry Subtotal: 

5000 Metals 

5796 Structural Steel & Install 

LS 

LS 

LS 

LF 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

$148,840.00 

$3,500.00 

$7,435.00 

$10,935.00 

$32,000.00 

$32,000.00 

$26,800.00 

Furnish and Install HSS columns w/standard baseplates (4) total. HSS Beams w/plates for wood truss attachment 
at 14 wood truss bearing locations. Anchor bolts. Two (2) 3/4" thru bolts at each truss connection on beams only. 
*materials primed and field painted 

5000 Metals Subtotal: $26,800.00 

6000 Wood & Plastics 

5472 Misc. Steel Fasteners/Anchors/Powder coat LS 1.00 $3,850.00 

56 powder coated brackets at pavilion and bolts and clips. 
6001 Framing and Trim Labor for Pavilion LS 1.00 $32,900.00 

Install seven (7) heavy timber trusses on stop of steel beams and all associated perpendicular purlins and 
decorative purlins 

6101 Misc. Lumber Package LS 1.00 $2,300.00 

Misc. Lumber allowance for framed walls and sheathing at window wall. 
6575 Heavy Timbers, Purlins, & Trim Materials LS 1.00 $45,800.00 

7 pre-stained custom cut end heavy timbers, all 3x3 purlins, decorative 3x3 purllns with cut ends. 

Page 5 



IJA 

CARLTON Project: Trailmark Entry & Parks 
Trailmark Phase 1: FINAL Revised GMP Budget 1-13-2021 

6000 Wood & Plastics Subtotal: $84,850.00 

7000 ThermaVMolsture Protection 

7190 Metal Roofing LS 1.00 $10,750.00 
26ga. galvalume rib metal panels in kynar finish. panels to be gulfrib or gulfpbr style. from Gulf coast metal roof 
supply. 

7730 6" half round galvalume gutter with rain chains LF 1.00 $4,250.00 
*Includes "cast oval links rain chain" and galvanized steel gutters with galvanized steel hangers as selected by 
Basham on 11.11.2020 

7920 Sealants and Caulks LS 1.00 $1,350.00 
Waterproofing at Windows and exterior sheathing per plans. 

8000 Doors & Windows 

8810 Windows 

7000 Thennal/Molsture Protection Subtotal: $16,350.00 

LS 1.00 $9,250.00 

Six (6) 56.5" w x 33" H Aluminum frame and grid with 1" square tube and LEXAN bubble glass. Frame to be 
powder coated black unless otherwise noted by A/E. 

8000 Doors & Windows Subtotal: 

9000 Finishes 

9010 Floor Logo Allownace LS 

TBD by Basham at later date 
9010 Theme Painting@ RoofTop LS 

*Theme painting allowance as request per Basham 11.11.2020 for "aged" look. 
9010 Theme Painting Underside of Pavilion LS 

Per Pizzazz Scenic allowance/estimate. 
9010 Stain@ Dog Park Fence LS 

SW Hawthorne Stain and Prep 
901 O Paint Base Coat @ Pavilion LS 

$9,250.00 

1.00 $500.00 

1.00 $9,945.00 

1.00 $9,000.00 

1.00 $4,750.00 

1.00 $9,715.00 

Paint tube steel beams and touch up stain at pre-finished timber trusses. Prepping & Painting of metal brackets 
and hardware. 

9000 Finishes Subtotal: 

10000 Specialties 

10430 Misc. Signage 

Dog park entry/exit and small dog/large dog and rules sign. 

12000 Furnishings 

12600 Dog Park FF&E 

10000 Specialties Subtotal: 

$33,910.00 

LS 1.00 $1,850.00 

$1,850.00 

LS 1.00 $28,500.00 
*includes specified furnishings. Can VE as needed to reduce costs. Includes installation and assembly costs of 

Page 6 



CARLTON Project: Trailmark Entry & Parks 

Traltmark Phase 1: FINAL Revised GMP Budget 1-13-2021 
' I 

spec furnishings. (owner to determine VE scope here) 
12600 Picnic Tables & Benches & Bag Toss LS 1.00 $10,410.00 

"VE option taken; pressure treated wood picnic table with polyurethane stain applied prior to installation. 
Also includes concrete Bag Toss as specified and installed by Carlton 
Also includes two (2) park benches per pocket parks 
*Does not include concrete below tables or concrete anchoring of any kind to foundation of furnishings to prevent 
theft or relocation of furnishings except for bag toss station, which will get 2 housekeeping pads per plan. 

12000 Furnishings Subtotal: $38,910.00 

15000 Mechanical 
15400 Site Plumbing & Posts LS 1.00 $18,250.00 

Permit, fixtures, piping and labor for two automatic hose bibbs at dog park with posts and a hose bibb service to 
pavilion area. includes backflow, insulation, and posts. 

15000 Mechanlcal Subtotal: 

16000 Electrical 
16001 Electrical Scope LS 

• Permit 
• Panel & Service to Pavilion 
• Festoon Lighting type "SF" 
• Four (4) "SH" Fixtures 
• One (1) "SJ" Fixture 
• Twelve (12) "SE" Fixtures 
• Two (2) service outlets (one at rear corner column, one at front corner column. 
• One (1) Fan at center of pavilion 
• One post and service outlet at yard area 
• Five (5) "SG" Fixtures *includes six (6) posts for SF lights around garden 

16000 Electrical Subtotal: 

4 Pavilion; A 1.0 • s2.2, H1 .3,2.2,2.3; IR1 .3; L 1.3 Subtotal: 

Bid Item # 5 TrallMark Drive; H1 .4, IR1 .4 & IR1 .5; L 1.4 & L 1 
2000 Site Work 

2517 Concrete Sidewalk Leading to Trailmark Dr. LS 
6ft wide sidewalk leading to trailmark drive. *broom finish and one (1) concrete pump 

2832 Metal Perimeter Fence LS 
Black 6ft tall 3 rail aluminum powder coat. 

2832 Man Gate @ Trailmark Drive 
With electric strike 

Page 7 

LS 

2000 Site Work Subtotal: 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

$18,250.00 

$44,430.00 

$44,430.00 

$466,375.00 

$12,255.00 

$73,500.00 

$2,675.00 

$88,430.00 



CARLTON Project: Trailmark Entry & Parks 

Trailmark Phase 1: FINAL Revised GMP Budget 1-13-2021 
I ,I 

16000 Electrlcal 

16750 Man Gate Access Controls System 

Tie into Envera System. Includes conduit and pull string 

16000 Electrlcal Subtotal: 

TrallMark Drive; H1.4, IR1.4 & IR1.5; L1.4 & L1.5 Subtotal: 
Bid Item# 6 Pacetti Rd Buffer; H1 .6 & H1 .7; IR1 .8; L 1.8 

2000 Site Work 

93 Screen Fence Between Phase 1 & 2 

LS 

LS 

Per H 1.6 • Dividing Phase 1 and Phase 2, black vinyl with black wind screen 
2832 Metal Perimeter Fence LF 

Black 6ft tall 3 rail aluminum powder coat. 
2910 Landscape Allowance@ Pacetti 

To be priced via change order after GMP approval. 

2000 SHe Work Subtotal: 

em# 6 Pacetti Rd Buffer; H1.6 & H1.7; IR1.8; L1.8 Subtotal: 

Bid Item # 7 Community Landscaping & Irrigation L 1.0-L2.1 

2000 Site Work 

2200 Grub and Clear Park Areas 

LS 

LS 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

1.00 

$6,000.00 

$6,000.00 

$94,430.00 

$26,895.00 

$28,148.27 

$1.00 

$55,044.27 

$55,044.27 

$5,850.00 

Price to clear all underbrush, stumps, weeds, shrubs, small palms, dead branches, mounds, trash, and any other 
unsightly items from underside of trees so that area is walkable by residents. *keep palmetto palms around 
perimeter of property but remove at park areas 

2200 Tree Removal LS 1.00 $2,250.00 

Price to remove three (3) large dead trees that have died on property since project started. 
2200 Tree Trimming LS 1.00 

Price to trim all low hanging, unsightly, damaged, or nuisance branches from property. 
2910 Three (3) Specimen Magnolias LS 1.00 

WIii include 1 year of maintenance, under drainage, drainage connects to civil, and any 
fertilizer/trimmings/inspection for 1st year. 

2910 Accelerate Code Landscape@ Entry LS 1.00 

$1,925.00 

$26,250.00 

$5,629.00 

Includes temp irrigation, battery timers, install, and maintenance of fast tracking 6 trees and landscape at entry for 
early completion of civil scope as requested by client. 

2910 Bahia @ Dog Park LS 1.00 $6,250.00 

Added per site visit 12.11.2020- non irrigated at all dog park areas inside of dog park fence. 
2910 Landscape - Entry & Common Areas LS 1.00 $332,200.00 

Per updated plans and layouts (excludes pacetti road) 

Page 8 



CARLTON Project: Trailmark Entry & Parks 

Trailmark Phase 1: FINAL Revised GMP Budget 1-13-2021 
, I • • 

2920 Underdrainage System Tie Ins LS 

By Vallencourt prior to installation of monuments or walks by Carlton. 
2920 Irrigation System - Entry & Common Areas LS 

Includes PIB 10 HP pump as per specs. 

10000 Speclaltles 

10552 Mail Kiosk Structure Allowance 

Allowance for Structure to House Mailboxes 
10552 Mail Box Allowance 

Allowance to supply and install mailboxes 

2000 Site Work Subtotal: 

10000 Speclaltles Subtotal: 

m # 7 Community Landscaping & Irrigation L1.0•L2,1 Subtotal: 
Bid Item 118 Contractor Contingency 

17000 Add Ona 

17200 Contractor Contingency 

17000 Add Ona Subtotal: 

Bid Item # 8 Contractor Contingency Subtotal: 

LS 

LS 

LS 

1.00 $1.00 

1.00 $209,141.00 

$589,496.00 

1.00 $1.00 

1.00 $1.00 

$2.00 

$589,498.00 

1.00 $25,000.00 

$25,000.00 

$25,000.00 --------------------
Project Subtotal: 

P&P Bond: 
Liability Insurance: 

CM Fee: 

Project Total: 

$1,675,684.27 

$18,662.47 
$8,178.87 

$115,000.00 

$1,817,525.61 

* The Parties agree that, unless otherwise agreed In writing, the CM Fee shall be adjusted for any Change Order 
(defined in the Contract Documents) as follows: The CM Fee shall be Increased or reduced by five percent of the 
total amount of the Change Order. By way of example, if the total amount of the Change Order is on Increase of 
$100, the CM Fee shall increase by $5.00. Likewise, a deductive Change Order for $100 shall result in a $5.00 
reduction to the CM Fee. The Parties agree that only actual costs for services and materials, and no additional 
fees, shall be used in determining the total amount of the Change Order for purposes of calculating the 
adjustment to the CM Fee, however, the addition or reduction to the CM Fee shall be port of the final total 
amount of the Change Order. 

Page 9 of9 



CARLTON 
~:., C .... · ... 

Carlton Construction, Inc. 

Drawings Included In 100% Package 

Hl.O I HARDSCAPE COVER SHEET I 

Hl.l I HARDSCAPE KEY SHEET I 

Hl.2 I HARDSCAPE PLAN I 

Hl.3 I HARDSCAPE PLAN I 

Hl.4 I HARDSCAPE Pl.AN I 

Hl.5 I HARDSCAPE Pl.AN I 

Hl.6 I HARDSCAPE PLAN I 

H2.0 (GENERALHARDSCAPENOTES I 

H2.l I HARDSCAPE DETAILS I 

H2.2 I HARDSCAPE DETAILS I 

H2.3 HARDSCAPE DETAILS 

• 
IRl.l IRRIGATION PLAN 

IRl.2 I IRRIGATION Pl.AN I 

IRl.3 I IRRIGATION Pl.AN I 

IRlA ( IRRIGATION PLAN I 

IRl.5 I IRRIGATION PLAN I 

IRl.6 ( IRRIGATION PLAN I 

IRl.7 I IRRIGATION PLAN I 

IR2.0 ( IRRIGATION DETAILS I 

IRRIGATION DETAILS I 

l',XlllDJl ~ 

41 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

sl 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

sl 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

sl 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

41 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

41 10/23/2020 I ll/02/2020 

41 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

31 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

31 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

31 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

11 10/23/2020 I ll/02/2020 

11 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

11 10/23/2020 I ll/02/2020 

11 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

11 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

11 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

11 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

11 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

Printed on Wed Nov 4, 2020 at 11:56 am EST 

Job #: 202006 Trailmark Entryway &. Common Areas 
805 Trai!mark Dr. 

St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I La d & H d 
~ nscape Mscape 

I Construction Setl0.23.2020 (10/23/ I La dsc & H rd 20) n ape a scape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I La d & H rd 20) n scape a scape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I La d & H rd 20} n scape a scape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I Land & H rd 
20) scape a scape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I La d & H rd 20) n scape a scape 

iconstruction Setl0.23.2020 (10/23/ I La d & H rds 
20) n scape a cape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 {10/23/ I Land & H rd 20) scape a scape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I La ds & H d 20) n cape ar scape 

I Construction Setl0.23.2020 (10/23/ I Landsc & H rd 20) ape a scape 

Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I Land & H rd 
20) scape a scape 

Construction Set 10.23.2020 {10/23/ I Land & H rd 
~ scape ascape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I Landsc & H rd 201 ape a scape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I La d & Hard 20) n scape scape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I Land & H d 
20) scape ar scape 

I ~ 1struction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I Landscape & Hardscape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I Land & H d 2D) scape ar scape 

I ~~1structlon Set 10.23,2020 (10/23/ I Landscape & Hardscape 

I Construction Setl0.23.2020 (10/23/ I La d & H rd 
201 n scape a scape 

I construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I La dsc & H rd 20) n ape a scape 



CARLTON 
. -. ::-·~r ·:~, ,:;:;. i.,.. ;--, ~- . .. ....... :.-,: - ,__. -·· .. 

Carlton Construction, Inc. 

u.o I LANDSCAPE COVER SHEET I 

U.l I LANDSCAPE PLAN I 

Ll.2 I LANDSCAPE Pl.AN I 

Ll.3 I LANDSCAPE PLAN I 

Ll.4 I LANDSCAPE PlAN I 

Ll.5 I LANDSCAPE PLAN I 

Ll.6 I LANDSCAPE PLAN I 

Ll.7 I LANDSCAPE PLAN I 

Ll.8 ILARGETREE PLANTING I 

L2.0 IGENERALLANDSCAPENOTES I 

L2.l I LANDSCAPE DETAILS I 

Al.O COVERSHEET 

Al.l ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN 

Al.2 FLOOR, REFLECTED CEILING & ENLARGED PLANS 

A2.0 ELEVATIONS 

A3.0 SECTIONS 

A4.0 WALL SECTIONS & DETAILS 

AS.0 WINDOW SCHEDULE 

El.1 ELECTRICAL LEGEND, NOTES & SCHEDULES· PAVILION 

El.2 ELECTRICAL RISERS & DIAGRAMS - PAVILION 

E2.l ELECTRICAL SITE PLAN - PAVILION 

E3.l ENLARGED ELECTRICAL PLAN • PAVILION 

E4.1 ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS - PAVILION 

S0.1 GENERAL NOTES & DESIGN CRITERIA 

51.1 FOUNDATION PLAN I ROOF FRAMING PIAN 

S2.l SECTIONS & DETAILS 

S2.2 SECTIONS & DETAllS 

Al.OE f Ei'ITRY SIGN: ENLARGED SITE PLAN & FLOOR PLANS 

Al.IE I ENTRY SIGN: ELEVATIONS & SECTIONS 

ENTRY SIGN: SECTIONS & DETAILS 

ENTRY SIGN: SIGNAGE DETAILS 

41 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

31 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

41 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

41 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

41 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

41 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

41 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

31 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

11 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

31 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

41 10/23/2020 I 11/02/2020 

2 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

2 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

2 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

2 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

2 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

2 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

2 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

0 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

0 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

0 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

0 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

0 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

2 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

2 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

2 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

2 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

3 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

3 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

3 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

2 10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

Printed on Wed Nov 4, 2020 at 11:56 am EST 

Job #: 202006 Trailmark Entryway & Common Areas 
805 Trailmark Dr. 

St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I Land & Hard 
20) scape scape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I La else & Hard 
20) n ape scape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I La d & H rd 
20) n scape a scape 

I Construction Setl0.23.2020 {10/23/ I La d & H rd 20) n scape a scape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I Land & H nl 
20 l scape a scape 

I ~1struction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I Landscape & Hanlscape 

I Construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I La else & H d 
20) n ape ar scape 

I construction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I La d & H rd 
20) n scape a scape 

I Construction Setl0.23.2020 (10/23/ I La d & H rd 
20 l n scape a scape 

I ig~struction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I uindscape & Hardscape 

I ~1struction Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/ I Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) uindscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) landscape & Hanlscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 1-0.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 {10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 110/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23120) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

A.Vu 



CARLTON 
8 C ;,~ST R Ll c·~ ~ 0 ~.,_~ 

Carlton Construction, Inc. 

A2.0E ENTRY GATES: ENLARGED SITE PlAN & FLOOR PLANS 3 

A2.1E ENlRY GATES: SECTIONS & DETAILS 3 

A2.2E ENlRY GATES: Pl.ANS, ELEVATIONS & SECTIONS 3 

Cl.OE COVERSHEET 3 

El.IE ELECTRICAL LEGEND, NOTES & SCHEDULES - ENTRY 0 

El.2E EL.ECTRICAL RISERS & DIAGRAMS• ENTRY 0 

E2.1E El..ECTRICALSITE PLAN-ENTRI' o 
E3.1E El..ECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS - ENTRY o 
SPl.OE OVERALL & ENLARGED SITE PLAN 4 

~ 

10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

10/23/2020 10/23/2020 

Printed on Wed Nov 4, 2020 at 11:56 am EST 

Job#: 202006 Trailmarlc Entryway 6c Common Areas 
805 Trailmark Dr. 

St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10,23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 (10/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

Permit Set 10.23.2020 110/23/20) Landscape & Hardscape 

"3.'n 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Reference Number: HK147004 

SUPPLEMENT TO AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES 

CHANGE TO 
SCOPE OF SERVICES AND FEES 

This SUPPLEMENT to AGREEMENT FOR SERVICES to the original Agreement for Services (original Agreement dated 08/30/2018, Agreement 
reference number EJ14062.04) is between Six Mile Creek Community Development District (COD) ("Client") and Environmental Services, Inc. ("Consultantj 
for additional or changed Services to be provided by Consultant for Client on the Project, as described in the Agreement for Services. This Supplement is 
incorporated into and part of the Agreement for Services. 

1. Scope of Services. The scope of the additional or changed Services are described in the Scope of Services section of the Consultant's 
Supplemental Proposal, unless Services are otherwise described below or in Exhibit B to this Supplement (which section or exhibit are incorporated 
into the Supplement). 

Phase 9 Conservation Easement Coordination - Additional services include additional coordination with St. Johns River Water Management District 
(SJRWMD) regarding conservation easement documents per new Environmental Resource Permit rules; additional coordination related to FPL use of the 
easement agreement; and coordination with SJRWMD regarding potential withdrawl/re-submittal. 

2. Compensation. Client shall pay compensation for tt e additional or changed Services performed at the fees stated in the Supplemental Proposa I 
unless fees are otherwise stated below or in Exhibit C to this Supplement (which section or exhibit are incorporated into the Supplement). 

Task 9. Phase 9 Conservation Easement Coordination - additional $2,500.00 (new fee total $6,500.00 estimate not to exceed) 

All terms and conditions of the Agreement for Services shall continue in full force and effect. This Supplement is accepted and Consultant is 
authorized to proceed. 

Consultant: 

By: 

Environmental Services, Inc. 

1/14/2021 

Client: 

By: 

Six Mile Creek Community Development 

D!:?'CDD) ~ .~ .;...-¥? Date: }d<j>hi/ 
Name/Title: 

Manager I 
Name/Title: Gregg Kem/ 

Address: 8001 Baymeadows Way Ste 1 Address: 475 W Town Pl Ste 114 
Jacksonville, FL 32256-7521 St. Augustine, FL 32092 

Phone: (904) 900-6494 Fax: (904) 268-5255 Phone: Fax: ---------
Email: Gary.Howalt@terracon.com Email: g k er n@g re en point e 11 c. com 

Page 1 of 1 Rev. 8-12 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Invoice
Date

1/6/2021

Invoice #

4030

Bill To

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District
135 West central Blvd., Set 320
Orlando, Fl 32801-2435

Ship To

TrailMark Community
pedistrian crosswalk
replacement posts, tops
and backer plates

Big-n-Lil Custom Creations, Inc.

D/B/A
Signtalk Graphix
12610 Cachet Drive
Jacksonville, FL 32223

P.O. Number

Gaynelle

Terms

50% deposit to begin ...

Rep Ship

12/22/2020

Via F.O.B. Project

We appreciate your prompt payment.

Phone #

904-737-9119

Fax #

904-737-4005

E-mail

signtalkgraphix@gmail.com

Total

Item Code DescriptionQuantity Price Each Amount

Post 3" round street sign posts, .125" wall thickness in aluminum, 12'
in length, will be set into 60lbs. of concrete per post installed on
site to replace the basic street signs posts now, includes flat
panel mounting brackets designed to be used with 3" post, two
will be required for each sign.  All signs would have a correct
sized backer plate in black aluminum (see line item #2), to give
the signs a more finished look and all round posts would have a
flat/domed finial top all hardware to be powder coated in satin
black as well. finished installed height will be per sign code.

24 475.00 11,400.00T

metal signs .080 aluminum backer panels cut to shape of existing road
signs, with a 1/2" boarder surround, these panels are powder
coated Satin Black to prevent corrosion, sign backing plates will
be installed on new posts for both arrow signs and pedestrian
signs-

24 185.00 4,440.00T

*** This work will require a 50% deposit before work will
begin, and the balance due upon the completion of the job.
**We will need a sales tax exempt certificate on file please
* SignTalk Graphix will warranty all materials and labor for 1
year after completion of the job.
estimated time for completion of this work is 45 working days
from time of first deposit
Sales Tax 0.00% 0.00

$15,840.00



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



AGREEMENT FOR GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING SERVICES BY AND 
BETWEEN 

ECS FLORIDA, LLC AND SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 29 day of January, 2021, by and between: 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, a local unit of special
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, located 
in St. Jolms County, Florida, with offices c/o Governmental Management Services, 
LLC, 475 West Town Place, Suite 114, St. Augustine, Florida 32092 ("District"), 
and 

ECS FLORIDA, LLC, a Virginia limited liability company authorized to transact 
business in the State of Florida, with a mailing address of 11554 Davis Creek Comt, 
Jacksonville, Florida 32256 ("Contractor," and together with the District, 
"Parties"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District was established pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, for the 
purpose of planning, financing, constructing, installing, operating, and/or maintaining certain 
infrastructme, including stormwater ponds and other infrastructure improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the District desires to retain an independent contractor to pe1form geotechnical 
engineering services as more particularly described in this Agreement, and Contractor represents 
that it is capable and qualified to provide such services and desires to contract with the District to 
do so in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the District and Contractor warrant and agree that they have all right, power 
and authority to enter into and be bound by this Agreement. 

Now, THEREFORE, in consideration of the recitals, agreements, and mutual covenants 
contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which 
are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. RECITALS. The recitals so stated are h·ue and correct and by this reference 
are incorporated into and form a material part of this Agreement. 

SECTION 2. DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND SERVICES. The duties, obligations, and 
responsibilities of the Contractor are to provide the services, labor and materials described in the 
proposal dated October 6, 2020 attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this 
reference ("Services"), except to the extent the terms and conditions of this Agreement conflict 
with Exhibit A, this Agreement shall control. Contractor shall coordinate the Services with other 
contractors perfo1ming work for the District. Should any questions arise as to the coordination 

I 



required, the Contractor shall consult with the District's engineer, who shall be the District's 
designee. Additionally: 

A. Contractor shall use all due care to protect the property of the District, its residents and 
landowners from damage and shall follow and be responsible for the Services set fo1ih 
herein. Contractor agrees to repair any damage resulting from Contractor's activities 
and work within twenty-four (24) hours. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Conh·actor 
and the District acknowledge and agree that portions of the Services will be provided 
in natural wooded areas and may result in destruction to trees, brush and other plants 
located in the natural wooded areas ("Plant Material"). The District agrees that the 
Contractor shall not be obligated to repair any Plant Material, however, contractor shall 
be responsible to repair and replace any Plant Material it impacts that is located in a 
conservation easement and reimburse the District for any penalties or fines resulting 
from such impacts. 

B. This Agreement grants to Contractor the right to enter the District lands which are 
subject to this Agreement, for those purposes described in this Agreement, and 
Contractor hereby agrees to comply with all applicable laws, rules, ordinances and 
regulations affecting the provision of the Services. 

C. The District is relying on the Contractor as the expert in this field. Contractor shall be 
solely responsible for the means, manner and methods by which its duties, obligations 
and responsibilities are in accordance with this Agreement. Conh·actor shall use 
indust1y standard of care practices and procedures when canying out the Services and 
in compliance with all permits, regulations, laws and other requirements. Any 
additional compensation for additional duties shall be paid only as negotiated between 
the parties and upon the written authorization of the Dish·ict. 

SECTION 3. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES. Contractor shall perform the Services identified 
in Section 2 herein in exchange for payment of the total sum of $46,200.00 (Forty Six Thousand 
Two Hundred Dollars). Such payment shall be due upon completion of the Services. This 
compensation includes, but is not limited to, all permits, parts, materials and labor necessary to 
complete the Services as described herein. Conh·actor agrees to render a final invoice to the 
District, in writing, which shall be delivered or mailed to the District. The District shall pay the 
Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of such an invoice or as may otherwise be required by 
Florida's Prompt Payment Act. The Contractor shall maintain records conforming to usual 
accounting practices. 

SECTION 4. WARRANTY AND COVENANT. Conh·actor hereby covenants to the District 
that it shall perform the Services: (i) in accordance with generally accepted professional and design 
standards and practices for projects of similar design and complexity; and (ii) in compliance with 
all applicable federal, state, county, municipal, building and zoning, land use, environmental, 
public safety, non-discrimination and disability accessibility laws, codes, ordinances, rules and 
regulations, including, without limitation, all professional regish·ation (both corporate and 
individual) for all required basic disciplines that it shall perform. Contractor hereby covenants to 
the Dish'ict that any work product of the Contractor shall not call for the use nor infringe any 

2 



patent, trademark, services mark, copyright or other proprietaty interest claimed or held by any 
person or business entity absent prior written consent from the District. 

SECTION 5. INSURANCE. Contractor shall, at its own expense, maintain insurance 
during the performance of its services under this Agreement, with limits of liability not less than 
the following: 

Workers Compensation 

General Liability 
Bodily Jnjwy (including contractual) 
Property Damage (including contractual) 

Automobile Liability (if applicable) 
Bodily Injury and Property Damage 

statutory 

$1,000,000/$2,000,000 
$1,000,000/$2,000,000 

$1,000,000 

Contractor shall provide District with a certificate naming the District, its supervisors, officers, 
agents and consultants and Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC as additional insureds. At no 
time shall Contractor be without insurance in the above atnounts. No policy may be canceled 
during the term of this Agreement without at least 30 (thirty) days written notice to the District. 
An insurance certificate evidencing compliance with this section shall be sent to the District prior 
to the commencement of any performance under this Agreement. 

SECTION 6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR. It is understood and agreed that at all times 
the relationship of Contractor and its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by Contractor to the District is the relationship of an independent contractor 
and not that of an employee, agent, joint venturer or patiner of the District. Nothing in this 
Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or establishing the relationship of employer 
and employee between the District and Contractor or any of its employees, agents, subcontractors 
or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor. The Parties acknowledge that Contractor 
is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes. Contractor shall hire and pay all of 
Contractor's employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
Contractor, all of whom shall be employees of Contractor and not employees of District and at all 
times entirely under Contractor's supervision, direction and control. 

In particular, District will not: i) withhold FICA (Social Security) from Contractor's 
payments; ii) make state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on Contractor's behalf; 
iii) withhold state or federal income tax from payment to Contractor; iv) make disability insurance 
contributions on behalf of Contractor; or v) obtain workers' compensation insurance on behalf of 
Contractor. 

SECTION 7. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, ORDINANCES AND REGULATIONS. In pe1forming 
its obligations under this Agreement, Contractor and each of its employees, agents, subcontractors 
or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, 
ordinances, rules, regulations, and orders of any public or governmental authority having 
appropriate jurisdiction, including all laws, regulations and rules relating to immigration and/or 
the status of foreign workers. Contractor shall initiate, maintain, and supervise all safety 

3 



precautions and programs in connection with its obligations herein. Contractor shall ensure that all 
of Conh·actor's employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
Contractor observe Contractor's rules and regulations of safety and conduct. Contractor shall take 
all reasonable precautions for the safety of and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent 
damage, injury or loss to all of its employees, agents and subcontractors performing its obligations 
herein and other persons who may be affected, and any material, equipment and other property. 
Subject to the provisions in Section 2(A) regarding Plant Material, Contractor shall remedy all 
damage or loss to any property caused in whole or in part by Conh·actor, its employees, agents, 
subconh·actors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor, or by anyone for whose 
acts Conh·actor may be liable. Contractor shall indemnify District for all damage or losses it may 
incur or be exposed to because of Conh·actor or any of its employees, agents, subcontractors or 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by Contractor's failure to comply with the provisions 
contained herein. 

SECTION 8. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD-PARTY INTERIIERENCE. A 
default by either Party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at law 
or in equity, which may include, but not be limited to, the right of actual damages and/or specific 
performance. The District shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this Agreement 
against any interfering third party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or impair the 
District's right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement. 

SECTION 9. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT. In the event that either Party is required 
to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or otherwise, then the paities agree that the 
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other all fees and costs incurred, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate 
proceedings. 

SECTION 10. AMENDMENTS. Amendments to and waivers of the provisions contained in 
this Agreement may be made only by an instrument in writing which is executed by both the 
District and the Contractor. 

SECTION 11. AUTHORIZATION. The execution of this Agreement has been duly 
authorized by the appropriate body or official of the District and the Contractor, both the District 
and the Contractor have complied with all the requirements of law, and both the District and the 
Contractor have full power and authority to comply with the terms and provisions of this 
instrnment. The Contractor acknowledges that the Chairman has been delegated authority to 
approve and enter into ce1tain agreements prior to the review and approval of a quorum of the 
District's Board of Supervisors ("Bomd"). The Conh·actor aclmowledges and agrees that in the 
event the Board, for any reason, refuses to ratify the Chairman's actions in approving and 
executing this Agreement, this Agreement shall be deemed cancelled and terminated upon the date 
on which Contractor receives notice of the Board's failure to ratify the Chairman's actions. 

SECTION 12. NOTICES. All notices, requests, consents ai1d other communications under 
this Agreement ("Notices") shall be in writing and shall be delivered, mailed by First Class Mail, 
postage prepaid, or overnight delive1y service, to the Parties, as follows: 

4 



A. If to Contractor: 

B. If to District: 

With a copy to: 

ECS Florida, LLC 
11554 Davis Creek Comt 
Jacksonville, Florida 32256 
Attn: Chris M. Egan 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 
Attn: District Manager 

Hopping Green & Sams, P.A. 
119 S. Monroe Street, Suite 300 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 
Attn: District Counsel 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any Notice shall be deemed received only 
upon actual delivery at the address set forth above. Notices delivered after 5:00 p.m. (at the place 
of delivery) or on a non-business day, shall be deemed received on the next business day. If any 
time for giving Notice contained in this Agreement would otherwise expire on a non-business day, 
the Notice period shall be extended to the next succeeding business day. Saturdays, Sundays, and 
legal holidays recognized by the United States government shall not be regarded as business days. 
Counsel for the District and counsel for the Contractor may deliver Notice on behalf of the District 
and the Contractor. Any patty or other person to whom Notices are to be sent or copied may notify 
the other parties and addressees of any change in name or address to which Notices shall be sent 
by providing the same on five (5) days written notice to the Patties and addressees set forth herein. 

SECTION 13. ARM'S-LENGTH TRANSACTION. This Agreement has been negotiated fully 
between the District and the Contractor as an arm's-length transaction. Both Parties patticipated 
fully in the preparation of this Agreement and received the advice of counsel. In the case of a 
dispute concerning the interpretation of any provision of this Agreement, both Patties are deemed 
to have drafted, chosen, and selected the language, and the doubtful language will not be 
interpreted or construed against either the District or the Contractor. 

SECTION 14. THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES. This Agreement is solely for the benefit of 
the District and the Contractor and no right or cause of action shall accrue upon or by reason, to 
or for the benefit of any third patty not a formal party to this Agreement. Nothing in this 
Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any person or 
corporation other than the District and the Contractor any right, remedy, or claim under or by 
reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions of this Agreement; and all of the 
provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained in this Agreement shall inure to 
the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the District and the Contractor and their respective 
representatives, successors, and assigns. 

SECTION 15. ASSIGNMENT. Neither the District nor the Contractor may assign this 
Agreement or any monies to become due hereunder without the prior written approval of the other. 

5 



SECTION 16. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE. This Agreement and the prov1s10ns 
contained herein shall be construed, interpreted and controlled according to the laws of the State 
of Florida. Each party consents that the venue for any litigation arising out of or related to this 
Agreement shall be in St. Johns County, Florida. 

SECTION 17. INDEMNIFICATION. 

A. Obligations under this section shall include the payment of all settlements, judgments, 
damages, penalties, forfeitures, back pay awards, court costs, arbitration and/or 
mediation costs, litigation expenses, reasonable attorney fees, and reasonable paralegal 
fees (incun-ed in court, out of court, on appeal, or in bankruptcy proceedings) as 
ordered. 

B. Contractor, its employees, agents and subcontractors shall hold harmless and indemnify 
the District and Six Mile Creek Investment Group, LLC, as well as their directors, 
officers, supervisors, staff, employees, representatives and agents against any and all 
claims, damages, liabilities, losses, costs, or harm of any kind including, but not limited 
to, reasonable attorneys' fees, to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions 
of Contractor, or other persons employed or utilized by Contractor in the performance 
of this Agreement up to the amount of $1,000,000 (one million dollars). By executing 
this Agreement, Contractor agrees such indemnification amount bears a reasonable 
commercial relationship to the Agreement. 

C. Contractor hereby aclmowledges, agrees and covenants that nothing in this Agreement 
shall constitute or be construed as a waiver of the District's sovereign immunity 
pursuant to section 768.28, Florida Statutes or other statute or law. This A1iicle 17( c) 
shall survive any termination of this Agreement. 

SECTION 18. TERM. This Agreement shall become effective as of the date first above 
written, and shall terminate upon completion of the Services set forth herein and in any amendment 
hereto, unless cancelled earlier, pursuant to Section 19 below. 

SECTION 19. CANCELLATION. The District shall have the right to cancel this Agreement 
at any time due to Contractor's failure to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement 
or for any reason. Contractor shall have the right to cancel this Agreement upon 30 (thirty) days 
written notice mailed to the District at the address written above stating a failure of the District to 
perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. The District's liability upon cancellation 
or termination of this Agreement shall be limited to paying for the reasonable value of labor and 
materials physically incorporated into the Services up to the effective date of cancellation, along 
with the value of materials specifically fabricated by Contractor for the Services up to the date the 
notice of cancellation or termination was given, though not incorporated in the Services, but not 
reasonably usable elsewhere, less payments already made to Contractor, as Contractor's sole 
means of recovery for cancellation. 

SECTION 20. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS. All rights in and title to all plans, drawings, 
specifications, ideas, concepts, designs, sketches, models, programs, software, creation, 

6 



inventions, rep01is, or other tangible work product originally developed by Contractor pursuant to 
this Agreement shall be and remain the sole and exclusive propeliy of the District when developed 
and shall be considered work for hire. 

SECTION 21. PUBLIC RECORDS. Contractor understands and agrees that all documents of 
any kind provided to the District in connection with this Agreement may be public records, and, 
accordingly, Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling 
such records, including but not limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Contractor 
acknowledges that the designated public records custodian for the District is James Perry, District 
Manager ("Public Records Custodian"). Among other requirements and to the extent applicable 
by law, the Contractor shall 1) keep and maintain public records required by the District to perform 
the service; 2) upon request by the Public Records Custodian, provide the District with the 
requested public records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable time 
period at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; 3) ensure 
that public records which are exempt or confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements, are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term 
and following the contract term if the Contractor does not transfer the records to the Public Records 
Custodian of the District; and 4) upon completion of the contract, transfer to the District, at no 
cost, all public records in Contractor's possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all 
applicable requirements for retaining public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such public 
records are transferred by the Contractor, the Conh·actor shall destroy any duplicate public records 
that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. All 
records stored electronically must be provided to the District in a format that is compatible with 
Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats. 

IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE CONTRACTOR'S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 475 WEST TOWN 
PLACE, SUITE 114, ST. AUGUSTINE, FLORIDA 32092, 
PHONE: (904) 940-5850, E-MAIL: JPERRY@GMSNF.COM 

SECTION 22. SEVERABILITY. The invalidity or unenforceability of any one or more 
provisions of this Agreement shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining 
poliions of this Agreement, or any part of this Agreement not held to be invalid or unenforceable. 

SECTION 23. HEADINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. The descriptive headings in this 
Agreement are for convenience only and shall not control nor affect the meaning or construction 
of any of the provisions of this Agreement. 

SECTION 24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This instrument shall constitute the final and 
complete expression of the agreement between the Patiies relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement. Should there be any conflict between this Agreement and Exhibit A, this Agreement 
shall control. 

7 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused these present to be executed the day 
and year first above written. 

0/W 

Witness 
Rebecca Kiser 
Print Name 

Exhibit A: Proposal dated October 6, 2020 

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY 

DEVELOP TDZ-

ECS FLORIDA, LLC 

By Joey Broussard 
Its: Vice President 

8 



Exhibit A 

9 



ECS Florida, LLC 

Proposal for Geotechnical Exploration and Engineering Services 

TrailMark Development 

TrailMark Drive 
St. Johns County, Florida 
ECS Proposal Number 35:17154 

October 6, 2020 



ECS FLORIDA, LLC "Selling the Standard for Service" 

Geotechnical • Construction Materials • Environmental • Facilities 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
C/O Mr. Zach Brecht, P.E. - England -Thims & Miller, Inc. 
475 West Town Place, Suite 114 
St. Augustine, Florida 32092 

October 6, 2020 

ECS Proposal No. 35:17154 

Reference: Proposal for Geotechnical Exploration and Engineering Services 
TrailMark Development 

TrailMark Drive 
St. Johns County, Florida 

Dear Mr. Brecht: 

ECS Florida, LLC (ECS) is pleased to submit this proposal to provide subsurface exploration and 

geotechnical engineering services for the above referenced project. This proposal contains our project 

understanding, proposed scope of services, lump sum fee, schedule of work, and authorization 

requirements. 

Project Description 

Based on our correspondence with Mr. Zach Brett, P.E., we understand that the remaining 

undeveloped portions of the TrailMark development requires geotechnical information. We were 

provided with a conceptual master plan for this phase of the development. This plan indicated the 

boundary limits of the property, the layout of the proposed construction, the requested boring 

locations, and part of the previously developed TrailMark's phases. The project will include single 

family residential lots, paved roadways, and 24 storm water management ponds. 

Scope of Services 

Our integrated services will include drilling of soil borings by drill crews under our supervision, 

laboratory testing of representative soil samples for pertinent engineering properties, various 

engineering analyses, and preparation of an engineering report. The objective of the geotechnical 

exploration is to provide site and subsurface information to evaluate the subsurface conditions at the 

site for the proposed construction. Upon completion of drilling operations, the samples will be 

returned to our laboratory in Jacksonville, Florida for further identification and testing. The following 

field services are proposed: 

Location Number of Borings 
Depth of Borings Below Ground Surface, 

feet 

Ponds 
32 Augers 

25 
24 SPT* 

Roadways 69 Augers 15 

*Standard Penetration Test 

7064 Davis Creek Road, Jacksonville, FL 32256 • T: 904-880-0960 • F: 904-880-0970 • ecslimited.com 
ECS Capitol Services, PLLC • ECS Florida, LLC • ECS Mid-Atlantic, LLC • ECS Midwest, LLC • ECS Southeast, LLP • ECS Southwest, LLP 



October 6, 2020 ECS FLORIDA, LLC 

We will collect eight bulk samples for LBR testing in our laboratory. Laboratory classification and index 

property tests will be performed as necessary on selected soil samples obtained from the exploration. 

The results of the exploration and engineering evaluation will then be documented in a report 

containing the following: 

1. A brief discussion of our understanding of the planned construction and imposed loading 

conditions. 

2. A presentation of the field and laboratory test procedures used and the data obtained. 

3. A presentation of the existing on-site conditions, such as topography, surface vegetation, 
etc. as they relate to the planned construction. 

4. A presentation of the encountered subsurface conditions, including subsurface profiles and 
measured groundwater levels, estimated seasonal high groundwater levels, and estimated 
geotechnical engineering properties (as necessary). 

5. A geotechnical engineering evaluation of the site and subsurface conditions with respect to 
the planned construction. 

6. Recommendations pavement design. 

7. Recommendations for the required site preparation and earthwork construction. 

Proposal Assumptions 

ECS has made the following assumptions in developing this proposal: 

1. 2 full business days are needed for utility mark-up prior to the start of drilling operations. 

2. Drilling operations will last approximately 15-18 business days. 

3. Client will provide the right of access to the property. 

Fee 

ECS will provide the proposed geotechnical base scope of services for a lump sum fee of $46,200. If 

additional services are required because of unexpected field conditions encountered in our field 

exploration program, or because of a request for additional services, they would be invoiced in 

accordance with our current Fee Schedule. Before modifying or expanding the extent of our 

exploration program, you would be informed of our intentions for both your review and authorization. 

Schedule 

We are prepared to mobilize to the site within two weeks after authorization to proceed. Preliminary 

verbal results and recommendations can be provided within 1 to 2 days after completion of the field 

drilling portion of the project. The written report containing final recommendations will be submitted 

within two weeks after completion of all field and laboratory testing. 

ECS Proposal No: 35:17154 
Page I 2 ffi 



October 6, 2020 ECS FLORIDA, LLC 

Utility Clearance 

We will contact Sunshine 811 to locate underground utilities at the site; however, our experience 

indicates that Sunshine 811 will not locate utilities beyond the point of distribution (meters or gauge 

points) on private property. We will coordinate the location of our exploration in order to avoid any 

underground utilities indicated by the Sunshine 811 locating system. However, we will not be 

responsible for any private utilities not pointed out to us by the land owner or client prior to drilling 

activities. If private utilities are a concern, we can provide a private utility line locator to reduce your 

liability. Please read the following section on private utility locator services and if desired, indicate 

your request for their services on the attached Proposal Acceptance sheet. 

Contracting a private utility locator service is not a guarantee that all utilities within a work site will be 

identified, but a service that is offered to lower the risk of the owner/client. ECS and our clients have 

had past success in avoiding utility conflicts by augmenting the Sunshine 811 services with a private 

utility locator service. Private utility locator services can identify utility alignments that incorporate 

significant iron content in the conduit materials. However, private utilities possessing the higher 

likelihood of not being easily identifiable, beyond the point of distribution, include all utilities not 

containing significant ferrous (iron) content (examples would include but not be limited to most 

sanitary sewer alignments, copper or PVC water lines, fiber optic lines without tracer ribbons, copper 

electric lines with no surface exposure, drainage tiles/pipes, and irrigation lines). 

Where a private locator service identifies a potential risk that is not traceable through conventional 

methods, ECS will notify the client immediately and work to resolve the issue. Additional costs related 

to the resolution of these potential utility conflicts will be invoiced out per our unit rates, as identified 

in this proposal, or as negotiated and approved at the time of the occurrence. 

Site Restoration 

Upon completion of the subsurface exploration procedures, we will backfill each of the excavations 

with the excavated soil and mound the excess spoil back up over the test location. In pavement areas, 

we will patch the asphalt surface with a cold mix asphalt patch. Typically, we will not provide site 

restoration beyond what is outlined above unless specifically contracted. Alternatively, we will remove 

excess spoils from job sites and dispose of them in an approved manner for a negotiated fee. 

Please note that some disturbance to off-pavement/gravel covered the surface areas, including the 

possible cutting of trees, running over of brush and understory in wooded areas might occur. We will 

attempt to minimize such disturbance; however, we have not budgeted for site restoration of the site 

including filling of tire ruts, seeding of lawn areas, or the planting of trees. If necessary, additional site 

restoration can be provided at an additional cost. 

Closing 

Our insurance carrier requires that we receive written authorization prior to initiation of work, and a 

signed contract prior to the release of any work product. Your acceptance of this proposal may be 

indicated by signing and returning the enclosed Proposal Acceptance Form. Our work will be done in 

accordance with the attached Terms and Conditions which is made a part of this proposal. 

ECS Proposal No: 35:17154 

Page I 3 ~ 



October 6, 2020 ECS FLORIDA, LLC 

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal to provide services and serve as your 

consultant. We look forward to working with you on this project, and to hopefully serve as your 

consultant in the future. If you have any questions, or if we can be of any additional service, please 

contact us at {904) 880.0960. 

Respectfully submitted, 

ECS FLORIDA, LLC 

Mateus Costa Segura, E.I. 

Staff Engineer 

mcostasegura@ecslimited.com 

Attachments: Proposal Acceptance Form 
ECS Terms and Conditions of Service 

ECS Proposal No: 35:17154 

Page I 4 

Chris M. Egan, P.E. 

Geotechnical Department Manager 

cegan@ecslimited.com 

ffi 



October 6, 2020 ECS FLORIDA, LLC 

PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE FORM 
ECS FLORIDA, LLC 

Project Name: Trail Mark Development 
Location: St. Johns County, Florida 
Fee: $46,200.00 □ Private Utility Locator 
Indicate if a private utility locator is requested by checking the box above for private utility locator. The 

fee will be established based on site specific requirements. 

Please complete and return this Proposal Acceptance Form to ECS as shown at the bottom 
of this form. By signing and returning this form, you are authorizing ECS to proceed, 
providing ECS permission to enter the site, and making this proposal the agreement 
between ECS and Client. Your signature also indicates you have read this document and 
the Terms and Conditions of Service in their entirety and agree to pay for services as 
above set forth. 

CLIENT AND BILLING INFORMATION 

Name of Client: 

Contact Person: 

Telephone No.: 

E-mail: 

Responsible for Payment Approval of Invoice (if different) 

Contact Name: 

Company Name: 

Address: 

Address: 

City, State, Zip: 

Telephone No.: 

Fax No: 

E-mail Address: 

The reports are normally e-mailed directly to client. If you require copies to others, please provide their 
names, e-mail addresses and fax numbers below. 

Name E-mail Address Phone Number Fax Number 

Special Instructions: _____________________________ _ 

Client Signature: x _________________ Date: _________ _ 

ECS Proposal 35:17154 



ECS FLORIDA, LLC 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 

The professional services ("Services") to be provided by ECS Florida, LLC ("ECS") pursuant 
to the Proposal shall be provided in accordance with these Terms and Conditions of Service 
{"Terms"), including any addenda as may be incorporated or referenced in writing and shall 
form the Agreement between ECS and CLIENT. 

1.0 INDEPENDENT CONSULTANT STATUS - ECS shall serve as an independent 
professional consultant to CLIENT for Services on the Project and shall have control 
over, and responsibility for, the means and methods for providing the Services 
Identified In the Proposal, including the retention of Subcontractors and 
Subconsultants 

2.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES - It is understood that the fees, re!mbursable expenses and 
time schedule defined In the Proposal are based on Information provided by 
CLIENT and/or CLIENT'S, agents, contractors and consultants ("Contractors"). 
CLIENT acknowledges that if this information is not current, is incomplete or 
inaccurate, if conditions are discovered that could not be reasonably foreseen, or if 
CLIENT orders additional services, the scope of services will change, even while 
the Services are in progress. 

3.0 STANDARD OF CARE 
3.1 In fulfilling its obligations and responsibilities enumerated in the Proposal, 

ECS shall be expected to comply with and Its performance evaluated In light 
of the standard of care expected of professlonals in the industry performing 
similar services on projects of like size and complexity at that time in the 
region (the "Standard of Care"). Nothing contained in the Proposal, the 
agreed-upon scope of Services, these Terms or any ECS report, opinion, plan 
or other document prepared by ECS shall constitute a warranty or guarantee 
of any nature whatsoever. 

3.2 CLIENT understands and agrees that ECS will rely on the facts learned from data 
gathered during performance of Services as well as those facts provided by the 
CLIENT. CLIENT acknowledges that such data collection is limited to specific areas 
that are sampled, bored, tested, observed and/or evaluated. Consequently, CLIENT 
waives any and all claims based upon erroneous facts provided by the CLIENT, 
facts subsequently learned or regarding conditions in areas not specifically 
sampled, bored, tested, observed or evaluated by ECS. 

3.3 If a situation arises that causes ECS to believe compliance with CLIENT'S directives 
would be contrary to sound engineering practices, would violate applicable laws, 
regulations or codes, or will expose ECS to legal claims or charges, ECS shall so 
advise CLIENT. If ECS' professional judgment is rejected, ECS shall have the right 
to terminate Its Services in accordance with the provisions of Section 25.0, below. 

3.4 If CLIENT decides to disregard ECS' recommendations with respect to complying 
with applicable laws or regulations, ECS shall determine if applicable law requires 
ECS to notify the appropriate public officials. CLIENT agrees that such 
determinations are ECS' sole right to make. 

4.0 CLIENT DISCLOSURES 
4.1 Where the Services requires ECS to penetrate a surface, CLIENT shall furnish 

and/or shall direct CLIENT'S or CLIENT'S Contractors to furnish ECS information 
ldenlifying the type and location of utll!ty lines and other man-made objects known, 
suspected, or assumed to be located beneath or behind the Site's surface. ECS 
shall be entitled to rely on such information for completeness and accuracy without 
further investigation, analysis, or evaluation. 

4.2 "Hazardous Materials" sha!! include but not be limited to any substance that poses 
or may pose a present or potential hazard to human health or the environment 
whether contained in a product, material, by-product, waste, or sample, and whether 
it exists in a solid, liquid, semi-solid or gaseous form. CLIENT shall notify ECS of 
any known, assumed, or suspected regulated, contaminated, or other similar 
Hazardous Materials that may exist al the Sile prior to ECS mobilizing to the Site. 

4.3 If any Hazardous Materials are discovered, or are reasonably suspected by ECS 
after its Services begin, ECS shall be entitled to amend the scope of Services and 
adjust its fees or fee schedule to reflect the additlonal work or personal protective 
equipment and/or safety precautions required by the existence of such Hazardous 
Materials. 

5.0 INFORMATION PROVIDED BY OTHERS • CLIENT waives, releases and 
discharges ECS from and against any claim for damage, injury or loss allegedly 
arising out of or in connection with errors, omissions, or inaccuracies in documents 
and other information in any form provided to ECS by CLIENT or CLIENT's 
Contractors, including such information that becomes incorporated into ECS 
documents. 

6.0 CONCEALED RISKS - CLIENT acknowledges that special risks are inherent in 
sampling, testing and/or evaluating concealed conditions that are hidden from view 
and/or neither readably apparent nor easily accessible, e.g., subsurface conditions, 
conditions behind a wall, beneath a floor, or above a ceiling. Such circumstances 
require that certain assumptions be made regarding existing conditions, which may 
not be verifiable without expending additional sums of money or destroying 
otherwise adequate or servlceable portions of a building or component thereof. 
Accordingly, ECS shall not be responsible for the verification of such conditions 
unless verification can be made by simple visual observation. CLIENT agrees to 
bear any and all costs, losses, damages and expenses (including, but not limited to, 
the cost of ECS' additional services) in any way arising from or in connection with 
the existence or discovery of such concealed or unknown conditions. 

7.0 RIGHT OF ENTRY/DAMAGE RESULTING FROM SERVICES 
7.1 CLIENT warrants that it possesses the authority to grant ECS right of entry to the 

site for the performance of Services. CLIENT hereby grants ECS and its agents, 
subcontractors and/or subconsu!tanls ("Subconsultants"), the right to enter from 
time to lime onto the property ln order for ECS to perform its Services. CLIENT 
agrees to indemnify and hold ECS and its Subconsullants harmless from any claims 
arising from allegations that ECS trespassed or lacked authority to access the Sile. 

7.2 CLIENT warrants that it possesses all necessary permits, licenses and/or utility 
clearances for the Services to be provided by ECS except where ECS' Proposal 
explicitly states that ECS will obtain such permits, licenses, and/or utility clearances. 

7 .3 ECS will take reasonable precautions to limit damage to the Site and its 
improvements during the performance of its Services. CLIENT understands that the 
use of exploration, boring, sampling, or testing equipment wm cause damage to the 
Site. The correction and restorat!on of such common damage Is CLIENT'S 
responsibility unless specifically included in ECS' Proposal. 

7.4 CLIENT agrees that it wiU not bring any claims for liability or for injury or loss against 
ECS arising from (l) procedures associated with the exploration, sampling or testing 
activities at the Site, {Ii) discovery of Hazardous Materials or suspected Hazardous 
Materials, or (Iii) ECS' findings, conclusions, opinions, recommendations, plans, 
and/or specifications related to discovery of contamination. 

8.0 UNDERGROUND UTILITIES 

8.1 ECS shall exercise the Standard of Care in evaluating client-furnished information 
as well as information readily and customarily available from public utility localing 
services (the "Underground Utility Information") in its effort to identify underground 
utilities. The extent of such evaluations shall be at ECS' sole discretion. 

8.2 CLIENT recognizes that the Underground Utility Information provided to or obtained 
by ECS may contain errors or be incomplete. CLIENT understands that ECS may 
be unable to Identify the locations of all subsurface utility lines and man-made 
features. 

8.3 CLIENT waives, releases, and discharges ECS from and against any claim for 
damage, injury or loss allegedly arising from or related to subterranean structures 
(pipes, tanks, cables, or other utilities, etc.) which are not called to ECS' attention in 
writing by CLIENT, not correctly shown on the Underground Utllity Information 
and/or not properly marked or localed by the utility owners, governmental or quasi
governmental locators, or private utility locatlng services as a result of ECS' or ECS' 
Subconsultant's request for utility marking services made in accordance with local 
industry standards. 

9.0 SAMPLES 
9.1 Soil, rock, water, building materials and/or other samples and sampling by-products 

obtained from tile Site are and remain the property of CLIENT. Unless other 
arrangements are requested by CLIENT and mutually agreed upon by ECS in 
writing, ECS will retain samples not consumed in laboratory testing for up to sixty 
(60) calendar days after the first issuance of any document containing data obtained 
from such samples. Samples consumed by laboratory testing procedures will not be 
stored. 

9.2 Unless CLIENT directs otherwise, and excluding those Issues covered in Section 
10.0, CLIENT authorizes ECS to dispose of CLIENTS non-hazardous samples and 
sampling or testing by-products in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. 

10.0 ENVIRONMENT AL RISKS 

10.1 When Hazardous Materials are known, assumed, suspected to exist, or discovered 
at the Site, ECS will endeavor to _protect its employees and address public health, 
safety, and envlronmental issues in accordance with the standard of Care. CLIENT 
agrees to compensate ECS for such efforts. 

10.2 When Hazardous Materials are known, assumed, or suspected to exist, or 
discovered at the Site, ECS and/or ECS' subcontractors will exercise the Standard 
of Care in containerizing and labeling such Hazardous Materials in accordance with 
applicable laws and regulations, and will leave the containers on Site. CLIENT is 
responsible for the retr!eval, removal, transport and disposal of such contaminated 
samples, and sampling process byproducts In accordance with applicable law and 
regulation. 

10.3 Unless explicitly stated in the Scope of Services, ECS will neither subcontract for 
nor arrange for the transport, disposal, or treatment of Hazardous Materials. At 
CLIENT'S written request, ECS may assist CLIENT in identifying appropriate 
alternatives for transport, off-site treatment, storage, or disposal of such substances, 
but CLIENT shall be solely responsible for the final selection of methods and firms 
to provide such services. CLIENT shall sign al! manifests for the disposal of 
substances affected by contaminants and shall otherwise exercise prudence in 
arranging for lawful disposal. 

10.4 In those instances where ECS is expressly retained by CLIENT to assist CLIENT in 
the disposal of Hazardous Materials, samples, or wastes as part of the Proposal, 
ECS shall do so only as CLIENT'S agent (notwithstanding any other provision of 
this Agreement to the contrary). ECS will not assume the role of, nor be considered 
a generator, storer, transporter, or disposer of Hazardous Materials. 

10.5 Subsurface sampllng may result in unavoidable cross-contamination of certain 
subsurface areas, as when a probe or excavation/boring device moves through a 
contaminated zone and links it to an aquifer, underground stream, pervious soil 
stratum, or other hydrous body not previously contaminated, or connects an 
uncontaminated zone with a contaminated zone. Because sampling is an essential 
element of the Services indicated herein, CLIENT agrees this risk cannot be 
eliminated. Provided such services were performed In accordance with the Standard 
of Care, CLIENT waives, releases and discharges ECS from and against any claim 
for damage, injury, or loss allegedly arising from or related to such cross
contamination. 

10.6 CLIENT understands that a Phase ! Environmental Sile Assessment (ESA) is 
conducted solely to permit ECS to render a professional opinion about the likelihood 
of the site having a Recognized Environmental Condition on, ln, beneath, or near 
the Site at the time the Services are conducted. No matter how thorough a Phase I 
ESA study may be, findings derived from its conduct are highly limited and ECS 
cannot know or state for an absolute fact that the Site is unaffected or adversely 
affected by one or more Recognized Environmental Conditions. CLIENT represents 
and warrants that it understands the limitations associated with Phase l ESAs. 

ECS Proposal No: 35:17154 Page 1 of3 Ver. 06114113 



11.0 OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 

11.1 ECS shall be deemed the author and owner (or licensee) of all documents, technical 
reports, letters, photos, boring logs, field data, field notes, laboratory test data, 
calculations, designs, plans, specifications, reports, or similar documents and 
estimates of any kind furnished by it [the "Documents of Service"] and shall retain all 
common law, statuloiy and other reserved rights, Including copyrights. CLIENT shall 
have a limited, non-exclusive license to use copies of the Documents of Service 
provided to it in connection with its Project for which the Documents of Service are 
provided unrn the completion of the Project. 

11.2 ECS' Services are performed and Documents of Service are provided for the 
CLIENT'S sole use. CLIENT understands and agrees that any use of the 
Documents of Service by anyone other than the CLIENT and its Contractors is not 
permitted. CLIENT further agrees to Indemnify and hold ECS harmless for any 
errors, omissions or damage resulting from its contractors' use of ECS' Documents 
of Service. 

11.3 Without ECS' prior written consent, CLIENT agrees to not use ECS' Documents of 
Service for the Project if the Project is subsequently modified in scope, structure or 
purpose. Any reuse wllhout ECS' written consent shall be at CLIENT'S sole risk and 
without liability to ECS or its Subconsultants. CLIENT agrees to indemnify and hold 
ECS harmless for any errors, omissions or Damage resulting from lts use of ECS' 
Documents of Service after any modification in scope, structure or purpose. 

11.4 CLIENT agrees to not make any modification to the Documents of Service without 
the prior written authorization of ECS. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
CLIENT agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold ECS harmless from any damage, 
loss, claim, liability or cost (including reasonable attorneys' fees and defense costs) 
arising out of or in connection with any unauthorized modification of the Documents 
of Service by CLIENT or any person or entity that acquires or obtains the 
Documents of Service from or through CLIENT. CLIENT represents and warrants 
that the Documents of Service shall be used only as submitted by ECS. 

12.0 SAFETY 

12.1 Unless expressly agreed to in writing in its Proposal, CLIENT agrees that ECS shall 
have no responsibility whatsoever for any aspect of site safely other than for its own 
employees. Nothing herein shall be construed to relieve CLIENT and/or its 
Contractors from their responsibility for site safety. CLIENT also represents and 
warrants that the General Contractor is solely responsible for Project site safety and 
that ECS personnel may rely on the safely measures provided by the General 
Contractor. 

12.2 In the event ECS assumes In writing limited responsibillty for specified safety 
issues, the acceptance of such responsibilities does not and shall not be deemed an 
acceptance of responsibility for any other non-specified safety issues, including, but 
not limited to those relating to excavating, fall protection, shoring, drilling, backfilling, 
blasting, or other construction activities. 

13.0 CONSTRUCTION TESTING AND REMEDIATION SERVICES 

13.1 CLIENT understands that construction testing and observation services are 
provided in an effort to reduce, but cannot eliminate, the risk of problems arising 
during or after construction or remediation. CLIENT agrees that the provision of 
such Services does not create a warranty or guarantee of any type. 

13.2 Monitoring and/or testing services provided by ECS shall not in any way relieve the 
CUENT'S contractor(s) from their responsibilities and obligations for the quality or 
completeness of construction as well as their obligation to comply with applicable 
laws, codes, and regulations. 

13.3 ECS has no responsibility whatsoever for the means, methods, techniques, 
sequencing or procedures of construction selected, for safety precautions and 
programs incidental to work or services provided by any contractor or other 
consultant. ECS does not and shall not have or accept authority to supervise, direct, 
control, or stop the work of any of CLIENT'S Contractors or any of their 
subcontractors. 

13.4 ECS strongly recommends that CLIENT retain ECS to provide construction 
monitoring and testing services on a full time basis to lower the risk of defective or 
incomplete work being installed by CLIENT'S Contractors. If CLIENT elects to retain 
ECS on a part-time or on-call basis for any aspect of construction monitoring andfor 
testing, CLIENT accepts the risk that a lower !eve! of construction quality may occur 
and that defective or incomplete work may result and not be detected by ECS' part 
time monitoring and testing in exchange for CLIENT'S receipt of an immediate cost 
savings. Unless the CLIENT can show that ECS' errors or omissions are contained 
in ECS' reports, CLIENT waives, releases and discharges ECS from and against 
any other claims for errors, omissions, damages, injuries, or loss alleged to arise 
from defective or incomplete work that was monitored or tested by ECS on a part
time or on-call basis. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, CLIENT agrees 
to indemnify and hold ECS harmless from all Damages, costs, and attorneys' fees, 
for any claims alleging errors, omissions, damage, injury or loss allegedly resulting 
from work that was monitored or tested by ECS on a part-time or on-call basis. 

14.0 CERTIFICATIONS - CLIENT may request, or governing jurisdictions may require, 
ECS to provide a "certification" regarding the Services provided by ECS. Any 
"certificaUon" required of ECS by the CUENT or jurisdiction(s) having authority over 
some or all aspects of the Project shall consist of ECS' inferences and professional 
opinions based on the limited sampling, observations, tests, and/or analyses 
performed by ECS at discrete locations and times. Such "certifications" shall 
constitute ECS' professional opinion of a condition's existence, but ECS does not 
guarantee that such condition exists, nor does it relieve other parties of the 
responsibilities or obligations such parties have with respect to the possible 
existence of such a condition. CLIENT agrees it cannot make the resolution of any 
dispute with ECS or payment of any amount due to ECS contlngent upon ECS 
signing any such "certification." 

15.0 BILLINGS AND PAYMENTS 
15.1 Billings will be based on the unit rates, plus travel costs, and other reimbursable 

expenses as stated In the professional fees section of the Proposal. Any estimate of 
professional fees stated shall not be considered as a not-to-exceed or !ump sum 
amount unless otherwise explicltly stated. CLIENT understands and agrees that 
even if ECS agrees to a lump sum or not-to-exceed amount, that amount shall be 

limited to number of hours, visits, trips, tests, borings, or samples stated in the 
Proposal. 

15.2 CLIENT agrees that all professional fees and other unit rates may be adjusted 
annually to account for inflation based on the most recent 12-month average of the 
Consumer Price Index (CPf-U) for all items as established by www.bls.gov when the 
CPI-U exceeds an annual rate of 2.0%. 

15.3 Should ECS identify a Changed Condilion(s), ECS shall notify the CLIENT of the 
Changed Condition(s). ECS and CLIENT shat! promptly and in good faith negotiate 
an amendment to the scope of Services, professional fees, and time schedule. 

15.4 CLIENT recognizes that time is of the essence with respect to payment of ECS' 
invoices, and that timely payment is a material consideration for this Agreement. All 
payment shall be in U.S. funds drawn upon U.S. banks and in accordance with the 
rates and charges set forth in the professional Fees. Invoices are due and payable 
upon receipt. 

15.5 If CLIENT disputes al! or part of an Invoice, CLIENT shall provide ECS with written 
notice stat!ng in detail the facts of the dispute within fifteen (15) calendar days of the 
invoice date. CLIENT agrees to pay the undisputed amount of such invoice 
promptly. 

15.6 ECS reserves the right to charge CLIENT an additional charge of one-and-one-half 
{1.5) percent (or the maximum percentage allowed by Law, whichever Is lower) of 
the invoiced amount per month for any payment received by ECS more than thirty 
{30) calendar days from the date of the invoice, excepting any portion of the 
Invoiced amount in dispute. AH payments will be applied to accrued interest first and 
then to the unpaid principal amount. Payment of invoices shall not be subject to 
unilateral discounting or set-offs by CLIENT. 

15. 7 CLIENT agrees that its obligation to pay for the Services is not contingent upon 
CLIENT'S ability to obtain financing, zoning, approval of governmental or regulatory 
agencies, permits, final adjudication of a lawsuit, CLIENT'S successful completion 
of the Project, sell1ement of a real estate transaction, receipt of payment from 
CLIENT'S client, or any other event unrelated to ECS provision of Services. 
Retainage shall not be withheld from any payment, nor shall any deduction be made 
from any invoice on account of penalty, liquidated damages, or other sums incurred 
by CLIENT. It is agreed that all costs and legal fees including actual attorney's fees, 
and expenses incurred by ECS In obtaining payment under this Agreement, in 
perfecting or obtaining a lien, recovery under a bond, collectlng any delinquent 
amounts due, or executing judgments, shall be reimbursed by CLIENT. 

15.8 Unless CLIENT has provided notice to ECS in accordance with Section 16.0 of 
these Terms, payment of any invoice by the CLIENT shall mean that the CLIENT is 
satisfied with ECS' Services and is not aware of any defects in those Services. 

16.0 DEFECTS IN SERVICE 

16.1 CLIENT and CUENT's Contractors shall promptly Inform ECS during active work on 
any project of any aclua! or suspected defects in the Services so to permit ECS to 
take such prompt, effective remedial measures that in ECS' opinion will reduce or 
eliminate the consequences of any such defective Services. The correction of 
defects attributable to ECS' failure to perform in accordance with the Standard of 
Care shall be provided at no cost to CLIENT. However, ECS shall not be 
responsible for the correction of any deficiency attributable to client-furnished 
information, the errors, omissions, defective materials, or improper installation of 
materials by CUENT's personnel, consultants or contractors, or work not observed 
by ECS. CLIENT shall compensate ECS for the costs of correcting such defects. 

16.2 Modifications to reports, documents and plans required as a result of jurisdictional 
reviews or CLIENT requests shall not be considered to be defects. CLIENT shall 
compensate ECS for the provision of such Services. 

17.0 INSURANCE -_ECS represents that ii and its subcontractors and subconsultants 
maintain workers compensation insurance, and that ECS is covered by general 
liability, automobile and professional liability insurance policies In coverage amounts 
it deems reasonable and adequate. ECS shall furnish certificates of insurance upon 
request. The CLIENT is responsible for requesting specific inclusions or limits of 
coverage that are not present in ECS insurance package. The cost of such 
inclusions or coverage increases, if available, wm be at the expense of the CLIENT. 

18.0 LIMITATION OF LIABILITY 
18.1 CLIENT AGREES TO ALLOCATE CERTAIN RISKS ASSOCIATEOWITH THE PROJECT BY LIMITING 

ECS' TOTAL LIABILITY TO CLIENT ARISING FROM ECS' PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY, I.E. 
PROFESSIONAL ACTS, ERRORS, OR OMISSIONS ANO FOR ANY ANO ALL CAUSES INCLUDING 
NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY, BREACH OF CONTRACT, OR BREACH OF WARRANTY, 
INJURIES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, LOSSES, EXPENSES, OR CLAIM EXPENSES (INCLUDING 
REASONABLE ATTORNEY'S FEES) RELATING TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES PROVIDEO UNDER 
THIS AGREEMENT TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW. THE ALLOCATION IS AS 
FOLLOWS. 

18.1.1 If the proposed fees are $10,000 or less, ECS' total aggregate liability to 
CLIENT shall not exceed $20,000, or the total fee received for the services 
rendered, whichever Is greater. 

18.1.2 If the proposed fees are in excess of $10,000, ECS' total aggregate liabllity to 
CLIENT shall not exceed $50,000, or the total fee for the services rendered, 
whichever is greater. 

18.2 CLIENT agrees that ECS shall not be responsib!e for any injuiy, loss or damage of 
any nature, including bodily injuiy and property damage, arising directly or indirectly, 
in whole or in part, from acts or omissions by the CLIENT, its employees, agents, 
staff, consultants, contractors, or subcontractors lo the extent such injury, damage, 
or Joss is caused by acts or omissions of CLIENT, its employees, agents, staff, 
consultants, contractors, subcontractors or person/entities for whom CLIENT is 
legally liable. 

18.3 CLIENT agrees that ECS' liability for all non-professional liab!lity arising out of this 
Agreement or the services provlded as a result of the Proposal be limited to 
$500,000. 

19.0 INDEMNIFICATION 

19.1 Subject to Section 18.0, ECS agrees to hold harmless and Indemnify CLIENT from 
and against damages arising from ECS' negllgent performance of its Services, but 
only to the extent that such damages are found to be caused by ECS' negligent 

ECS Proposal No: 35:17154 Page 2 of3 Ver. 06/14/13 



19.2 

19.3 

19.4 

19,5 

20.0 

20.1 

20.2 

21.0 

21.1 

21.2 

21.3 

22.0 

23.0 

23.1 

acts, errors or omissions, (specifically excluding any damages caused by any third 
party or by the CLIENT.) 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, CLIENT agrees to Indemnify, and hold ECS 
harmless from and against any and all liability, claims, damages, demands, fines, 
penalties, costs and expenditures (including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of 
litigation defense and/or settlement) ("Damages") caused In whole or in part by the 
acts, errors, or omissions of the CLIENT or CLIENT's employees, agents, staff, 
contractors, subcontractors, consultants, and clients, provided such Damages are 
attributable to: (a) the bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, disease and/or death 
of any person; (b) the injury to or loss of value to tangible personal property; or (c) a 
breach of these Terms. The foregoing indemnification shall not apply to the extent 
such Damage is found to be caused by the sole negligence, errors, omissions or 
wl!lful misconduct of ECS. 
It is specifically understood and agreed that In no case shall ECS be required to pay 
an amount of Damages disproportional to ECS' culpability. IF CLIENT IS A 
HOMEOWNER, HOMEOWNERS' ASSOCIATION, CONDOMINIUM OWNER, 
CONDOMINIUM OWNER'S ASSOCIATION, OR SIMILAR RESIDENTIAL OWNER, 
ECS RECOMMENDS THAT CLIENT RETAIN LEGAL COUNSEL BEFORE 
ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT TO EXPLAIN CLIENT'S RIGHTS AND 
OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, AND THE LIMITATIONS, AND RESTRICTIONS 
IMPOSED BY THIS AGREEMENT. CLIENT AGREES THAT FAILURE OF CLIENT 
TO RETAIN SUCH COUNSEL SHALL BE A KNOWING WAIVER OF LEGAL 
COUNSEL AND SHALL NOT BE ALLOWED ON GROUNDS OF AVOIDING ANY 
PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT. 
IF CLIENT lS A RESIDENTIAL BUILDER OR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPER, 
CLIENT SHALL INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS ECS AGAINST ANY AND 
ALL CLAIMS OR DEMANDS DUE TO INJURY OR LOSS INITIATED BY ONE OR 
MORE HOMEOWNERS, UNIT •OWNERS, OR THEIR HOMEOWNER'S 
ASSOCIATION, COOPERATIVE BOARD, OR SIMILAR GOVERNING ENTITY 
AGAINST CLIENT WHICH RESULTS IN ECS BEING BROUGHT INTO THE 
DISPUTE. 
IN NO EVENT SHALL THE DUTY TO INDEMNIFY AND HOLD ANOTHER PARTY 
HARMLESS UNDER THIS SECTION 19.0 INCLUDE THE DUTY TO DEFEND. 

CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES 

CLIENT shall not be liable to ECS and ECS shall not be liable to CLIENT for any 
consequential damages Incurred by either due to the fault of the other or their 
employees, consultants, agents, contractors or subcontractors, regardless of the 
nature of the faull or whether such liability arises in breach of contract or warranty, 
tort, statute, or any other cause of act!on. Consequential damages include, but are 
not limited to, loss of use and loss of profit. 
ECS shall not be liable to CLIENT, or any entity engaged directly or indirectly by 
CLIENT, for any liquidated damages due to any fault, or failure to act, in part or in 
total by ECS, its employees, agents, or subcontractors. 

SOURCES OF RECOVERY 

AU claims for damages related to the Services provided under this Agreement shall 
be made against the ECS entity contracting with the CLIENT for the Services, and 
no other person or entity. CLIENT agrees that it shall not name any affiliated entity 
includ!ng parent, peer, or subsidiary entity in any lawsuit brought under this 
Agreement. 
!n the event of any dispute or claim between CLIENT and ECS arising out of in 
connect!on with the Project and/or the Services, CLIENT and ECS agree that they 
will look solely to each other for the satisfaction of any such dispute or claim. 
Moreover, notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any other provision 
herein, CLIENT and ECS' agree that their respective shareholders, principals, 
partners, members, agents, directors, officers, employees, and/or owners shall have 
no liability whatsoever arising out of or in connection with the Project and/or 
Services provided hereunder. In the event CLIENT brings a claim against an 
affi!!ated entity, parent entity, subsidiary entity, or individual officer, director or 
employee in contravention of this Section 21, CLIENT agrees to hold ECS harmless 
from and against all damages, costs, awards, or fees (includ!ng attorneys' fees) 
attributable to such act. 

SECTIONS 
CLIENT AGREES 

PURSUANT TO FLA. STAT. 
558.002 AND 558.0035, 
THAT AN INDIVIDUAL EMPLOYEE 
AGENT OF ECS MAY NOT BE HELD 
INDIVIDUALLY LIABLE FOR NEGLIGENCE 
FOR ACTS OR OMISSIONS ARISING OUT 
OF THE SERVICES. 

OR 

THIRD PARTY CLAIMS EXCLUSION • CLIENT and ECS agree that the Services 
are performed solely for the benefit of the CLIENT and are not Intended by either 
CLIENT or ECS to benefit any other person or entity. To the extent that any other 
person or entity is benefited by the Services, such benefit is purely incidental and 
such other person or entity shall not be deemed a third party beneficiary to the 
Agreement. No third-party shall have the right to rely on ECS' opinions rendered In 
connection with ECS' Services without written consent from both CLIENT and ECS, 
which shall include, al a minimum, the th!rd-party's agreement to be bound to the 
same Terms and Conditlons contained herein and third-party's agreement that ECS' 
Scope of Services performed is adequate. 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

In the event any claims, disputes, and other matters in question arising out of or 
relating to these Terms or breach thereof (collectively referred to as "Disputes"), the 
parties shall promptly attempt to resolve all such Disputes through executive 
negotiation between senior representatives of both parties familiar with the Project. 
The parties shall arrange a mutually convenient time for the senior representative of 
each party to meet. Such meeting shall occur within fifteen calendar (15) days of 
either party's written request for executive negotiaUon or as otherwise mutually 

23.2 

23.3 

24.0 

24.1 

24.2 

25.0 

25.1 

25.2 

26.0 

27.0 

28.0 

29.0 

30.0 

30.1 

30.2 

30.3 

30.4 

30.5 

agreed. Should this meeting fail lo result in a mutually agreeable plan for resolution 
of the Dispute, CLIENT and ECS agree that either party may bring litigation. 
CLIENT shall make no claim (whether directly or in the form of a third.party claim) 
against ECS unless CLIENT shall have first provided ECS with a written certification 
executed by an independent engineer licensed in the jurisdiction in which the 
Project is located, reasonably specifying each and every act or omission which the 
certifier contends constitutes a violat!on of the Standard of Care. Such certificate 
sha!! be a precondition to the institution of any judicial proceeding and shall be 
provided to ECS thirty (30) days prior to the Institution of such judicial proceedings. 
Llt!gation shall be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction in the county or 
district in which ECS' office contracting with the CLIENT Is located. The parties 
agree that the !aw applicable to these Terms and the Services provided pursuant to 
the Proposal shall be the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, but excluding its 
choice of law rules. Unless otherwise mutually agreed to In writing by both parties, 
CLIENT waives the right to remove any litigation action to any other jurisdiction. 
Both parties agree to waive any demand for a trial by jury. 

CURING A BREACH 

A party that believes the other has materially breached these Terms shall issue a 
written cure notice identifying its alleged grounds for termination. Both parties shall 
promptly and in good faith attempt to identify a cure for the alleged breach or 
present facts showing the absence of such breach. If a cure can be agreed to or the 
matter otherwise resolved within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of the 
termination notice, the parties shall commit their understandings to writing and 
termination shall not occur. 
Either party may waive any right provided by these Terms in curing an actual or 
alleged breach; however, such waiver shall not affect future appl!cation of such 
provision or any other provision. 

TERMINATION 

CLIENT or ECS may terminate this Agreement for breach, non-payment, or a failure 
to cooperate. In the event of termination, the effecting party shall so notify the other 
party in writing and termination shall become effective fourteen (14) calendar days 
after receipt of the termination notice. 
Irrespective of which party shall effect termination, or the cause therefore, ECS shall 
promptly render to CLIENT a final invoice and CLIENT shall immediately 
compensate ECS for Services rendered and costs Incurred including those Services 
associated with termination itself, Including without limitation, demobilizing, 
modifying schedules, and reassigning personnel. 

TIME BAR TO LEGAL ACTION· Unless prohibited by law, and notwithstanding any 
Statute that may provide additional protection, CUENT and ECS agree that a 
lawsuit by either party alleging a breach of this Agreement, violation of the Standard 
of Care, non-payment of invoices, or arising out of the Services provided hereunder, 
must be Initiated in a court of competent jurisdiction no more than two (2) years from 
the time the party knew, or shou!d have known, of the facts and conditions giving 
rise to its claim, and shall under no circumstances shall such lawsuit be initiated 
more than three (3) years from the date of substantial completion of ECS' Services. 

ASSIGNMENT • CLIENT and ECS respectively bind themselves, their successors, 
assigns, heirs, and legal representatives to the other party and the successors, 
assigns, heirs and legal representatives of such other party with respect to all 
covenants of these Terms. Neither CLIENT nor ECS shall assign these Terms, any 
rights thereunder, or any cause of action arising therefrom, in whole or in part, 
without the written consent of the other. Any purported assignment or transfer, 
except as permitted above, shall be deemed nu!!, void and invalid, the purported 
assignee shall acquire no rights as a result of the purported assignment or transfer 
and the non-assigning party shall not recognize any such purported assignment or 
transfer. 

SEVERABILITY. Any provision of these Terms later held to violate any law, statute, 
or regulation, shall be deemed void, and all remaining provisions shall continue in 
full force and effect. CLIENT and ECS shall endeavor to qulckly replace a voided 
provision with a valid substitute that expresses the intent of the issues covered by 
the original provision. 

SURVIVAL • All obligations arising prior to the termination of the agreement 
represented by these Terms and all provisions allocating responsibility or liability 
between the CLIENT and ECS shall survive the substant!a! completion of Services 
and the termination of the Agreement. 

TITLES; ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
The titles used herein are for general reference only and are not part of the Terms. 

These Terms together with the Proposal, including all exhibits, appendixes, and 
other documents appended to it, constitute the entire agreement between CLIENT 
and ECS ("Agreement"). CLIENT acknowledges that all prior understandings and 
negotiations are superseded by this Agreement. 
CLIENT and ECS agree that subsequent modifications to the Agreement shall not 
be binding unless made in writing and signed by authorized representatives of both 
parties. 
All preprinted terms and conditions on CLIENT'S purchase order, Work 
Authorization, or other service acknowledgement forms, are inapplicable and 
superseded by these Terms and Conditions of Service. 
CLIENT's execution of a Work Authorization, the submission of a start work 
authorization (oral or written) or issuance of a purchase order constitutes CLIENT's 
acceptance of this Proposal and these Terms and their agreement to be fully bound 
to them. If CLIENT fails to provide ECS with a signed copy of these Terms or the 
attached Work Authorization, CLIENT agrees that by authorizing and accepting the 
services of ECS, it will be fully bound by these Terms as if they had been signed by 
CLIENT. 

ECS Proposal No: 35:17154 Page 3 of 3 Ver. 06/14/13 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



Dog Park Policies: 
 

1. The park’s operating hours are dawn to dusk. 
2. The park is not staffed and shall be used at the user’s own risk.  The Six Mile Creek 

Community Development District is not responsible for injuries to visiting dogs, their 
owners, or others using the park. 

3. Dispose of trash in proper receptacle. 
4. Park for use by residents, patrons and guests only. 
5. All owners are responsible for the behavior of their dogs at all times. 
6. Dogs must be leashed while entering and exiting dog park. 
7. Dog waste must be cleaned up by owner immediately. 
8. Owners must be within dog park and supervising their dog with leash readily available. 
9. Handler must be at least 16 years of age. 
10. Children under 12 must be accompanied by an adult and supervised at all times. 
11. Aggressive dogs must be removed immediately. 
12. Dogs should be under voice control. 
13. Dogs must wear current county tags and have a current rabies vaccination. 
14. Owner must immediately fill in any holes dug by their dogs. 
15. Dogs in heat are not allowed in the park. 
16. Limit three dogs per adult dog handler. 
17. Puppies under four months of age shall not enter the dog park. 
18. Human or dog food inside the dog park is prohibited. 
19. Dog toys are not permitted inside the dog park. 
20. The dog park is designated a “No Smoking” area. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



Page 1 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13  

Company ID Number: 

THE E-VERIFY  
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

FOR EMPLOYERS  

ARTICLE I 
PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

E-Verify is a program that electronically confirms an employee’s eligibility to work in the United States 
after completion of Form I-9, Employment Eligibility Verification (Form I-9). This Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) explains certain features of the E-Verify program and describes specific 
responsibilities of the Employer, the Social Security Administration (SSA), and DHS.   

Authority for the E-Verify program is found in Title IV, Subtitle A, of the Illegal Immigration Reform and 
Immigrant Responsibility Act of 1996 (IIRIRA), Pub. L. 104-208, 110 Stat. 3009, as amended (8 U.S.C. 
§ 1324a note). The Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) Subpart 22.18, “Employment Eligibility
Verification” and Executive Order 12989, as amended, provide authority for Federal contractors and 
subcontractors (Federal contractor) to use E-Verify to verify the employment eligibility of certain 
employees working on Federal contracts.  

ARTICLE II 
RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE EMPLOYER  

1. The Employer agrees to display the following notices supplied by DHS in a prominent place that is
clearly visible to prospective employees and all employees who are to be verified through the system: 

a. Notice of E-Verify Participation

b. Notice of Right to Work

2. The Employer agrees to provide to the SSA and DHS the names, titles, addresses, and telephone
numbers of the Employer representatives to be contacted about E-Verify.  The Employer also agrees to 
keep such information current by providing updated information to SSA and DHS whenever the 
representatives’ contact information changes.  

3. The Employer agrees to grant E-Verify access only to current employees who need E-Verify access.
Employers must promptly terminate an employee’s E-Verify access if the employer is separated from 
the company or no longer needs access to E-Verify.   

1636335

The parties to this agreement are the Department of Homeland Security (DHS) and the
Six Mile Community Development District (Employer).  The purpose of this agreement is to set forth
terms and conditions which the Employer will follow while participating in E-Verify.



 

Page 2 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 

 

4.  The Employer agrees to become familiar with and comply with the most recent version of the 
E-Verify User Manual.  

5.  The Employer agrees that any Employer Representative who will create E-Verify cases will 
complete the E-Verify Tutorial before that individual creates any cases.  

a. The Employer agrees that all Employer representatives will take the refresher tutorials when 
prompted by E-Verify in order to continue using E-Verify.  Failure to complete a refresher tutorial 
will prevent the Employer Representative from continued use of E-Verify.   

6. The Employer agrees to comply with current Form I-9 procedures, with two exceptions:  

a. If an employee presents a "List B" identity document, the Employer agrees to only accept "List 
B" documents that contain a photo. (List B documents identified in 8 C.F.R. § 274a.2(b)(1)(B)) can 
be presented during the Form I-9 process to establish identity.) If an employee objects to the photo 
requirement for religious reasons, the Employer should contact E-Verify at  
888-464-4218.  

b. If an employee presents a DHS Form I-551 (Permanent Resident Card), Form I-766 
(Employment Authorization Document), or U.S. Passport or Passport Card to complete Form I-9, 
the Employer agrees to make a photocopy of the document and to retain the photocopy with the 
employee’s Form I-9. The Employer will use the photocopy to verify the photo and to assist DHS 
with its review of photo mismatches that employees contest.  DHS may in the future designate 
other documents that activate the photo screening tool. 

Note: Subject only to the exceptions noted previously in this paragraph, employees still retain the right 
to present any List A, or List B and List C, document(s) to complete the Form I-9.  

7.  The Employer agrees to record the case verification number on the employee's Form I-9 or to print 
the screen containing the case verification number and attach it to the employee's Form I-9.  

8.  The Employer agrees that, although it participates in E-Verify, the Employer has a responsibility to 
complete, retain, and make available for inspection Forms I-9 that relate to its employees, or from other 
requirements of applicable regulations or laws, including the obligation to comply with the 
antidiscrimination requirements of section 274B of the INA with respect to Form I-9 procedures.  

a. The following modified requirements are the only exceptions to an Employer’s obligation to not 
employ unauthorized workers and comply with the anti-discrimination provision of the INA: (1) List B 
identity documents must have photos, as described in paragraph 6 above; (2) When an Employer 
confirms the identity and employment eligibility of newly hired employee using E-Verify procedures, 
the Employer establishes a rebuttable presumption that it has not violated section 274A(a)(1)(A) of 
the Immigration and Nationality Act (INA) with respect to the hiring of that employee; (3) If the 
Employer receives a final nonconfirmation for an employee, but continues to employ that person, 
the Employer must notify DHS and the Employer is subject to a civil money penalty between $550 
and $1,100 for each failure to notify DHS of continued employment following a final 
nonconfirmation; (4) If the Employer continues to employ an employee after receiving a final 
nonconfirmation, then the Employer is subject to a rebuttable presumption that it has knowingly 

    

1636335



 

Page 3 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 

 

employed an unauthorized alien in violation of section 274A(a)(1)(A); and (5) no E-Verify participant 
is civilly or criminally liable under any law for any action taken in good faith based on information 
provided through the E-Verify.  

b. DHS reserves the right to conduct Form I-9 compliance inspections, as well as any other 
enforcement or compliance activity authorized by law, including site visits, to ensure proper use of 
E-Verify.  

9.  The Employer is strictly prohibited from creating an E-Verify case before the employee has been 
hired, meaning that a firm offer of employment was extended and accepted and Form I-9 was 
completed.  The Employer agrees to create an E-Verify case for new employees within three Employer 
business days after each employee has been hired (after both Sections 1 and 2 of Form I-9 have been 
completed), and to complete as many steps of the E-Verify process as are necessary according to the 
E-Verify User Manual. If E-Verify is temporarily unavailable, the three-day time period will be extended 
until it is again operational in order to accommodate the Employer's attempting, in good faith, to make 
inquiries during the period of unavailability.  

10.  The Employer agrees not to use E-Verify for pre-employment screening of job applicants, in 
support of any unlawful employment practice, or for any other use that this MOU or the E-Verify User 
Manual does not authorize. 

11. The Employer must use E-Verify for all new employees.  The Employer will not verify selectively 
and will not verify employees hired before the effective date of this MOU.  Employers who are Federal 
contractors may qualify for exceptions to this requirement as described in Article II.B of this MOU. 

12.  The Employer agrees to follow appropriate procedures (see Article III below) regarding tentative 
nonconfirmations.  The Employer must promptly notify employees in private of the finding and provide 
them with the notice and letter containing information specific to the employee’s E-Verify case.   The 
Employer agrees to provide both the English and the translated notice and letter for employees with 
limited English proficiency to employees.  The Employer agrees to provide written referral instructions 
to employees and instruct affected employees to bring the English copy of the letter to the SSA.  The 
Employer must allow employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action against employees 
if they choose to contest the finding, while their case is still pending. Further, when employees contest 
a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo mismatch, the Employer must take additional steps 
(see Article III.B. below) to contact DHS with information necessary to resolve the challenge.  

13.  The Employer agrees not to take any adverse action against an employee based upon the 
employee's perceived employment eligibility status while SSA or DHS is processing the verification 
request unless the Employer obtains knowledge (as defined in 8 C.F.R. § 274a.1(l)) that the employee 
is not work authorized. The Employer understands that an initial inability of the SSA or DHS automated 
verification system to verify work authorization, a tentative nonconfirmation, a case in continuance 
(indicating the need for additional time for the government to resolve a case), or the finding of a photo 
mismatch, does not establish, and should not be interpreted as, evidence that the employee is not work 
authorized. In any of such cases, the employee must be provided a full and fair opportunity to contest 
the finding, and if he or she does so, the employee may not be terminated or suffer any adverse 
employment consequences based upon the employee’s perceived employment eligibility status 

    

1636335



 

Page 4 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 

 

(including denying, reducing, or extending work hours, delaying or preventing training, requiring an 
employee to work in poorer conditions, withholding pay, refusing to assign the employee to a Federal 
contract or other assignment, or otherwise assuming that he or she is unauthorized to work) until and 
unless secondary verification by SSA or DHS has been completed and a final nonconfirmation has 
been issued. If the employee does not choose to contest a tentative nonconfirmation or a photo 
mismatch or if a secondary verification is completed and a final nonconfirmation is issued, then the 
Employer can find the employee is not work authorized and terminate the employee’s employment. 
Employers or employees with questions about a final nonconfirmation may call E-Verify at 1-888-464-
4218 (customer service) or 1-888-897-7781 (worker hotline).  

14.  The Employer agrees to comply with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and section 274B of 
the INA as applicable by not discriminating unlawfully against any individual in hiring, firing, 
employment eligibility verification, or recruitment or referral practices because of his or her national 
origin or citizenship status, or by committing discriminatory documentary practices. The Employer 
understands that such illegal practices can include selective verification or use of E-Verify except as 
provided in part D below, or discharging or refusing to hire employees because they appear or sound 
“foreign” or have received tentative nonconfirmations. The Employer further understands that any 
violation of the immigration-related unfair employment practices provisions in section 274B of the INA 
could subject the Employer to civil penalties, back pay awards, and other sanctions, and violations of 
Title VII could subject the Employer to back pay awards, compensatory and punitive damages. 
Violations of either section 274B of the INA or Title VII may also lead to the termination of its 
participation in E-Verify. If the Employer has any questions relating to the anti-discrimination provision, 
it should contact OSC at 1-800-255-8155 or 1-800-237-2515 (TDD).  

15.  The Employer agrees that it will use the information it receives from E-Verify only to confirm the 
employment eligibility of employees as authorized by this MOU. The Employer agrees that it will 
safeguard this information, and means of access to it (such as PINS and passwords), to ensure that it 
is not used for any other purpose and as necessary to protect its confidentiality, including ensuring that 
it is not disseminated to any person other than employees of the Employer who are authorized to 
perform the Employer's responsibilities under this MOU, except for such dissemination as may be 
authorized in advance by SSA or DHS for legitimate purposes.  

16.  The Employer agrees to notify DHS immediately in the event of a breach of personal information.  
Breaches are defined as loss of control or unauthorized access to E-Verify personal data.  All 
suspected or confirmed breaches should be reported by calling 1-888-464-4218 or via email at           
E-Verify@dhs.gov.  Please use “Privacy Incident – Password” in the subject line of your email when 
sending a breach report to E-Verify. 

17.  The Employer acknowledges that the information it receives from SSA is governed by the Privacy 
Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a(i)(1) and (3)) and the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 1306(a)). Any person who 
obtains this information under false pretenses or uses it for any purpose other than as provided for in 
this MOU may be subject to criminal penalties.  

18.  The Employer agrees to cooperate with DHS and SSA in their compliance monitoring and 
evaluation of E-Verify, which includes permitting DHS, SSA, their contractors and other agents, upon 

    

1636335

mailto:E-Verify@dhs.gov


 

Page 5 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 

 

reasonable notice, to review Forms I-9 and other employment records and to interview it and its 
employees regarding the Employer’s use of E-Verify, and to respond in a prompt and accurate manner 
to DHS requests for information relating to their participation in E-Verify.  

19.  The Employer shall not make any false or unauthorized claims or references about its participation 
in E-Verify on its website, in advertising materials, or other media.  The Employer shall not describe its 
services as federally-approved, federally-certified, or federally-recognized, or use language with a 
similar intent on its website or other materials provided to the public.  Entering into this MOU does not 
mean that E-Verify endorses or authorizes your E-Verify services and any claim to that effect is false. 

20.  The Employer shall not state in its website or other public documents that any language used 
therein has been provided or approved by DHS, USCIS or the Verification Division, without first 
obtaining the prior written consent of DHS. 

21.  The Employer agrees that E-Verify trademarks and logos may be used only under license by 
DHS/USCIS (see M-795 (Web)) and, other than pursuant to the specific terms of such license, may not 
be used in any manner that might imply that the Employer’s services, products, websites, or 
publications are sponsored by, endorsed by, licensed by, or affiliated with DHS, USCIS, or E-Verify. 

22.  The Employer understands that if it uses E-Verify procedures for any purpose other than as 
authorized by this MOU, the Employer may be subject to appropriate legal action and termination of its 
participation in E-Verify according to this MOU.  

B. RESPONSIBILITIES OF FEDERAL CONTRACTORS  

1.  If the Employer is a Federal contractor with the FAR E-Verify clause subject to the employment 
verification terms in Subpart 22.18 of the FAR, it will become familiar with and comply with the most 
current version of the E-Verify User Manual for Federal Contractors as well as the E-Verify 
Supplemental Guide for Federal Contractors. 

2.  In addition to the responsibilities of every employer outlined in this MOU, the Employer understands 
that if it is a Federal contractor subject to the employment verification terms in Subpart 22.18 of the 
FAR it must verify the employment eligibility of any “employee assigned to the contract” (as defined in 
FAR 22.1801). Once an employee has been verified through E-Verify by the Employer, the Employer 
may not create a second case for the employee through E-Verify.  

a. An Employer that is not enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor at the time of a contract 
award must enroll as a Federal contractor in the E-Verify program within 30 calendar days of 
contract award and, within 90 days of enrollment, begin to verify employment eligibility of new hires 
using E-Verify.  The Employer must verify those employees who are working in the United States, 
whether or not they are assigned to the contract. Once the Employer begins verifying new hires, 
such verification of new hires must be initiated within three business days after the hire date. Once 
enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor, the Employer must begin verification of employees 
assigned to the contract within 90 calendar days after the date of enrollment or within 30 days of an 
employee’s assignment to the contract, whichever date is later.  

   

1636335

http://www.uscis.gov/USCIS/Verification/E-Verify/everifytrademark.pdf


 

 

 

Page 6 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number:

b. Employers enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal contractor for 90 days or more at the time of a 
contract award must use E-Verify to begin verification of employment eligibility for new hires of the 
Employer who are working in the United States, whether or not assigned to the contract, within 
three business days after the date of hire. If the Employer is enrolled in E-Verify as a Federal 
contractor for 90 calendar days or less at the time of contract award, the Employer must, within 90 
days of enrollment, begin to use E-Verify to initiate verification of new hires of the contractor who 
are working in the United States, whether or not assigned to the contract. Such verification of new 
hires must be initiated within three business days after the date of hire. An Employer enrolled as a 
Federal contractor in E-Verify must begin verification of each employee assigned to the contract 
within 90 calendar days after date of contract award or within 30 days after assignment to the 
contract, whichever is later.  

c. Federal contractors that are institutions of higher education (as defined at 20 U.S.C. 1001(a)), 
state or local governments, governments of Federally recognized Indian tribes, or sureties 
performing under a takeover agreement entered into with a Federal agency under a performance 
bond may choose to only verify new and existing employees assigned to the Federal contract. Such 
Federal contractors may, however, elect to verify all new hires, and/or all existing employees hired 
after November 6, 1986.  Employers in this category must begin verification of employees assigned 
to the contract within 90 calendar days after the date of enrollment or within 30 days of an 
employee’s assignment to the contract, whichever date is later.  

d. Upon enrollment, Employers who are Federal contractors may elect to verify employment 
eligibility of all existing employees working in the United States who were hired after November 6, 
1986, instead of verifying only those employees assigned to a covered Federal contract. After 
enrollment, Employers must elect to verify existing staff following DHS procedures and begin        
E-Verify verification of all existing employees within 180 days after the election.  

e. The Employer may use a previously completed Form I-9 as the basis for creating an E-Verify 
case for an employee assigned to a contract as long as: 

i. That Form I-9 is complete (including the SSN) and complies with Article II.A.6,  

ii. The employee’s work authorization has not expired, and  

iii. The Employer has reviewed the Form I-9 information either in person or in 
communications with the employee to ensure that the employee’s Section 1, Form I-9 
attestation has not changed (including, but not limited to, a lawful permanent resident alien 
having become a naturalized U.S. citizen).  

f. The Employer shall complete a new Form I-9 consistent with Article II.A.6 or update the 
previous Form I-9 to provide the necessary information if: 

i. The Employer cannot determine that Form I-9 complies with Article II.A.6,  

ii. The employee’s basis for work authorization as attested in Section 1 has expired or 
changed, or  

iii. The Form I-9 contains no SSN or is otherwise incomplete.  

Note:  If Section 1 of Form I-9 is otherwise valid and up-to-date and the form otherwise complies with 

   

1636335



 

 

 

Page 7 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number:

Article II.C.5, but reflects documentation (such as a U.S. passport or Form I-551) that expired after 
completing Form I-9, the Employer shall not require the production of additional documentation, or use 
the photo screening tool described in Article II.A.5, subject to any additional or superseding instructions 
that may be provided on this subject in the E-Verify User Manual.  

g. The Employer agrees not to require a second verification using E-Verify of any assigned 
employee who has previously been verified as a newly hired employee under this MOU or to 
authorize verification of any existing employee by any Employer that is not a Federal contractor 
based on this Article. 

3.  The Employer understands that if it is a Federal contractor, its compliance with this MOU is a 
performance requirement under the terms of the Federal contract or subcontract, and the Employer 
consents to the release of information relating to compliance with its verification responsibilities under 
this MOU to contracting officers or other officials authorized to review the Employer’s compliance with 
Federal contracting requirements.  

C. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SSA  

1.  SSA agrees to allow DHS to compare data provided by the Employer against SSA’s database.  SSA 
sends DHS confirmation that the data sent either matches or does not match the information in SSA’s 
database. 

2.  SSA agrees to safeguard the information the Employer provides through E-Verify procedures.  SSA 
also agrees to limit access to such information, as is appropriate by law, to individuals responsible for 
the verification of Social Security numbers or responsible for evaluation of E-Verify or such other 
persons or entities who may be authorized by SSA as governed by the Privacy Act (5 U.S.C. § 552a), 
the Social Security Act (42 U.S.C. 1306(a)), and SSA regulations (20 CFR Part 401).    

3.  SSA agrees to provide case results from its database within three Federal Government work days of 
the initial inquiry.  E-Verify provides the information to the Employer.   

4.  SSA agrees to update SSA records as necessary if the employee who contests the SSA tentative 
nonconfirmation visits an SSA field office and provides the required evidence.  If the employee visits an 
SSA field office within the eight Federal Government work days from the date of referral to SSA, SSA 
agrees to update SSA records, if appropriate, within the eight-day period unless SSA determines that 
more than eight days may be necessary.  In such cases, SSA will provide additional instructions to the 
employee.  If the employee does not visit SSA in the time allowed, E-Verify may provide a final 
nonconfirmation to the employer.   

Note: If an Employer experiences technical problems, or has a policy question, the employer should 
contact E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218. 

D. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHS  

1.  DHS agrees to provide the Employer with selected data from DHS databases to enable the 
Employer to conduct, to the extent authorized by this MOU:  

a. Automated verification checks on alien employees by electronic means, and  
    

1636335



 

 

 

Page 8 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number:

b. Photo verification checks (when available) on employees.  

2.  DHS agrees to assist the Employer with operational problems associated with the Employer's 
participation in E-Verify. DHS agrees to provide the Employer names, titles, addresses, and telephone 
numbers of DHS representatives to be contacted during the E-Verify process.  

3.  DHS agrees to provide to the Employer with access to E-Verify training materials as well as an        
E-Verify User Manual that contain instructions on E-Verify policies, procedures, and requirements for 
both SSA and DHS, including restrictions on the use of E-Verify.  

4.  DHS agrees to train Employers on all important changes made to E-Verify through the use of 
mandatory refresher tutorials and updates to the E-Verify User Manual. Even without changes to        
E-Verify, DHS reserves the right to require employers to take mandatory refresher tutorials. 

5.  DHS agrees to provide to the Employer a notice, which indicates the Employer's participation in       
E-Verify. DHS also agrees to provide to the Employer anti-discrimination notices issued by the Office of 
Special Counsel for Immigration-Related Unfair Employment Practices (OSC), Civil Rights Division, 
U.S. Department of Justice.  

6.  DHS agrees to issue each of the Employer’s E-Verify users a unique user identification number and 
password that permits them to log in to E-Verify.     

7.  DHS agrees to safeguard the information the Employer provides, and to limit access to such 
information to individuals responsible for the verification process, for evaluation of E-Verify, or to such 
other persons or entities as may be authorized by applicable law. Information will be used only to verify 
the accuracy of Social Security numbers and employment eligibility, to enforce the INA and Federal 
criminal laws, and to administer Federal contracting requirements.  

8.  DHS agrees to provide a means of automated verification that provides (in conjunction with SSA 
verification procedures) confirmation or tentative nonconfirmation of employees' employment eligibility 
within three Federal Government work days of the initial inquiry.  

9.  DHS agrees to provide a means of secondary verification (including updating DHS records) for 
employees who contest DHS tentative nonconfirmations and photo mismatch tentative 
nonconfirmations. This provides final confirmation or nonconfirmation of the employees' employment 
eligibility within 10 Federal Government work days of the date of referral to DHS, unless DHS 
determines that more than 10 days may be necessary. In such cases, DHS will provide additional 
verification instructions.  

ARTICLE III  
REFERRAL OF INDIVIDUALS TO SSA AND DHS  

A.  REFERRAL TO SSA  

1.  If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by SSA, the Employer must print the 
notice as directed by E-Verify.  The Employer must promptly notify employees in private of the finding 
and provide them with the notice and letter containing information specific to the employee’s E-Verify 

    

1636335



 

 

 

Page 9 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number:

case.  The Employer also agrees to provide both the English and the translated notice and letter for 
employees with limited English proficiency to employees.  The Employer agrees to provide written 
referral instructions to employees and instruct affected employees to bring the English copy of the letter 
to the SSA.  The Employer must allow employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action 
against employees if they choose to contest the finding, while their case is still pending.  

2.  The Employer agrees to obtain the employee’s response about whether he or she will contest the 
tentative nonconfirmation as soon as possible after the Employer receives the tentative 
nonconfirmation.  Only the employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative 
nonconfirmation.  

3.  After a tentative nonconfirmation, the Employer will refer employees to SSA field offices only as 
directed by E-Verify.  The Employer must record the case verification number, review the employee 
information submitted to E-Verify to identify any errors, and find out whether the employee contests the 
tentative nonconfirmation. The Employer will transmit the Social Security number, or any other 
corrected employee information that SSA requests, to SSA for verification again if this review indicates 
a need to do so.  

4.  The Employer will instruct the employee to visit an SSA office within eight Federal Government work 
days. SSA will electronically transmit the result of the referral to the Employer within 10 Federal 
Government work days of the referral unless it determines that more than 10 days is necessary.  

5.  While waiting for case results, the Employer agrees to check the E-Verify system regularly for case 
updates.  

6.  The Employer agrees not to ask the employee to obtain a printout from the Social Security 
Administration number database (the Numident) or other written verification of the SSN from the SSA.  

B. REFERRAL TO DHS  

1.  If the Employer receives a tentative nonconfirmation issued by DHS, the Employer must promptly 
notify employees in private of the finding and provide them with the notice and letter containing 
information specific to the employee’s E-Verify case.  The Employer also agrees to provide both the 
English and the translated notice and letter for employees with limited English proficiency to 
employees. The Employer must allow employees to contest the finding, and not take adverse action 
against employees if they choose to contest the finding, while their case is still pending. 

2.  The Employer agrees to obtain the employee’s response about whether he or she will contest the 
tentative nonconfirmation as soon as possible after the Employer receives the tentative 
nonconfirmation.  Only the employee may determine whether he or she will contest the tentative 
nonconfirmation. 

3.  The Employer agrees to refer individuals to DHS only when the employee chooses to contest a 
tentative nonconfirmation.  

4.  If the employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation issued by DHS, the Employer will instruct the 

   

1636335



 

 

 

Page 10 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number:

employee to contact DHS through its toll-free hotline (as found on the referral letter) within eight 
Federal Government work days.  

5.  If the Employer finds a photo mismatch, the Employer must provide the photo mismatch tentative 
nonconfirmation notice and follow the instructions outlined in paragraph 1 of this section for tentative 
nonconfirmations, generally.    

6.  The Employer agrees that if an employee contests a tentative nonconfirmation based upon a photo 
mismatch, the Employer will send a copy of the employee’s Form I-551, Form I-766, U.S. Passport, or 
passport card to DHS for review by:  

a. Scanning and uploading the document, or  

b. Sending a photocopy of the document by express mail (furnished and paid for by the employer).  

7.  The Employer understands that if it cannot determine whether there is a photo match/mismatch, the 
Employer must forward the employee’s documentation to DHS as described in the preceding 
paragraph.  The Employer agrees to resolve the case as specified by the DHS representative who will 
determine the photo match or mismatch.  

8.  DHS will electronically transmit the result of the referral to the Employer within 10 Federal 
Government work days of the referral unless it determines that more than 10 days is necessary. 

9.  While waiting for case results, the Employer agrees to check the E-Verify system regularly for case 
updates. 

ARTICLE IV  
SERVICE PROVISIONS  

A.  NO SERVICE FEES 

1.  SSA and DHS will not charge the Employer for verification services performed under this MOU. The 
Employer is responsible for providing equipment needed to make inquiries. To access E-Verify, an 
Employer will need a personal computer with Internet access.  

ARTICLE V 
MODIFICATION AND TERMINATION 

A.  MODIFICATION  

1.  This MOU is effective upon the signature of all parties and shall continue in effect for as long as the 
SSA and DHS operates the E-Verify program unless modified in writing by the mutual consent of all 
parties.  

2.  Any and all E-Verify system enhancements by DHS or SSA, including but not limited to E-Verify 
checking against additional data sources and instituting new verification policies or procedures, will be 
covered under this MOU and will not cause the need for a supplemental MOU that outlines these 
changes. 

    

1636335



 

 

 

Page 11 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13  

Company ID Number:

B.  TERMINATION 

1.  The Employer may terminate this MOU and its participation in E-Verify at any time upon 30 days 
prior written notice to the other parties.  

2.  Notwithstanding Article V, part A of this MOU, DHS may terminate this MOU, and thereby the 
Employer’s participation in E-Verify, with or without notice at any time if deemed necessary because of 
the requirements of law or policy, or upon a determination by SSA or DHS that there has been a breach 
of system integrity or security by the Employer, or a failure on the part of the Employer to comply with 
established E-Verify procedures and/or legal requirements. The Employer understands that if it is a 
Federal contractor, termination of this MOU by any party for any reason may negatively affect the 
performance of its contractual responsibilities.  Similarly, the Employer understands that if it is in a state 
where E-Verify is mandatory, termination of this by any party MOU may negatively affect the 
Employer’s business.   

3.  An Employer that is a Federal contractor may terminate this MOU when the Federal contract that 
requires its participation in E-Verify is terminated or completed. In such cases, the Federal contractor 
must provide written notice to DHS. If an Employer that is a Federal contractor fails to provide such 
notice, then that Employer will remain an E-Verify participant, will remain bound by the terms of this 
MOU that apply to non-Federal contractor participants, and will be required to use the E-Verify 
procedures to verify the employment eligibility of all newly hired employees. 

4. The Employer agrees that E-Verify is not liable for any losses, financial or otherwise, if the Employer 
is terminated from E-Verify. 

ARTICLE VI 
PARTIES 

A. Some or all SSA and DHS responsibilities under this MOU may be performed by contractor(s), and 
SSA and DHS may adjust verification responsibilities between each other as necessary. By separate 
agreement with DHS, SSA has agreed to perform its responsibilities as described in this MOU.  

B. Nothing in this MOU is intended, or should be construed, to create any right or benefit, substantive 
or procedural, enforceable at law by any third party against the United States, its agencies, officers, or 
employees, or against the Employer, its agents, officers, or employees.  

C. The Employer may not assign, directly or indirectly, whether by operation of law, change of control or 
merger, all or any part of its rights or obligations under this MOU without the prior written consent of 
DHS, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  Any attempt to sublicense, assign, 
or transfer any of the rights, duties, or obligations herein is void. 

D. Each party shall be solely responsible for defending any claim or action against it arising out of or 
related to E-Verify or this MOU, whether civil or criminal, and for any liability wherefrom, including (but 
not limited to) any dispute between the Employer and any other person or entity regarding the 
applicability of Section 403(d) of IIRIRA to any action taken or allegedly taken by the Employer.  

E. The Employer understands that its participation in E-Verify is not confidential information and may be 
disclosed as authorized or required by law and DHS or SSA policy, including but not limited to, 

   

1636335



 

 

 

Page 12 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number:

Congressional oversight, E-Verify publicity and media inquiries, determinations of compliance with 
Federal contractual requirements, and responses to inquiries under the Freedom of Information Act 
(FOIA).  

F.  The individuals whose signatures appear below represent that they are authorized to enter into this 
MOU on behalf of the Employer and DHS respectively. The Employer understands that any inaccurate 
statement, representation, data or other information provided to DHS may subject the Employer, its 
subcontractors, its employees, or its representatives to: (1) prosecution for false statements pursuant to 
18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or; (2) immediate termination of its MOU and/or; (3) possible debarment or 
suspension. 

G. The foregoing constitutes the full agreement on this subject between DHS and the Employer.  

To be accepted as an E-Verify participant, you should only sign the Employer’s Section of the 
signature page. If you have any questions, contact E-Verify at 1-888-464-4218.   

   

1636335



 

 

 

 

  
 

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Page 13 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13     

Company ID Number:

Approved by: 

Employer  

Name (Please Type or Print) Title 

Signature Date 

Department of Homeland Security – Verification Division 

Name (Please Type or Print) Title 

Signature Date 

1636335

Six Mile Community Development District

Darren De Santis

Electronically Signed 01/29/2021

USCIS Verification Division

Electronically Signed 01/29/2021



 

 

 

Page 14 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13  

Company ID Number:

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Information Required for the E-Verify Program 

Information relating to your Company: 

Company Name 

Company Facility Address 

Company Alternate Address 

County or Parish 

Employer Identification Number 

North American Industry 
Classification Systems Code 

Parent Company 

Number of Employees 

Number of Sites Verified for 

  

   

1636335

Six Mile Community Development District

475 West Town Place
Saint Augustine, FL 32092

SAINT JOHNS

208784443

925

1 to 4

1



Page 15 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 

Are you verifying for more than 1 site? If yes, please provide the number of sites verified for in 
each State: 

1636335

FLORIDA 1 site(s)



Page 16 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 

Information relating to the Program Administrator(s) for your Company on policy questions or 
operational problems:  

1636335

Name Kelly  Adams
Phone Number (865) 717 - 7700
Fax Number
Email Address kadams@gmstnn.com

Name Darren A De Santis
Phone Number (954) 721 - 8681 ext. 208
Fax Number
Email Address ddesantis@gmssf.com



Page 17 of 17 E-Verify MOU for Employers | Revision Date 06/01/13 

Company ID Number: 1636335

Page intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



C:\Users\BlairS\Desktop\ALL CDD'S - Copy\Sixmile CDD (Whisper Creek)\Mtg. Agendas\17Feb21.doc 2/12/2021 

Six Mile Creek Community Development District 
 

February 17, 2021 

 

 

 
1. Consideration of Requisitions 60 - 80 (2020 Bond Series) 

 

2. Consideration of Requisitions 31 - 34 (2017 NW Parcel Subaccount (Phase 6) 
 

3. Consideration of Requisitions Phase 9 Bond Series-Developer Funded 

 

4. Ratification of Change Order No. 1 – TrailMark Phase 6 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

Scott A. Wild 
District Engineer 

England-Thims & Miller, Inc. 

 



Date of 
Requisition Req # Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

2/17/2021 60 Weyerhaeuser NP Company Mitigation bank credit purchase-Trailmark Phase from St. Johns Mitigation Bank 86,400.00$                      
2/17/2021 61 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 - Invoice 8323 2,393.75$                        
2/17/2021 62 ETM East Parcel Phase 1-CEI Services (WA#42) Invoice 196489 (Dec 2020) 4,871.18$                        
2/17/2021 63 ETM Master Site Planning  (WA#51) Invoice 196233 (Nov 2020) 369.50$                           
2/17/2021 64 ETM Master Site Planning  (WA#51) Invoice 196382 (Dec 2020) 1,375.50$                        
2/17/2021 65 ETM East Parcel Phase 1 Amenities and Amenity Center - Construction Documents Invoice 196240 (WA#41) (Nov 2020)20,747.58$                      
2/17/2021 66 ETM East Parcel Phase 1 Amenities and Amenity Center - Construction Documents Invoice 196488 (WA#41) (Dec 2020)7,770.00$                        
2/17/2021 67 North Florida Landscape Co. Landscape Services: Landscape Parking lots-Phase 1 - Invoice 22061 4,158.00$                        
2/17/2021 68 North Florida Landscape Co. Landscape Services: Well Drilling for recharge system at Pnd 2#3 - Invoice 22060 1,150.00$                        
2/17/2021 69 Hopping Green & Sams Professional Services related to Project Construction-Invoice 119568 (Nov 2020) 329.00$                           
2/17/2021 70 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 - Application for Payment No. 10 396,328.00$                     
2/17/2021 71 Carlton Construction, Inc. Trailmark Entry & Parks - Application for Payment No. 4 1,300.00$                        
2/17/2021 72 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 - Invoice 8277 12,030.00$                      
2/17/2021 73 ECS Florida, LLC Geotechnical Services - Trailmark Development - Invoice 849515 2,000.00$                        
2/17/2021 74 ETM East Parcel Phase 1-CEI Services (WA#42) Invoice 196855 (Jan 2021) 7,058.81$                       
2/17/2021 75 ETM East Parcel Phase 1-CEI Services (WA#42) Invoice 196241 (Nov 2020) 3,038.75$                       
2/17/2021 76 ETM East Parcel Phase 1 Amenities and Amenity Center - Construction Documents Invoice 196854 (WA#41) (Jan 2021) 3,971.78$                       
2/17/2021 77 Carlton Construction, Inc. Trailmark Entry & Parks - Application for Payment No. 1 172,623.04$                   
2/17/2021 78 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 - Application for Payment No. 11 71,686.87$                     
2/17/2021 79 Sterling Specialities, Inc. Trailmark Whisper Creek Dog Park - Invoice 11401 (Balance Remaining) 28,310.00$                     
2/17/2021 80 ETM Consumptive Uses of Water Permit (WA#21, Amendment #2) Invoice 196853 1,041.00$                       

2020 BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED 828,952.76$                

Date of 
Requisition Req # Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

2/17/2021 31 ETM Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) Invoice 196490 (Dec 2020) 2,914.18$                        
2/17/2021 32 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 and 4D Lot Fill - Application for Payment No. 7 242,133.10$                     
2/17/2021 33 ETM Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) Invoice 196856 (Jan 2021) 7,702.81$                        
2/17/2021 34 Vallencourt Construction Co., Inc. Trailmark East Parcel Phase 6 and 4D Lot Fill - Application for Payment No. 8 363,050.07$                     

2017 NW PARCEL SUBACCOUNT (PHASE 6 ONLY) REQUISITIONS TO BE APPROVED 615,800.16$                

Date of 
Requisition Payee Reference INVOICE AMOUNT

12/9/2020 ECS Florida, LLC Geotechnical Services - Trailmark Phases 9 Roads and Pump Station - Invoice 848738 3,400.00$                        

1/28/2021 Clary & Associates, Inc. Phase 9 set control for construction - Invoice 2020-718 1,850.00$                        

1/28/2021 Clary & Associates, Inc. Phase 9 set control for construction - Invoice 2020-767 2,335.00$                        

1/28/2021 Clary & Associates, Inc. Phase 9 Map & Description of Phase 9C - Invoice 2020-671 450.00$                           
1/28/2021 Clary & Associates, Inc. Phase 9 Map & Description of Phase 11B - Invoice 2020-672 450.00$                           

1/28/2021 ETM Proposal Documents and RFP Process for Phases 9A, 9B and 9C (WA#46) Invoice 195941 (Oct 2020) 540.00$                           

1/28/2021 ETM Proposal Documents and RFP Process for Phases 9A, 9B and 9C (WA#46) Invoice 196244 (Nov 2020) 7,769.05$                        

1/28/2021 ETM Proposal Documents and RFP Process for Phases 9A, 9B and 9C (WA#46) Invoice 196492 (Dec 2020) 3,140.25$                        

1/28/2021 ETM Trailmark Phase 9B - Invoice 196224 (Nov 2020) 9,161.85$                        

1/28/2021 ETM Trailmark Phase 9B - Invoice 196374 (Dec 2020) 1,840.28$                        

1/28/2021 Clary & Associates, Inc. Phase 9 Conservation Easements - Invoice 2020-527-2 380.00$                           

1/28/2021 Environmental Services, Inc. Environmental Services related to Trailmark Phase 9 - Invoice TE54353 1,458.64$                        

1/28/2021 ECS Florida, LLC Geotechnical Services - Trailmark Phases 9 Invoice 861514 (2021 Future Bonds) 24,500.00$                      

2/11/2021 ETM Proposal Documents and RFP Process for Phases 9A, 9B and 9C (WA#46) Invoice 196857 (Jan 2021) 1,608.50$                        

2/11/2021 ETM TrailMark Phase 11 (WA#45) Invoice 196725 2,498.50$                        

PHASE 9 BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED 61,382.07$                  

TOTAL REQUISITIONS TO BE APPROVED 1,506,134.99$             

PHASE 9 BOND ACCOUNT (DEVELOPER FUNDED)

2017 NW PARCEL SUBACCOUNT (PHASE 6 ONLY) TO BE APPROVED

2019 Phase 9 Bond Series (Developer Funded)

SIX MILE CREEK COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

2017 NW Parcel Subaccount (Phase 6 Only)

2016 A/B Bond Series

PENDING REQUISITIONS

2020 BOND SERIES TO BE APPROVED

2020 Bond Series

SMC REQ LIST  2.11.21





 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

D. 



 

Six Mile Creek CDD 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Alex Boyer 

February 2021 

Facility Manager Report 

 

 



Six Mile Creek CDD   

Facility Manager Report 

PAGE   2 

 
To: Six Mile Creek CDD          Board of Directors          Via E-mail 
      Jim Oliver                          District Manager             Via E-mail 
      Wes Haber                        District Attorney               Via E-mail 
      Scott Wild                          District Engineer             Via E-mail 
 
 

 

Amenities 
 

Overview 
 

Facility Usage 
& Updates 

 
 

Welcome 
Center 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
Amenity 

Pool/Camp 
House 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Fitness Center 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
We are starting into our second quarter of our preventative 
maintenance plan. Facility usage is increasing. The Camp house is 
booked consistently for most weekends this spring.  
 
 
 

• Fitness center WIFI firewall and routers were upgraded 

• Quarterly HVAC filters maintenance was serviced. 

• Welcome Center cloth furniture was deep cleaned.  

• Welcome Center flag was replaced 
 
 
 

• Camp house screen was replaced on entrance door 

• MR1 Unit was recalibrated, probes washed, and software 
upgrade 

• Quarterly Maintenance on pool pumps 

• Chlorine Spinner Replaced in pool pak 
 

 
 

• Fitness center WIFI firewall and routers were upgraded 

• Quarterly filter HVAC maintenance was serviced. 

• Women restroom door frame was anchored.  

• Cardio equipment electrical boards fixed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Six Mile Creek CDD   

Facility Manager Report 

PAGE   3 

 
Outdoor 

Amenities 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

New 
Project/Proposals 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

• New pickleball paddles and Volleyball nets were purchased 

• 9 trees were trimmed or cut down in the new kid’s 
adventure trail area.  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
  

• Board Approval on quotes to re sling pool lounge chairs 
 

• Pool Deck washed 

• Pool Tiles replaced 

• Pool umbrella tops dry cleaned 

• Amenity Center Trimming of Tree Canopy 

• Upgrade Amenity Center to fiber connection 

• Fix electrical box and light timer at Monument entrance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan

Canoe 1 1 1 1

Canoe 2 1 1

Tandem Kayak 3 2 1 1 1

Tandem Kayak 4 1 1 1 1

Single Kayak 5 2 4 1 1 1

Single Kayak 6 1 3 1 3

1 1 11 1

2

1 1 11 1 1 1

2

4

1 1 11

3

1

3

#
 R

e
n

ta
ls

 p
e

r 
m

o
n

th

Kayak/Canoe Rental



Six Mile Creek CDD   

Facility Manager Report 

PAGE   4 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Lifestyles 
 

Events Updates 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Other: 
Attachments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

• Valentine’s Scavenger Hunt for kids & adults 

• February 27th – 4th Annual Conquer the Trails 

• St. Patrick’s Bingo Night 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

• Quotes for Pool lounge chair slings 

• Vakpak Quarterly report 
 

   

 



Patio Lounge Chair Slings

Vendor # price per total

Ansana 25 $106.80 $3,245.00

Taylor & Associoates Inc 25 $119 $3,114

Sunnilandpatio 25 $102 $2,550



Date

11/16/2020

Quote #

1133

Bill To

Evergreen Lifestyles Management
10301 Deerwood Park Blvd., Ste 3200
Jacksonville, FL 32256
(P) 904-521-2072

Ship To

TrailMark
Lynzi Chambers
805 TrailMark Drive
St. Augustine, FL 32092
(P) 904-521-2072

940 Opie Arnold Road
Limestone, TN 37681
Toll Free Direct: 855-734-3580

P.O. Number Terms Rep Via

Total

Sales Tax  (6.0%)

See Terms Below

Quotation

Sales Do Not Include Sales Tax, Purchaser Responsible For All Local, State & Use Tax Unless
Otherwise Indicated. Quote Good For 30 Days. To process your order, please sign, date below and
return via email.
Thank You So Very Much For Your Business!!
Approved By: ________________________________

Date:______________________________________

Renna Levert Best Way

www.TaylorIncorporated.com

Taylor & Associates, Inc.

Item Code DescriptionQuantity Price Each Amount

Sling Replacement... Chaise Lounge Sling Replacement (Back & Seat) D-15025 119.00 2,975.00T

Terms: Prepay via Company Check or We accept Visa,
Master Card and American Express

Sling Fabric - Cane Wicker Aluminum
Lead time 4-5 weeks

Existing Back & Seat Sling is required

S & H Shipping & Handling Charges (Drop Ship Only) - Lift
Gate, Inside Delivery, Heads Up Call are available for
addition cost.

1 139.00 139.00

Shipping/handling charges and pricing are estimated for
2021 only, actual charges to be verified 10 days prior to
shipping.

$3,292.50

$178.50

Renna
Highlight

Renna
Highlight



Ansana Interior Design, Inc.

809 S. Orlando Ave, Ste B
Winter Park, FL  32789 US
407-440-1530
MELANIE@ANSANAINTERIORDESIGN.CO
M

Estimate
ADDRESS

Trailmark Amenity Buildings
Evergreen Lifestyles 
Management
10301 Deerwood Park Blvd., 
Suite 3200
Jacksonville, FL 32256

ESTIMATE # 1024
DATE 08/10/2020

  

DATE ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

Exterior Furniture
Replacement Chaise Slings/Deville Chaise - D-150 
Deville D-3 Cane Wicker Sling material

25 106.80 2,670.00T

Shipping
Shipping for replacement slings

1 575.00 575.00T

 

SUBTOTAL 3,245.00
TAX (6.5%) 210.93
TOTAL $3,455.93

Accepted By Accepted Date



2 Piece Custom Chaise Replacement Sling | Item CChS-2pc – Sunniland Patio - Patio Furniture in Boca Raton

https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/2-piece-chaise-lounge-sling[1/29/2021 9:54:18 AM]

YES, WE ARE CURRENTLY SHIPPING ORDERS. 

Our Retail sorefront is OPEN for business

        Read the COVID-19 Update:

READ THE MEMO

x

Back to: Replacement Slings Previous
/ Next

Sunniland Patio Parts
/
Replacement Slings

2 Piece Cusom Chaise Replacement Sling | Item CChS-2pc

$95.00
Item: CChS-2pc


 
 


Select Fabric

Replacement Sling Rod Size

Back: Top Width

Back: Bottom Width

LOGIN / JOIN / TWITTER  FACEBOOK  YOUTUBE  INSTAGRAM  PINTEREST  GOOGLEPLUS  Search

- Please Select Rod Size -

- Please Select Back: Top Width -


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PATIO FURNITURE COMMERCIAL FURNITURE UMBRELLAS CUSHIONS REPAIR PARTS REPAIR SERVICE BLOG VIDEOS ON SALE

0 CART 

Available Colors and Patterns

Black & White

FX-401 | White SlingWeave®

F8-201 | White TEXTILENE® 80
Fabric

DONE

https://sunniland-patio-patio-furniture-and-spas-in-boca-raton.myshopify.com/pages/covid-19-response
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/chair-replacement-sling-1pc
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/replacement_slings_ottoman
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/vendors?q=Sunniland%20Patio%20Parts
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/account/login
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/account/register
https://twitter.com/sunnilandpatio
https://www.facebook.com/SunnilandPatio
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCvkdovnou0iZxa02OCjTtKw
https://www.instagram.com/sunnilandpatio/
https://pinterest.com/sunnilandpatio/
https://plus.google.com/100002098885558849264
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/all-furniture-sectioned
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/commercial-furniture
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/new-umbrellas-just-in
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/list-collections
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/replacement-parts-sections
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/patio-furniture-repair-services
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/blogs/sunniblog
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/how-to
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/deals-of-the-month
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/cart
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/cart
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/cart
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/cart
javascript:void(0)
javascript:void(0)


2 Piece Custom Chaise Replacement Sling | Item CChS-2pc – Sunniland Patio - Patio Furniture in Boca Raton

https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/2-piece-chaise-lounge-sling[1/29/2021 9:54:18 AM]




Watch Repair Parts Videos

Back: Length

Seat: Top Width

Seat: Bottom Width

Seat: Length

Quantity


 Buy now

Free Shipping with your order of $150+

- Please Select Back: Bottom Width -

- Please Select Back: Length -

- Please Select Seat: Top Width -

- Please Select Seat: Bottom Width -

- Please Select Seat: Length -

https://cdn.shopify.com/s/files/1/1687/4361/products/freemont_2p0435_adjustable_lounge_chair1.jpg?v=1602004132
https://cdn.shopify.com/s/files/1/1687/4361/products/Chaise-Lounge-Measurements.png?v=1602004132
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/how-to
https://cdn.shopify.com/s/files/1/1687/4361/products/freemont_2p0435_adjustable_lounge_chair1.jpg?v=1602004132


2 Piece Custom Chaise Replacement Sling | Item CChS-2pc – Sunniland Patio - Patio Furniture in Boca Raton

https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/2-piece-chaise-lounge-sling[1/29/2021 9:54:18 AM]

Write a review

Please allow 2-3 weeks for cutting/sewing/shipping of slings

Specs
This cusom patio chaise lounge replacement sling is made with the top quality vinyl weave
fabric of your choice. We use heavy duty thread for durability.

How To Measure The Sling?

Leaving the sling fabric on the chaise lounge, grab a measuring tape and sart by
measuring the visible portion of the fabric.
Measure the width at the top and the bottom of the back of the chaise lounge. Make
sure you place the tape a few inches from the top and bottom because the rails
sometimes veer outward at the end and we don’t want that measurement.
Then measure the length of the rail from top to bottom.
Repeat the above process for your seat measurement.
Measure the sling rod (plasic sick) too, we've two sizes to choose from 1/4" and
7/32".

Videos
You can also watch these video tutorials to help with insallation and measuring:

How To Measure For Replacement Slings
How To Replace A Chaise Lounge Sling
Sling Replacement Troubleshooting
How To Clean Sling Furniture

How To Order The Correct Size?
Now that you have your measurements select them from our drop down menus.

Select sling rod size
Select Back- Top Width
Select Back- Bottom Width
Select Back- Length
Select Seat- Top Width
Select Seat- Bottom Width
Select Seat- Length
Select sling fabric

Have quesions? 
Contacts us via our live chat or call us, we'll help you with measuring or ordering the correct
sling for your patio sling chair.

We are happy to supply you up to 3 samples of the sling fabric colors, for you to select
accurately. Send a reques to sales@sunnilandpatio.com

Cusomer Reviews

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=sVjjys3Tvlw
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=62u2WSbslKM&amp;t=124s
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_Skd8yrBSL8
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=-_-jZgBxDus


2 Piece Custom Chaise Replacement Sling | Item CChS-2pc – Sunniland Patio - Patio Furniture in Boca Raton

https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/2-piece-chaise-lounge-sling[1/29/2021 9:54:18 AM]

Report as Inappropriate

Report as Inappropriate

Report as Inappropriate


Based on 3 reviews

Love Love Love

My neighbor was getting rid of his lounge chairs so I asked if I could have them. The fabric was
torn but I couldn't fnd chairs like them in my local retailers this season. With the help of the
videos I was able to take the correct measurements and get them apart to paint the frame.
Insalling the new fabric was easy. It is beautiful material and looks great with the paint. Perfect ft
and high quality product. Thinking about doing the res of my patio chairs now! Highly
Recommend!

Beautiful

My chaise lounges were tacky and torn I took them apart and painted them and ordered from
replacement sling from Sunnilandpatio- I followed their insructions for measuring and ordered
new slings in my project came out terrifc! I had a few issues on my end and Jef was quick to
respond to all my quesions and help me through it.

Excellent Workmanship

Got the sling replaced on my chaise lounge and it came back looking like a brand new chaise
lounge. These guys do a wonderful job!

Related products View all





Anthony on Jul 16, 2020



Linda Rich on May 01, 2019



Olivia on Mar 30, 2017

https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings


2 Piece Custom Chaise Replacement Sling | Item CChS-2pc – Sunniland Patio - Patio Furniture in Boca Raton

https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/2-piece-chaise-lounge-sling[1/29/2021 9:54:18 AM]

2 Piece Cusom Chair Replacement Sling |
Item CCS-2pc

$79.00
1 review

1 Piece Cusom Chair Replacement Sling |
Item CCS-1pc

$60.00
2 reviews

Cusom Ottoman Replacement Sling | Item
COS

$40.00
No reviews

Twitter

Facebook

Youtube

Insagram

Pinteres

GooglePlus



6101 N Federal Hwy.
Boca Raton, Florida 33487

P: 1-561-997-7114
E: sales@sunnilandpatio.com

Ofcial Reseller of Telescope Furniture

SEARCH
ABOUT US
SHIPPING / POLICIES
PRIVACY POLICY
CONTACT US

PATIO FURNITURE
COMMERCIAL
FURNITURE
UMBRELLAS
CUSHIONS
REPAIR PARTS
REPAIR SERVICE
BLOG
VIDEOS
ON SALE

Copyright © 2021 Sunniland Patio - Patio Furniture in Boca Raton. 
 
 
 
elo 
jcb 
maser 
paypal 
 
venmo 
visa

Back to the top

  

https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/patio-chair-replacement-slings-2pc
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/patio-chair-replacement-slings-2pc
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/chair-replacement-sling-1pc
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/chair-replacement-sling-1pc
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/replacement_slings_ottoman
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/replacement_slings_ottoman
https://twitter.com/sunnilandpatio
https://twitter.com/sunnilandpatio
https://twitter.com/sunnilandpatio
https://www.facebook.com/SunnilandPatio
https://www.facebook.com/SunnilandPatio
https://www.facebook.com/SunnilandPatio
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCvkdovnou0iZxa02OCjTtKw
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCvkdovnou0iZxa02OCjTtKw
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCvkdovnou0iZxa02OCjTtKw
https://www.instagram.com/sunnilandpatio/
https://www.instagram.com/sunnilandpatio/
https://www.instagram.com/sunnilandpatio/
https://pinterest.com/sunnilandpatio/
https://pinterest.com/sunnilandpatio/
https://pinterest.com/sunnilandpatio/
https://plus.google.com/100002098885558849264
https://plus.google.com/100002098885558849264
https://plus.google.com/100002098885558849264
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/
https://www.telescopecasual.com/
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/search
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/about-us
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/shipping-terms
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/privacy-policy
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/contact-us
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/all-furniture-sectioned
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/commercial-furniture
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/commercial-furniture
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/new-umbrellas-just-in
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/list-collections
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/replacement-parts-sections
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/patio-furniture-repair-services
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/blogs/sunniblog
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/pages/how-to
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/deals-of-the-month
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/patio-chair-replacement-slings-2pc
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/chair-replacement-sling-1pc
https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/replacement_slings_ottoman


2 Piece Custom Chaise Replacement Sling | Item CChS-2pc – Sunniland Patio - Patio Furniture in Boca Raton

https://www.sunnilandpatio.com/collections/replacement-slings/products/2-piece-chaise-lounge-sling[1/29/2021 9:54:18 AM]



TRAILMARK PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE REPORT
EQUIPMENT PERFORMANCE CONDITION NOTES AND RECOMMENDATIONS

Pak Pumps
WATCH FOR 

FEATURE PUMP
GOOD

Recirculation Pumps 1 & 2 performing as 
should, Feature Pump is a little loud need to 
keep an eye on it, Vacuum Pump basket was 
full of debris but we cleaned it out.

VFD
GOOD GOOD

VFD's for both recirculation pumps 1 & 2 
working properly, no fault codes or alarms 
listed, all wires securley connected

Electrical GOOD GOOD
No signs of tripped breakers, all electrical 
components working properly.

Filtration GOOD GOOD
Filters working properly, flow is in target 
range

Chemical Control GOOD GOOD Chemical Controller running fine

Pak Housing
BAD GOOD

Everything is good with the housing but the 
roof jacks (shocks) no longer hold the main 
lids up, they will need to be replaced.

Plumbing GOOD GOOD Plumbing is working properly with no leaks.

Pak Area GOOD GOOD Everything is good with the area of the pak.



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

A. 



Six	Mile	Creek
Community	Development	District

Unaudited Financial	Reporting
January	31,	2021



Totals
  Debt Capital (Memorandum Only)
 General Service Projects 2021

ASSETS:  
Cash $87,919 --- --- $87,919
Prepaid Expenses $125 --- --- $125
Investments:
Custody Account $312,570 --- --- $312,570
Series 2007

Reserve --- $34,599 --- $34,599
Construction --- --- $2,176 $2,176

Series 2015
Reserve --- $160,031 --- $160,031
Revenue --- $200,940 --- $200,940

Series 2016A
Reserve --- $443,550 --- $443,550
Revenue --- $443,364 --- $443,364
Prepayment --- $600 --- $600
Construction --- --- $453,431 $453,431
Cost of Issuance --- --- $2,570 $2,570

Series 2016B
Reserve --- $138,650 --- $138,650
Revenue --- $3,102 --- $3,102
Interest --- $4,855 --- $4,855
Prepayment --- $155,555 --- $155,555
Construction --- --- $1 $1

Series 2017A
Reserve --- $703,838 --- $703,838
Revenue --- $447,157 --- $447,157
Construction --- --- $0 $0
Construction - NW Parcel --- --- $3,820 $3,820

Series 2017B
Reserve --- $42,934 --- $42,934
Revenue --- $68 --- $68
Prepayment --- $6,239 --- $6,239
Interest --- $5 --- $5
Construction --- --- $2 $2

Series 2020
Reserve --- $414,875 --- $414,875
Revenue --- $11 --- $11
Capitalized Interest --- $2 --- $2
Construction --- --- $0 $0
Cost of Issuance --- --- $15,750 $15,750

Due from Capital Projects --- --- $956 $956
Due from Developer --- --- $783,356 $783,356
Due from General Fund --- --- $4,153 $4,153
TOTAL ASSETS $400,614 $3,200,374 $1,266,216 $4,867,205

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable $10,128 --- $783,356 $793,483
Due to Capital Projects $5,153 --- $956 $6,109
FUND BALANCES:  
Unrestricted for Debt Service Series 2007 --- $34,599 --- $34,599
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2015 --- $360,972 --- $360,972
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2016A --- $887,514 --- $887,514
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2016B --- $302,162 --- $302,162
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2017A --- $1,150,995 --- $1,150,995
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2017B --- $49,245 --- $49,245
Restricted for Debt Service Series 2020 --- $414,887 --- $414,887
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2007 --- --- $2,176 $2,176
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2016A --- --- $459,198 $459,198
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2016B --- --- $1 $1
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2017A --- --- $4,776 $4,776
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2017B --- --- $2 $2
Restricted for Capital Projects Series 2020 --- --- $15,751 $15,751
Unassigned $385,333 --- --- $385,333

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY $400,614 $3,200,374 $1,266,216 $4,867,205

Governmental Fund Types

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Combined Balance Sheet
January 31, 2021

1



Six Mile Creek
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

General Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the period ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21  THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Special Assessments - Tax Roll $709,200 $571,989 $571,989 $0
Special Assessments - Direct Billed $89,533 $22,383 $22,383 $0

 Developer Contributions $197,674 $65,891 $70,326 $4,435  

Miscellaneous Revenue $0 $0 $580 $580 *

Interest $0 $0 $1 $1
   

TOTAL  REVENUES $996,407 $660,263 $665,279 $5,016

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE:
Supervisors Fees $12,000 $4,000 $2,200 $1,800
FICA Expense $918 $306 $168 $138
Engineering Fees $16,000 $5,333 $996 $4,337
Arbitrage $3,600 $0 $0 $0
Trustee Fees $21,550 $4,310 $4,310 $0
Dissemination $5,000 $1,667 $1,667 ($0)
Attorney Fees $22,000 $7,333 $5,812 $1,522
Annual Audit $5,315 $0 $0 $0
Assessment Administration $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $0
Management Fees $29,000 $9,667 $9,667 ($0)
Information Technology $1,200 $400 $400 $0
Telephone $300 $100 $159 ($59)
Postage $1,500 $500 $452 $48
Insurance $6,525 $6,525 $6,218 $307
Printing & Binding $2,500 $833 $878 ($45)
Travel Per Diem $250 $83 $0 $83
Legal Advertising $5,000 $1,667 $426 $1,240
Meeting Room Fees $0 $0 $500 ($500)
Bank Fees $800 $267 $321 ($54)
Other Current Charges $500 $167 $102 $65
Office Supplies $350 $117 $49 $67
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions $175 $175 $175 $0

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE $139,483 $48,449 $39,500 $8,950

OPERATION & MAINTENANCE:
Property Insurance $22,400 $22,400 $22,465 ($65)
Electric $43,000 $14,333 $12,517 $1,816
Water & Sewer $8,000 $2,667 $0 $2,667
Landscape Maintenance $263,995 $87,998 $86,125 $1,873
Landscape Contingency $40,000 $13,333 $12,575 $758
Irrigation Maintenance $20,000 $6,667 $6,439 $228
Lake Maintenance $22,000 $7,333 $6,700 $633
Lake Contingency $5,000 $1,667 $0 $1,667
Security Patrol $55,000 $18,333 $20,045 ($1,711)
Street Sweeping $8,000 $2,667 $500 $2,167
General Maintenance $10,000 $3,333 $1,287 $2,047
Dog Park - General Maintenance $5,000 $1,667 $0 $1,667
Kayak Launch - General Maintenance $5,000 $1,667 $340 $1,327

TOTAL OPERATION & MAINTENANCE $507,395 $184,065 $168,993 $15,072

January 31, 2021

2



Six Mile Creek
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

General Fund
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

For the period ending 

ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21  THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

AMENITY CENTER
Utilities
     Telephone $6,000 $2,000 $1,812 $188
     Electric $16,000 $5,333 $4,575 $758
     Water/Irrigation $26,000 $8,667 $14,252 ($5,586)
     Gas $1,000 $333 $339 ($5)
     Trash Removal $2,500 $833 $708 $125
Security
     Security Alarm Monitoring $1,100 $367 $140 $227
     Security Monitoring $12,400 $4,133 $5,479 ($1,346)
     Access Cards $1,000 $333 $0 $333
Management Contracts
     Facility Management $43,680 $14,560 $10,920 $3,640
     Landscape Maintenance $26,165 $8,722 $8,722 ($0)
     Landscape Seasonal (Annuals & Pinestraw) $8,000 $2,667 $0 $2,667
     Landscape Contingency $8,000 $2,667 $880 $1,787
     Field Management/Administrative $59,104 $19,701 $14,776 $4,925
     Pool Maintenance $16,500 $5,500 $4,125 $1,375
     Pool Repairs $7,500 $2,500 $417 $2,083
     Janitorial Services $13,740 $4,580 $4,580 $0
     Janitorial Supplies $3,500 $1,167 $804 $362
     Facility Maintenance $15,000 $5,000 $6,683 ($1,683)
     Fitness Equipment Lease $13,784 $4,595 $1,149 $3,446
     Pest Control $1,500 $500 $720 ($220)
Pool Permits $500 $500 $0 $500
Repairs & Maintenance $10,000 $3,333 $983 $2,351
Maintenance Reserves $10,000 $3,333 $0 $3,333
New Capital Projects $10,000 $3,333 $0 $3,333
Special Events $10,000 $3,333 $1,976 $1,357
Holiday Decorations $10,856 $9,863 $9,863 $0
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $3,500 $1,167 $6,925 ($5,758)
Office Supplies $500 $167 $0 $167
Operating Supplies $10,000 $3,333 $1,592 $1,741
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $1,700 $567 $364 $203

TOTAL AMENITY CENTER $349,529 $123,088 $102,785 $20,303

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $996,407 $355,602 $311,277 $44,325

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $354,002

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $31,331

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $385,333

  

January 31, 2021

3



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest $0 $0 $1 $1

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $1 $1

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2007
Debt Service Obligation $0 $0 $0 $0

 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $1

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer Out $0 $0 $0 $0
Other Debt Service Costs $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $1

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $34,598

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $34,599

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Reserve $34,599  
$34,599  

January 31, 2021

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2007A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

4



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Tax Roll $214,408 $172,931 $172,931 $0
Interest Income $500 $167 $5 ($162)

TOTAL REVENUES $214,908 $173,097 $172,936 $560,941

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2015
Special Call - 11/1 $0 $0 $5,000 ($5,000)
Interest Expense - 11/1 $61,109 $61,109 $61,109 $0
Principal Expense - 05/1 $90,000 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $61,109 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $212,219 $61,109 $66,109 ($5,000)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $2,689 $106,826

Fund Balance - Beginning $88,410 $254,145

Fund Balance - Ending $91,099 $360,972

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2015
Reserve $160,031  
Revenue $200,940

$360,972  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2015
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

January 31, 2021

5



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $444,917 $358,847 $358,847 $0
Interest Income $500 $167 $12 ($155)

TOTAL REVENUES $445,417 $359,014 $358,859 ($155)

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2016A
Special Call - 11/1 $0 $0 $105,000 ($105,000)
Interest Expense - 11/1 $167,984 $167,984 $167,984 $0
Principal Expense - 11/1 $105,000 $0 $0 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $166,016 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $439,000 $167,984 $272,984 ($105,000)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $6,417 $85,874

Fund Balance - Beginning $447,594 $801,639

Fund Balance - Ending $454,011 $887,514

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2016A
Reserve $443,550  
Revenue $443,364
Prepayment $600

$887,514  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2016A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

January 31, 2021

6



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments - Direct $136,300 $4,855 $4,855 $0
Assessments - Prepayments $0 $0 $155,554 $155,554
Interest Income $250 $83 $4 ($79)

TOTAL REVENUES $136,550 $4,938 $160,413 $155,475

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2016B
Special Call - 11/1 $40,000 $40,000 $150,000 ($110,000)
Interest Expense - 11/1 $69,325 $69,325 $69,325 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $68,150 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $177,475 $109,325 $219,325 ($110,000)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) ($40,925) ($58,912)

Fund Balance - Beginning $113,887 $361,074

Fund Balance - Ending $72,962 $302,162

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2016B
Reserve $138,650  
Revenue $3,102
Interest $4,855
Prepayment $155,555

$302,162  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2016B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

January 31, 2021

7



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $704,394 $428,537 $428,537 $0
Interest Income $250 $83 $16 ($67)

TOTAL REVENUES $704,644 $428,620 $428,553 ($67)

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2017A
Interest Expense - 11/1 $261,791 $261,791 $261,791 $0
Principal Expense - 11/1 $180,000 $180,000 $180,000 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $258,528 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $700,319 $441,791 $441,791 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $4,325 ($13,238)

Fund Balance - Beginning $439,929 $1,164,233

Fund Balance - Ending $444,254 $1,150,995

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2017A
Reserve $703,838  
Revenue $447,157

$1,150,995  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2017A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

January 31, 2021

8



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:

Assessments - Direct $29,158 $0 $0 $0
Assessments - Prepayments $0 $0 $6,239 $6,239
Interest $100 $33 $92 $59

TOTAL REVENUES $29,258 $33 $6,332 $6,298

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2017B
Special Call - 11/1 $525,000 $525,000 $525,000 $0
Interest Expense - 11/1 $28,623 $28,623 $28,623 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $14,579 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $568,201 $553,623 $553,623 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) ($538,943) ($547,291)

Fund Balance - Beginning $553,623 $596,536

Fund Balance - Ending $14,680 $49,245

Fund Balance Calculation

Series 2017B
Reserve $42,934
Revenue $68
Prepayment $6,239
Interest $5

$49,245

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2017B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

January 31, 2021

9



6 ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Assessments $414,875 $0 $0 $0
Interest Income $100 $33 $8 ($26)

TOTAL REVENUES $414,975 $33 $8 ($26)

EXPENDITURES:

Series 2020
Interest Expense - 11/1 $94,668 $94,668 $94,668 $0
Interest Expense - 05/1 $140,828 $0 $0 $0
Transfer Out $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $235,496 $94,668 $94,668 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $179,479 ($94,660)

Fund Balance - Beginning $94,668 $509,547

Fund Balance - Ending $274,147 $414,887

 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Series 2020
Reserve $414,875  
Revenue $11
Capitalized Interest $2

$414,887  

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Debt Service Fund - Series 2020
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

January 31, 2021

10



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest Income $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $2,176

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $2,176
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $2,176  
$2,176

January 31, 2021

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2007A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

11



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Miscellaneous Revenue $0 $0 $165,740 $165,740
Interest Income $0 $0 $6 $6

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $165,745 $165,745

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $165,745

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $165,745

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $293,453

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $459,198
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Constuction $453,431
Cost of Issuance $2,570  
Due from General Fund $4,153
Due to Capital Projects Series 2017A ($956)

$459,198

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2016A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

January 31, 2021

12



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Interest Income $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $1

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $1
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $1
$1

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2016B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

January 31, 2021

13



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Developer Contributions $0 $0 $242,133 $242,133
Interest $0 $0 $4 $4

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $242,137 $242,137

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0
Capital Outlay - Construction NW Parcel $0 $0 $384,736 ($384,736)

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $384,736 ($384,736)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 ($142,599)

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 ($142,599)

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $147,375

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $4,776
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $0
Construction - NW Parcel $3,820
Due from Capital Projects Series 2016A $956
Due from Developer $242,133
Contracts Payable ($242,133)

$4,776

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2017A
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

January 31, 2021

14



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Developer Contributions $0 $0 $0 $0
Interest $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $0 $0

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $0 $0

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $0 $0

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 $0

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 $0

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $2

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $2
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Construction $2
$2

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2017B
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

January 31, 2021

15



ADOPTED PRORATED BUDGET ACTUAL
BUDGET THRU 1/31/21 THRU 1/31/21 VARIANCE

REVENUES:
 
Developer Contributions $0 $0 $984,217 $984,217
Interest $0 $0 $13 $13

TOTAL REVENUES $0 $0 $984,230 $984,230

EXPENDITURES:

Capital Outlay - Construction $0 $0 $1,513,112 ($1,513,112)

Total Expenditures $0 $0 $1,513,112 ($1,513,112)

EXCESS REVENUES/(EXPENDITURES) $0 ($528,882)

OTHER SOURCES/(USES)

Interfund Transfer In/(Out) $0 $0 $0 $0

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES/(USES) $0 $0 $0 $0

Net Change in Fund Balance $0 ($528,882)

Fund Balance - Beginning $0 $544,633

Fund Balance - Ending $0 $15,751
 
 

Fund Balance Calculation  

Due from Developer $541,223
Construction $0
Cost of Issuance $15,750
Contracts Payable ($541,223)

$15,751

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Projects Fund - Series 2020
Statement of Revenues & Expenditures

January 31, 2021

16



Six Mile Creek Community Development District
General Fund

Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Total
Revenues:

Special Assessments - Tax Roll $0 $35,378 $288,041 $248,570 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $571,989
Special Assessments - Direct Billed $22,383 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,383
Developer Contributions $70,326 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $70,326
Miscellaneous Revenue $50 $500 $30 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $580
Interest $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1

Total Revenues $92,760 $35,878 $288,071 $248,570 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $665,279

Expenditures:

Administrative
Supervisor Fees $800 $800 $400 $200 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $2,200
FICA Expense $61 $61 $31 $15 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $168
Engineering Fees $123 $348 $525 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $996
Arbitrage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Trustee Fees $0 $0 $0 $4,310 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,310
Dissemination $417 $417 $417 $417 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,667
Attorney Fees $4,383 $1,429 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,812
Annual Audit $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Assessment Administration $5,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000
Management Fees $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $2,417 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,667
Information Technology $100 $100 $100 $100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $400
Telephone $77 $19 $45 $19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $159
Postage $108 $15 $289 $41 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $452
Insurance $6,218 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,218
Printing & Binding $19 $455 $151 $253 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $878
Travel Per Diem $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Legal Advertising $426 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $426
Meeting Room Fee $0 $0 $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500
Bank Fees $100 $79 $47 $95 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $321
Other Current Charges $0 $0 $102 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $102
Office Supplies $1 $22 $7 $19 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $49
Dues, Licenses, Subscriptions $175 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $175

Total Administrative $20,424 $6,161 $5,030 $7,885 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $39,500

Operation & Maintenance
Property Insurance $22,465 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $22,465
Electric $3,201 $3,155 $3,178 $2,984 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,517
Water & Sewer $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Landscape Maintenance $21,738 $21,463 $21,463 $21,463 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $86,125
Landscape Contingency $750 $0 $10,875 $950 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $12,575
Irrigation Maintenance $732 $0 $2,516 $3,190 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,439
Lake Maintenance $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $1,675 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,700
Lake Contingency $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Security Patrol $5,433 $5,628 $5,561 $3,424 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $20,045
Street Sweeping $500 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500
General Maintenance $0 $820 $467 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,287
Dog Park - General Maintenance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Kayak Launch - General Maintenance $40 $300 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $340

Total Operation & Maintenance $56,533 $33,040 $45,734 $33,685 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $168,993

17



Oct. Nov. Dec. Jan. Feb. Mar. Apr. May Jun. Jul. Aug. Sept. Total
Amenity Center
Utilities
     Telephone $445 $446 $464 $456 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,812
     Electric $1,111 $1,026 $1,267 $1,171 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,575
     Water/Irrigation $1,576 $1,077 $4,834 $6,765 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,252
     Gas $37 $121 $181 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $339
     Trash Removal $172 $172 $172 $193 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $708
Security
     Security Alarm Monitoring $35 $35 $35 $35 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $140
     Security Monitoring $1,096 $2,192 $1,096 $1,096 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,479
     Access Cards $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Management Contracts
     Facility Management $4,200 $3,360 $3,360 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,920
     Landscape Maintenance $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $2,180 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $8,722
     Landscape Contingency $220 $220 $220 $220 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $880
     Field Management/Administrative $4,925 $4,925 $4,925 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $14,776
     Pool Maintenance $1,375 $1,375 $1,375 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,125
     Pool Repairs $38 $7 $372 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $417
     Janitorial Services $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $1,145 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $4,580
     Janitorial Supplies $254 $444 $106 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $804
     Facility Maintenance $2,144 $3,036 $1,403 $100 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,683
     Fitness Equipment Lease $1,149 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,149
     Pest Control $0 $0 $0 $720 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $720
Pool Permits $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Repairs & Maintenance $0 $983 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $983
Maintenance Reserves $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
New Capital Projects $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Special Events $523 $433 $1,020 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,976
Holiday Decorations $0 $9,863 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $9,863
Fitness Center Repairs/Supplies $6,435 $325 $165 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $6,925
Office Supplies $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Operating Supplies $125 $69 $1,399 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,592
ASCAP/BMI Licenses $0 $0 $364 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $364

Total Amenity Center $29,187 $33,434 $26,083 $14,080 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $102,785

Total Expenditures $106,144 $72,635 $76,847 $55,651 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $311,277

Excess Revenues (Expenditures) ($13,384) ($36,757) $211,224 $192,920 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $354,002

Six Mile Creek Community Development District
General Fund

18



Six Mile Creek Community Development District
Developer Contributions/Due to Developer

Funding Prepare Check# Received Payment Total General General General Capital 2017 Capital 2020 Capital Over and
Request Date Date Amount Funding Fund Fund Fund (Due to (Due to (Due to (short)

# Request Portion (FY19) Portion (FY20) Portion (FY21) Developer) Developer) Developer) Balance Due

16 8/30/19 1795 10/4/19 $61,328.97 $61,328.97 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $61,328.97 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
17 9/11/19 1795 10/419 $48,483.34 $48,483.34 $48,483.34 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
18 9/25/19 WIRE 11/4/19 $37,512.87 $37,512.87 $6,236.87 $31,276.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
19 9/26/19 1830 12/13/19 $68,021.35 $68,021.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $68,021.35 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

AJE#1 9/30/19 N/A N/A $0.00 $0.00 ($102,399.00) $102,399.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1 10/14/19 WIRE 11/4/19 $76,579.69 $76,579.69 $20,149.88 $56,429.81 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2 10/31/19 1830 12/13/19 $35,177.54 $35,177.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $35,177.54 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3 12/19/19 1854 1/6/20 $54,233.89 $54,233.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $54,233.89 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
4 1/2/20 1856 1/21/20 $32,670.00 $32,670.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,670.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
5 1/17/20 1861 2/3/20 $50,855.88 $50,855.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $50,855.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
6 2/25/20 WIRE 4/10/20 $49,601.84 $49,601.84 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $49,601.84 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
7 4/20/20 WIRE 5/27/20 $316,971.51 $316,971.51 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $316,971.51 $0.00
8 8/28/20 WIRE 9/28/20 $32,259.42 $32,259.42 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $32,259.42 $0.00
9 9/4/20 WIRE 9/28/20 $79,003.14 $79,003.14 $0.00 $50,320.14 $28,683.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

10 10/16/20 975080 11/10/20 $41,935.00 $41,935.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $41,935.00 $0.00
1 10/16/20 975080 11/10/20 $42,965.49 $42,965.49 $0.00 $1,322.00 $41,643.49 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2 11/30/20 975097 12/23/20 $19,248.53 $19,248.53 $0.00 $19,248.53 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3 12/2/20 975097 12/23/20 $46,856.78 $46,856.78 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $46,856.78 $0.00
4 12/21/20 WIRE 1/20/21 $4,208.64 $4,208.64 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,208.64 $0.00
5 12/23/20 WIRE 1/20/21 $442,994.47 $442,994.47 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $442,994.47 $0.00 $0.00
6 1/29/21 $541,222.51 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $541,222.51 $0.00 ($541,222.51)
7 1/29/21 $242,133.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $242,133.10 $0.00 $0.00 ($242,133.10)
8 1/29/21 $25,166.43 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $25,166.43 ($25,166.43)

Due to Developer $1,540,908.35 $2,349,430.39 ($27,528.91) $260,995.48 $70,326.49 $594,022.57 $984,216.98 $467,397.78 ($808,522.04)

Total Developer Contributions FY21 $70,326.49

*FY19 column does not include Funding Requests #1-15 on FY19 summary schedule.

19



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2020

259A 3/5/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #1 - Curb & Asphalt Repairs for Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C 70,172.00$        
260A 3/5/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #2 - Curb & Asphalt Repairs for Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C 90,000.00$        
261A 4/1/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Trailmark Phase 2A Fire Hydrant 3,382.40$          
262A 6/23/20 ETM Surveying & Mapping, Inc. Invoice #18624 - Trailmark Phase 4C Platting 1,980.00$          
263A 7/10/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #3 - Curb & Asphalt Repairs for Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C 7,579.54$          
264A 7/10/20 Besch and Smith Civil Group, Inc. Application #4 - Curb & Asphalt Repairs for Trailmark Phase 2A & 4C 18,639.11$        
265A 8/25/20 Six Mile Creek CDD Reimbursement for MODCP Application Fee 132.00$             
266A 8/25/20 Six Mile Creek CDD Reimbursement for ROW Permit Fee 392.00$             

TOTAL 192,277.05$      

Fiscal Year 2020
10/1/19 Interest 34.96$               

10/30/19 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 573799 Utility Reimbursement 73,628.48$        
11/1/19 Interest 30.41$               
12/1/19 Interest 38.22$               
1/2/20 Interest 39.50$               
2/3/20 Interest 39.39$               

2/14/20 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 576202 Utility Reimbursement 58,127.41$        
3/2/20 Interest 35.80$               
4/1/20 Interest 11.94$               
4/1/20 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 578604 Utility Reimbursement 36,712.06$        
5/1/20 Interest 1.77$                 
6/1/20 Interest 2.05$                 
7/1/20 Interest 1.18$                 

7/29/20 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 581107 Utility Reimbursement 74,953.78$        
8/3/20 Interest 1.06$                 
9/1/20 Interest 1.22$                 

TOTAL 243,659.23$      

236,303.89$      
243,659.23$      

(192,277.05)$    

287,686.07$      

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest 1.18$                 

10/30/20 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners Chk# 584204 Utility Reimbursement 104,017.48$      
11/2/20 Interest 1.25$                 
12/1/20 Interest 1.61$                 
1/4/21 Interest 1.66$                 

1/28/21 St.Johns Cty Board Commissioners CHK# 587721 Utility Reimbursement 61,722.22$        

TOTAL 165,745.40$      

287,686.07$      
165,745.40$      

-$                  

453,431.47$      

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016A

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/19
Interest Earned thru 9/30/20

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20
Interest Earned thru 1/31/21

Requisitions Paid thru 1/31/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/20

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

21



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2020

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2020
10/1/19 Interest -$                  
11/1/19 Interest -$                  
12/1/19 Interest -$                  
1/2/20 Interest -$                  
2/3/20 Interest -$                  
3/2/20 Interest -$                  
4/1/20 Interest -$                  
5/1/20 Interest -$                  
6/1/20 Interest -$                  
7/1/20 Interest -$                  
8/1/20 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

1.20$                 
-$                  
-$                  

1.20$                 

Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest -$                  
11/2/20 Interest -$                  
12/1/20 Interest -$                  
1/4/21 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

1.20$                 
-$                  
-$                  

1.20$                 

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20
Interest Earned thru 1/31/21

Requisitions Paid thru 1/31/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Requisitions Paid thru 9/30/20

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2016B

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/19
Interest Earned thru 9/30/20

22



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest -$                  
11/2/20 Interest -$                  
12/1/20 Interest -$                  
1/4/21 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

0.23$                 
-$                  
-$                  

0.23$                 

Requisitions Paid thru 1/31/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20
Interest Earned thru 1/31/21

23



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

10/26/20 25 Vallencourt Construction Co. Inc. Appl# 5 - Trailmark East Parcel PH6 & Lot 4D Lot Fill 242,841.14$      
10/26/20 26 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #194693 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 3,422.01$          
12/14/20 27 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0195322 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 2,152.00$          
12/14/20 28 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0195704 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 3,041.41$          
12/14/20 29 England-Thims & Miller Inc. Invoice #0195942 - Phase 6 CEI Services (WA#43) 5,913.50$          
12/21/20 30 Vallencourt Construction Co. Inc. Appl# 6 - Trailmark East Parcel PH6 & Lot 4D Lot Fill 136,689.61$      

TOTAL 394,059.67$      

Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest 1.63$                 
11/2/20 Interest 1.48$                 
12/1/20 Interest 0.62$                 
1/4/21 Interest 0.41$                 

TOTAL 4.14$                 

397,875.71$      
4.14$                 

(394,059.67)$    

3,820.18$          

Requisitions Paid thru 1/31/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue Bonds, Series 2017A-NW Parcel

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20
Interest Earned thru 1/31/21

24



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

TOTAL -$                  

Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest -$                  
11/2/20 Interest -$                  
12/1/20 Interest -$                  
1/4/21 Interest -$                  

TOTAL -$                  

1.88$                 
-$                  
-$                  

1.88$                 

Requisitions Paid thru 1/31/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue & Refunding Bonds, Series 2017B

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20
Interest Earned thru 1/31/21

25



Date Requisition # Contractor Description Requisition
Fiscal Year 2021

10/26/20 27 Dock Medics of Florida, LLC Kayak Launch 11,950.00$        
10/26/20 28 St. Johns County Application Subcon 202000008 13,960.00$        
10/26/20 29 Sterling Specialties, Inc. Invoice #10979 - Whisper Creek Dog Park 24,750.00$        
10/26/20 30 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #117762-  Project Construction Services 164.50$             
10/26/20 31 Vallencourt Construction Appl# 6 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 370,458.52$      
10/26/20 32 Vallencourt Construction Appl# 7 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 509,838.99$      
10/26/20 33 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #2020-02 50,405.50$        
10/26/20 34 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #2020-01 76,735.00$        
10/26/20 35 Environmental Services, Inc. Invoice #TE17017 3,000.00$          
10/26/20 36 Environmental Services, Inc. Invoice #TD98913 3,750.00$          
10/26/20 37 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #Trailmark-08 7,564.00$          
10/26/20 38 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #194692 - East Parcel Phase 1 CEI Services (WA#42) 9,814.39$          
10/26/20 39 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #194668 -  East Parcel Phase 2 Preliminary Engineering (WA#44) 17,588.35$        
10/26/20 40 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #trailmark-07 7,500.00$          
10/26/20 41 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8192 - Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 5,152.00$          
10/26/20 42 Carlton Construction, Inc. Appl# 1 7,355.03$          
10/26/20 43 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8229 - Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 3,440.00$          
10/30/20 44 Vallencourt Construction Appl# 8 - Trailmark East Parcel Phase 1 218,229.79$      
12/14/20 45 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195320 - East Parcel PH1 Amenities & Amenity Center (WA#41) 6,390.00$          
12/14/20 46 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195321 - East Parcel Phase 1 - CEI Services (WA#42) 4,098.01$          
12/14/20 47 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195703 - East Parcel Phase 1 - CEI Services (WA#42) 5,315.51$          
12/14/20 48 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195696 - East Parcel PH1 Amenities & Amenity Center (WA#41) 6,649.55$          
12/14/20 49 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195885 - Phase 11 Construction (WA#48) 1,875.00$          
12/14/20 50 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195948 - East Parcel PH1 Amenities & Amenity Center (WA#41) 3,615.00$          
12/14/20 51 England-Thims & Miller, Inc. Invoice #0195947 - East Parcel Phase 1 - CEI Services (WA#42) 10,223.71$        
12/14/20 52 Basham & Lucas Design Group, Inc. Invoice #8260 - Trailmark Entry & Phase 1 1,250.00$          
12/14/20 53 Onsight Industries, LLC Invoice #0002-20-282499-1 - Park Benches 7,460.85$          
12/14/20 54 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #118424 - Project Construction Services 423.00$             
12/14/20 55 Carlton Construction, Inc. Application #2 - Trailmark Entry & Parks 1,358.44$          
12/14/20 56 Carlton Construction, Inc. Application #3 - Trailmark Entry & Parks 2,521.53$          
12/22/20 57 Vallencourt Construction Appl# 9 - Trailmark East Parcel PH1 - Partial Payment 89,589.39$        
12/22/20 58 Avid Trails, LLC Invoice #Trailmark-09 - Signage 7,500.00$          
12/22/20 59 Hopping, Green & Sams Invoice #119003 - Project Construction Services 493.50$             
1/22/21  Vallencourt Construction Appl# 9 - Trailmark East Parcel PH1 - Balance 442,994.47$      

TOTAL 1,933,414.03$   

Fiscal Year 2021
10/1/20 Interest 6.11$                 
11/2/20 Interest 5.17$                 
12/1/20 Interest 0.61$                 
1/4/21 Interest 0.37$                 

1/20/21 WIRE Developer Contributions 442,994.47$      

TOTAL 443,006.73$      

1,490,407.67$   
443,006.73$      

(1,933,414.03)$ 

0.37$                 

Requisitions Paid thru 1/31/21

Remaining Acquisition/Construction Fund

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Capital Improvement Revenue & Refunding Bonds, Series 2020
Assessment Area 2, Phase 3A

Acquisition/Construction Fund at 9/30/20
Interest Earned thru 1/31/21

26



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

B. 



SIX MILE CREEK CDD
FISCAL YEAR 2021 ASSESSMENT RECEIPTS

 ASSESSED TO # LOTS

SERIES 2015 
DEBT 

SERVICE 
ASMT

SERIES 
2016A DEBT 

SERVICE 
ASMT

SERIES 2017A 
DEBT SERVICE 

ASMT

SERIES 2020 
DEBT SERVICE 

ASMT
FY21 O&M 

ASMT TOTAL ASMTS
SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP LLC 1,490 -                -                173,077.80      414,875.00      89,532.78    677,485.58      
TOTAL DIRECT INVOICES NET 1,490 -                -                173,077.80     414,875.00     89,532.78    677,485.58      

TAX ROLL NET 788 214,408.21  444,916.84  531,321.01     -                   709,180.14  1,899,826.21  

TOTAL DISTRICT NET 2,278 214,408.21  444,916.84  704,398.81     414,875.00     798,712.92  2,577,311.79  

 RECEIVED FROM BALANCE DUE

SERIES 2015 
DEBT 

SERVICE 
ASMT

SERIES 
2016A DEBT 

SERVICE 
ASMT

SERIES 2017A 
DEBT SERVICE 

ASMT

SERIES 2020 
DEBT SERVICE 

ASMT O&M ASMT
TOTAL 

RECEIVED
SIX MILE CREEK INVESTMENT GROUP LLC 617,322.33      -                -                -                   15,216.60        44,946.65    60,163.25        
TOTAL DIRECT INVOICE PAID 617,322.33      -                -                -                   15,216.60       44,946.65    60,163.25        

TAX ROLL RECEIVED / DUE 367,523.01      172,930.76  358,847.29  428,536.51     -                   571,988.64  1,532,303.20  

TOTAL RECEIPTS / DUE 984,845.34      172,930.76  358,847.29  428,536.51     15,216.60       616,935.29  1,592,466.45  

TAX ROLL RECEIPTS

DISTRIBUTION DATE

SERIES 2015 
DEBT 

SERVICE 
RECEIVED

SERIES 
2016A DEBT 

SERVICE 
RECEIVED

SERIES 2017A 
DEBT SERVICE 

RECEIVED

SERIES 2020 
DEBT SERVICE 

RECEIVED
O&M 

RECEIVED
TOTAL 

RECEIVED
1 11/2/2020 271.29          562.95          672.28             -                   897.33          2,403.85          
2 11/12/2020 2,612.70       5,421.60       6,474.50          -                   8,641.83       23,150.63        
3 11/24/2020 7,811.79       16,210.18    19,358.24        -                   25,838.38    69,218.59        
4 12/3/2020 12,281.38    25,484.99    30,434.26        -                   40,622.09    108,822.72      
5 12/16/2020 74,802.80    155,222.72  185,367.43      -                   247,418.97  662,811.92      
6 1/7/2021 75,142.66    155,927.97  186,209.64      -                   248,543.12  665,823.39      

INTEREST 1/19/2021 8.14              16.88            20.16               -                   26.92            72.10                
-                -                -                   -                   -                
-                -                -                   -                   -                
-                -                -                   -                   -                
-                -                -                   -                   -                
-                -                -                   -                   -                
-                -                -                   -                   -                
-                -                -                   -                   -                
-                -                -                   -                   -                

TOTAL TAX ROLL RECEIPTS 172,930.76  358,847.29  428,536.51     -                   571,988.64  1,532,303.20  

PERCENT COLLECTED DIRECT 0% 0% 0% 0% 50% 9%
PERCENT COLLECTED TAX ROLL 81% 81% 81% 0% 81% 81%
PERCENT COLLECTED TOTAL 81% 81% 61% 0% 77% 62%

OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE (O&M) IS DUE IN INSTALLMENTS OF 25% DUE 10/15/20, 
1/1/21, 4/1/21, 7/1/21.  THERE IS ALSO A FUNDING AGREEMENT OF $240,846

DEBT SERVICE ASSESSMENTS ARE DUE IN INSTALLMENTS WITH 40% DUE 4/1/21 AND 60%
DUE 9/30/21

SERIES 2016 AND 2017 B BONDS ARE TO BE PAID OFF AT CLOSING AND ARE ASSESSED SEPERATLEY AND DUE EACH 4/1 AND 9/30



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

C. 



  

Fund Date Check No.'s Amount
General Fund 12/2/20 3272 187.50$                             

12/4/20 3273-3288 28,175.44$                        
12/11/20 3289-3294 5,240.78$                          
12/18/20 3295-3300 842.66$                             
12/23/20 3301-3321 141,064.25$                      
1/8/21 3322-3338 37,037.13$                        
1/15/21 3339-3346 27,101.15$                        
1/22/21 3347-3355 459,156.57$                      
1/29/21 3356-3364 9,582.88$                          
2/3/21 3365 500.00$                             
2/5/21 3366-3377 40,292.14$                        

749,180.50$                      

Payroll December 2020
Gregg Kern 50039 184.70$                             

Michael Taylor 50040 184.70$                             
Wendy Hartley 50041 184.70$                             
Darren Glynn 50042 184.70$                             

738.80$                             

749,919.30$             

Six Mile Creek
Community Development District

Summary of Check Register

December 2, 2020 to February 10, 2021



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE   1
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

12/02/20 00098 12/02/20 51202A   202012 310-51300-49100                                     *              187.50
SPEAKER PHONE/SRVC CHARGE

RENAISSANCE WORLD GOLF VILLAGE                                    187.50 003272
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00027 11/19/20 15632743 202012 330-53800-41000                                     *              121.66

PHONE/INTERNET SRVC-DEC20
11/21/20 25729549 202012 330-53800-41000                                     *              133.77

PHONE/INTERNET SRVC-DEC20
AT&T                                                              255.43 003273

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00040 11/30/20 PW94051  202012 330-53800-43300                                     *              171.62

TRASH REMOVAL 12/01-12/31
ADVANCED DISPOSAL                                                 171.62 003274

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00139 11/28/20 AE112820 202011 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS 11/28/20
12/02/20 AE120220 202012 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS 12/02/20
ADAM EMINISOR                                                     320.00 003275

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00150 11/24/20 4795     202011 320-53800-47500                                     *            1,195.00

PRS.WSH/CLN-AMENTY/FIT/CH
11/24/20 4795     202011 320-53800-46000                                     *              550.00

PRS.WSH-PARK LOT/PLATGRND
11/24/20 4795     202011 320-53800-47600                                     *              300.00

PRS.WSH-KAYAK LAUNCH
ALL ABOUT WATER, LLC                                            2,045.00 003276

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00118 12/01/20 12029690 202012 330-53800-46600                                     *              220.00

MTHLY LAWN TREATMENT-DEC
BUG OUT SERVICE, LLC                                              220.00 003277

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00138 12/02/20 CM120220 202012 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS - 12/02/20
CHRISTOPHER MOBLEY                                                160.00 003278

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00141 11/30/20 NOV-247  202011 330-53800-46500                                     *            1,375.00

MTHLY POOL SERVICE NOV20
11/30/20 NOV-247  202011 330-53800-46501                                     *                6.84

12OZ PHOS-FREE
CROWN POOL CLEANING, INC                                        1,381.84 003279

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00066 11/25/20 23760    202011 320-53800-47400                                     *              175.00

RPLC THIGH MACHINE CABLE
ALWAYS IMPROVING LLC                                              175.00 003280

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE   2
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

12/04/20 00001 11/01/20 134      202011 310-51300-34000                                     *            2,416.67
MANAGEMENT FEES NOV20

11/01/20 134      202011 310-51300-35100                                     *              100.00
INFORMATION TECH NOV20

11/01/20 134      202011 310-51300-31300                                     *              416.67
DISSEMINATION FEE NOV20

11/01/20 134      202011 310-51300-51000                                     *               22.12
OFFICE SUPPLIES NOV20

11/01/20 134      202011 310-51300-42000                                     *               14.82
POSTAGE NOV20

11/01/20 134      202011 310-51300-42500                                     *              455.25
COPIES NOV20

11/01/20 134      202011 310-51300-41000                                     *               18.56
TELEPHONE NOV20

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                3,444.09 003281
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00025 11/09/20 23461163 202010 320-53800-34500                                     *            3,862.71

SECURITY SERVICES OCT20
GIDDENS SECURITY CORPORATION                                    3,862.71 003282

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00014 8/28/20 21968    202008 320-53800-47600                                     *              125.00

PINE TREES/LIMBS TRIMMED
8/28/20 21968    202008 320-53800-46600                                     *           12,592.80

PINESTRAW 1584 BALES
8/28/20 21968    202008 320-53800-46600                                     *               75.00

ELECT BREAKER PURCH INSTL
8/28/20 21968    202008 320-53800-46600                                     *              132.00

TRASH PICKUP ADDITIONAL
NORTH FLORIDA LANDSCAPE CO.                                    12,924.80 003283

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00028 11/01/20 101      202011 320-53800-46700                                     *            1,145.00

JANITORIAL SERVICES NOV20
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC.                              1,145.00 003284

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00137 11/30/20 RN113020 202011 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00

SECURITY SERV - 11/29/20
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             200.00 003285

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00039 11/01/20 4232B    202011 320-53800-46400                                     *            1,675.00

MTHLY LAKE SERVICES NOV20
SITEX AQUATICS LLC                                              1,675.00 003286

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/04/20 00084 12/01/20 20-36055 202012 320-53800-34600                                     *               34.95

MTHLY FIRE ALARM MNTR DEC
SECURITY ENGINEERING AND DESIGN,INC                                34.95 003287

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE   3
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

12/04/20 00151 11/30/20 WC113020 202011 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00
SECURITY SERV - 11/27/20

WILLIE CARSON III                                                 160.00 003288
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/11/20 00027 11/28/20 29256599 202012 330-53800-41000                                     *               16.05

PHONE/INTERNET SRVC-DEC20
AT&T                                                               16.05 003289

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/11/20 00139 12/09/20 AE120920 202012 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS - 12/09/20
ADAM EMINISOR                                                     160.00 003290

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/11/20 00065 12/02/20 9719044  202012 330-53800-54000                                     *              364.00

ANNUAL MUSIC LIC FEE-2020
BROADCAST MUSIC, INC.                                             364.00 003291

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/11/20 00138 12/11/20 CM121120 202012 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00

SECURITY SERVS - 12/11/20
CHRISTOPHER MOBLEY                                                200.00 003292

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/11/20 00005 12/02/20 35324-12 202011 320-53800-43000                                     *               67.20

596 TRAILMARK DR #PUMP
12/02/20 52068-78 202011 330-53800-43000                                     *               56.81

801 TRAILMARK DR #AMENITY
12/02/20 62363-50 202011 320-53800-43000                                     *            2,821.83

000 PACETTI RD
12/02/20 65107-18 202011 320-53800-43000                                     *               13.04

975 TRAILMARK DR #IRR
12/02/20 68881-76 202011 320-53800-43000                                     *               82.00

990 TRAILMARK DR #PUMP
12/02/20 88213-81 202011 320-53800-43000                                     *               17.08

1922 TRAILMARK DR #LS
12/02/20 96815-95 202011 320-53800-43000                                     *               29.02

2799 PACETTI RD #ENTRY
12/02/20 96904-98 202011 330-53800-43000                                     *              969.35

805 TRAILMARK DR #AMENITY
12/03/20 93295-44 202011 320-53800-43000                                     *              124.40

404 BLOOMFIELD WAY #PUMP
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT                                           4,180.73 003293

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/11/20 00137 12/07/20 RN120720 202012 320-53800-34500                                     *               80.00

SECURITY SRVC - 12/04/20
12/07/20 RN120720 202012 320-53800-34500                                     *              240.00

SECURITY SRVC - 12/06/20
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             320.00 003294

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE   4
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

12/18/20 00139 12/17/20 AE121720 202012 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00
SECURITY SERVS - 12/17/20

ADAM EMINISOR                                                     200.00 003295
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/18/20 00022 11/25/20 196195   202010 310-51300-31100                                     *              123.00

GEN.CONSLT.ENG.SVC(WA#40)
ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC                                       123.00 003296

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/18/20 00152 12/14/20 8071836  202012 310-51300-49100                                     *              101.70

CHRMAN/SUPRVISR NAMEPLATE
HC BRANDS                                                         101.70 003297

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/18/20 00137 12/16/20 RN121620 202012 320-53800-34500                                     *              120.00

SECURITY SRVC - 12/10/20
12/16/20 RN121620 202012 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SRVC - 12/14/20
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             280.00 003298

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/18/20 00034 12/09/20 21101409 202011 330-53800-43200                                     *               69.46

801 TRAILMARK DR - NOV20
TECO PEOPLES GAS                                                   69.46 003299

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/18/20 00117 11/24/20 21584079 202011 330-53800-51000                                     *               35.97

DUNKIN COFFEE/CHAI LATTE
11/25/20 21588474 202011 330-53800-51000                                     *               32.53

FRENCH/HAZELNUT CREAMER
W.B. MASON CO.,INC.                                                68.50 003300

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00139 10/08/20 AE100820 202010 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS - 10/08/20
ADAM EMINISOR                                                     160.00 003301

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00027 12/08/20 904 940- 202012 330-53800-41000                                     *              192.85

FIRE ALARM LINE0687 DEC20
AT&T                                                              192.85 003302

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00110 12/07/20 AAAO5215 202012 320-53800-51000                                     *            1,396.00

200-CONTROL ACCESS KEYFOB
COMMUNITY CONTROLS                                              1,396.00 003303

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 99999 12/23/20 VOID     202012 000-00000-00000                                     C                 .00

VOID CHECK
******INVALID VENDOR NUMBER******                                  .00 003304

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 99999 12/23/20 VOID     202012 000-00000-00000                                     C                 .00

VOID CHECK
******INVALID VENDOR NUMBER******                                  .00 003305

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE   5
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

12/23/20 00033 10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-12100                                     *            4,925.37
MANAGEMENT FEES OCT20

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-12200                                     *            4,200.00
ONSITE PERSONNEL OCT20

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47200                                     *              243.38
SAM CLB-HALLOWEEN DRK/SNK

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47500                                     *               27.99
TURNER ACE-AVILA PASS LVR

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47400                                     *               51.98
EVERLAST-LEATHER SPEED BG

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47500                                     *               20.98
AMAZON-WIRE COVER POOL DK

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 330-53800-46501                                     *               23.96-
PINCH PENNY-JUG RETURN

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47500                                     *               24.48
TURNER ACE-CLN OUT 30 SEC

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47500                                     *               33.96
TURNER ACE-GRD/TIES/TILE

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 330-53800-46501                                     *               62.45
PINCH PENNY-5SODIUM/5PAP

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-12100                                     *            4,925.37
MANAGEMENT FEES NOV20

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-12200                                     *            3,360.00
ONSITE PERSONNEL NOV20

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *              140.00
FAST JAXTRIVIA HOST-11/21

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *              140.00
FAST JAXTRIVIA HOST-12/05

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               72.42
PUBLIX-INSECT REPEL/ICE

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     *               14.26
TURNER ACE-SPRYPNT/CAULKG

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     *              290.61
TENNIS SUPP-CRACK FLX/RPR

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     *               11.59
AMAZON-3 BASKETBALL NETS

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     *               92.15
TURNER ACE-CLEAN/BAIT/BUN

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47500                                     *            1,253.00
WYCHOFF-RPLC FLTR/CLN DRN

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47300                                     *            5,000.00
M&G LIGHT-XMAS DOWNPAYMNT

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     *               24.14
TRNER ACE-MISC HRDWR/WEE

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               15.56
PUBLIX-4 BAGS OF ICE

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE   6
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               13.59
AMAZON-35 PCK OF WHISTLES

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *                7.00
DOLLAR TREE-BSKT/TISS/MIX

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               77.09
AMAZON-BRD GAMES/CHIPS

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               66.50
SAMS CLB-GATORADE/SP36/FD

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               15.87
AMAZON-FROZEN 2 MOVIE

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               70.92
CVS-WHITE CLW/GFT CD/ACTV

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               23.37
PUBLIX-APPLE/ORANGE JUICE

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               70.63
DUNIN DONUT-DONUT/COFFEE

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-12100                                     V            4,925.37-
MANAGEMENT FEES OCT20

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-12200                                     V            4,200.00-
ONSITE PERSONNEL OCT20

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47200                                     V              243.38-
SAM CLB-HALLOWEEN DRK/SNK

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47500                                     V               27.99-
TURNER ACE-AVILA PASS LVR

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47400                                     V               51.98-
EVERLAST-LEATHER SPEED BG

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47500                                     V               20.98-
AMAZON-WIRE COVER POOL DK

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 330-53800-46501                                     V               23.96
PINCH PENNY-JUG RETURN

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47500                                     V               24.48-
TURNER ACE-CLN OUT 30 SEC

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47500                                     V               33.96-
TURNER ACE-GRD/TIES/TILE

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 330-53800-46501                                     V               62.45-
PINCH PENNY-5SODIUM/5PAP

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-12100                                     V            4,925.37-
MANAGEMENT FEES NOV20

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-12200                                     V            3,360.00-
ONSITE PERSONNEL NOV20

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     V              140.00-
FAST JAXTRIVIA HOST-11/21

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     V              140.00-
FAST JAXTRIVIA HOST-12/05

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     V               72.42-
PUBLIX-INSECT REPEL/ICE

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE   7
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     V               14.26-
TURNER ACE-SPRYPNT/CAULKG

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     V              290.61-
TENNIS SUPP-CRACK FLX/RPR

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     V               11.59-
AMAZON-3 BASKETBALL NETS

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     V               92.15-
TURNER ACE-CLEAN/BAIT/BUN

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47500                                     V            1,253.00-
WYCHOFF-RPLC FLTR/CLN DRN

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47300                                     V            5,000.00-
M&G LIGHT-XMAS DOWNPAYMNT

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     V               24.14-
TRNER ACE-MISC HRDWR/WEE

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     V               15.56-
PUBLIX-4 BAGS OF ICE

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     V               13.59-
AMAZON-35 PCK OF WHISTLES

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     V                7.00-
DOLLAR TREE-BSKT/TISS/MIX

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     V               77.09-
AMAZON-BRD GAMES/CHIPS

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     V               66.50-
SAMS CLB-GATORADE/SP36/FD

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     V               15.87-
AMAZON-FROZEN 2 MOVIE

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     V               70.92-
CVS-WHITE CLW/GFT CD/ACTV

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     V               23.37-
PUBLIX-APPLE/ORANGE JUICE

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     V               70.63-
DUNIN DONUT-DONUT/COFFEE

EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT,LLC                                  .00 003306
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00066 12/16/20 23927    202010 320-53800-47400                                     *            6,273.00

CONSOLES PARTS/SHIP/HANDL
12/16/20 23927A   202012 320-53800-47400                                     *              165.00

RPLC CONSOLES/INST.CABLE
ALWAYS IMPROVING LLC                                            6,438.00 003307

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00001 12/01/20 135      202012 310-51300-34000                                     *            2,416.67

MANAGEMENT FEES DEC20
12/01/20 135      202012 310-51300-35100                                     *              100.00

INFORMATION TECH DEC20
12/01/20 135      202012 310-51300-31300                                     *              416.67

DISSEMINATION FEE DEC20

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE   8
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

12/01/20 135      202012 310-51300-51000                                     *                7.00
OFFICE SUPPLIES

12/01/20 135      202012 310-51300-42000                                     *              110.63
POSTAGE

12/01/20 135      202012 310-51300-42500                                     *              151.05
COPIES

12/01/20 135      202012 310-51300-41000                                     *               45.03
TELEPHONE

GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                3,247.05 003308
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00025 12/04/20 23461323 202011 320-53800-34500                                     *            3,627.80

SECURITY SERVICES NOV20
GIDDENS SECURITY CORPORATION                                    3,627.80 003309

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00002 11/30/20 119002   202010 310-51300-31500                                     *            1,225.00

SEC.CAM AGR/BD MTG/LNDOWN
11/30/20 119004   202010 310-51300-31500                                     *            3,158.25

BNDRY PET/CONFR PET/FILE
HOPPING GREEN & SAMS                                            4,383.25 003310

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00014 11/01/20 22009    202011 320-53800-46200                                     *           20,975.00

LANDSCAPE COMMON AREA NOV
11/01/20 22009    202011 330-53800-46200                                     *            2,180.42

LANDSCAPE AMMENTY CTR NOV
11/01/20 22009    202011 320-53800-46200                                     *              487.50

LANDSCAPE RIGHT-OF-WAY
12/01/20 22027    202012 320-53800-46200                                     *           20,975.00

LNDSCPE-COMMON AREA-DEC20
12/01/20 22027    202012 330-53800-46200                                     *            2,180.42

LNDSCPE-AMENITIES-DEC20
12/01/20 22027    202012 320-53800-46200                                     *              487.50

LNDSCPE-RGHT OF WAY-DEC20
12/14/20 22038    202012 320-53800-46300                                     *            2,516.00

PUMP1-4 IRG-NOZ/FIT/BUBLR
NORTH FLORIDA LANDSCAPE CO.                                    49,801.84 003311

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00068 12/14/20 IN-14944 202012 330-53800-34600                                     *            1,095.82

UPGRADE/FIX/RPLC CAMERAS
PRO-VIGIL, INC.                                                 1,095.82 003312

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00028 12/01/20 102      202012 320-53800-46700                                     *            1,145.00

JANITORIAL SERVICES DEC20
12/11/20 104      202011 320-53800-46900                                     *              444.06

GYM WIPES/TOWEL/TP/SANITZ
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC.                              1,589.06 003313

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE   9
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

12/23/20 00004 11/16/20 3320641- 202011 310-51300-48000                                     *            4,631.20
ASMT IMPOSE/ADOPT/BRD MTG

CA FLORIDA HOLDINGS, LLC                                        4,631.20 003314
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00039 12/01/20 4329B    202012 320-53800-46400                                     *            1,675.00

MTHLY LAKE SERVICES DEC20
SITEX AQUATICS LLC                                              1,675.00 003315

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00128 12/21/20 27413    202012 330-53800-46501                                     *              350.00

12/19/20 POOL INSPECTION
VAK PAK, INC.                                                     350.00 003316

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00022 8/28/20 195291   202012 300-13100-10100                                     *            5,606.86

PHASE9 CNSTRCT DOC(WA#37)
10/09/20 195607   202012 300-13100-10100                                     *            8,223.76

TRAILMARK PPHASE 9B REVIS
10/12/20 195705   202012 300-13100-10100                                     *              945.75

DOC/RFP PH9A/9B/9C(WA#45)
10/29/20 195873   202012 300-13100-10100                                     *           21,237.17

TRAILMRK PHASE 9B PLN PRP
10/29/20 195877   202012 300-13100-10100                                     *            5,412.14

PHASE9 CNSTRCT DOC(WA#37)
ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC                                    41,425.68 003317

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 99999 12/23/20 VOID     202012 000-00000-00000                                     C                 .00

VOID CHECK
******INVALID VENDOR NUMBER******                                  .00 003318

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 99999 12/23/20 VOID     202012 000-00000-00000                                     C                 .00

VOID CHECK
******INVALID VENDOR NUMBER******                                  .00 003319

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
12/23/20 00033 10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-12100                                     *            4,925.37

MANAGEMENT FEES OCT20
10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-12200                                     *            4,200.00

ONSITE PERSONNEL OCT20
10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47200                                     *              243.38

SAM CLB-HALLOWEEN DRK/SNK
10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47500                                     *               27.99

TURNER ACE-AVILA PASS LVR
10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47400                                     *               51.98

EVERLAST-LEATHER SPEED BG
10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47500                                     *               20.98

AMAZON-WIRE COVER POOL DK
10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 330-53800-46501                                     *               23.96-

PINCH PENNY-JUG RETURN

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE  10
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47500                                     *               24.48
TURNER ACE-CLN OUT 30 SEC

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 320-53800-47500                                     *               33.96
TURNER ACE-GRD/TIES/TILE

10/30/20 SMCCDD10 202010 330-53800-46501                                     *               62.45
PINCH PENNY-5SODIUM/5PAP

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202010 320-53800-47200                                     *              140.00
FAST JAXTRIVIA HOST 11/21

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202010 320-53800-47200                                     *              140.00
FAST JAXTRIVIA HOST 12/05

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-12100                                     *            4,925.37
MANAGEMENT FEES NOV20

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-12200                                     *            3,360.00
ONSITE PERSONNEL NOV20

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               72.42
PUBLIX-INSECT REPEL/ICE

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     *               14.26
TURNER ACE-SPRYPNT/CAULKG

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     *              290.61
TENNISS SUPP-CRCK FLX/RPR

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     *               11.59
AMAZON-3 BASKETBALL NETS

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     *               92.15
TURNER ACE-CLEAN/BAIT/BUN

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47500                                     *            1,253.00
WAYCOFF-RPLC FLTR/CLN DRN

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-46000                                     *               24.14
TRNER ACE-MISC HRDWR/WEED

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               15.56
PUBLIX-4 BAGS OF ICE

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               13.59
AMAZON-35 PCK OF WHISTLES

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *                7.00
DOLLAR TREE-BSKT/TISS/MIX

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               77.09
AMAZON-BRD GAMES/CHIPS

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               66.50
SAMS CLB-GATERADE/SP36/FD

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               15.87
AMAZON-FROZEN 2 MOVIE

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               70.92
CVS-WHITE CLW/GFT CD/ACTV

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               23.37
PUBLIX-APPLE/ORANGE JUICE

11/30/20 SMCCDD11 202011 320-53800-47200                                     *               70.63
DUNKIN DONUT-DONUTS/COFFE

EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT,LLC                            20,250.70 003320
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE  11
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

12/23/20 00132 11/11/20 TE39483  202012 300-13100-10100                                     *              800.00
TASK9 CNSRVE EASE CRD PH9

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC.                                      800.00 003321
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00027 12/19/20 15632743 202101 330-53800-41000                                     *              112.41

PHONE/INTERNET SRVC-JAN21
12/21/20 25729549 202101 330-53800-41000                                     *              124.52

PHONE/INTERNET SRVC-JAN21
12/28/20 29256599 202101 330-53800-41000                                     *               26.04

PHONE/INTERNET SRVC-JAN21
AT&T                                                              262.97 003322

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00118 1/01/21 12031260 202101 330-53800-46600                                     *              220.00

MTHLY LAWN TREATMENT-JAN
BUG OUT SERVICE, LLC                                              220.00 003323

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00138 1/04/21 CM010421 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00

SECURITY SERVS - 01/03/21
CHRISTOPHER MOBLEY                                                200.00 003324

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00141 12/31/20 DEC-255  202012 330-53800-46501                                     *               21.52

INST.32FT STNNR TUBE CHLR
12/31/20 DEC-255  202012 330-53800-46500                                     *            1,375.00

MTHLY POOL SERVICE DEC20
CROWN POOL CLEANING, INC                                        1,396.52 003325

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00042 12/28/20 12282020 202012 310-51300-42000                                     *              178.41

2020 POSTAGE REIMB.
DENNIS W. HOLLINGSWORTH, CFC                                      178.41 003326

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 99999 1/08/21 VOID     202101 000-00000-00000                                     C                 .00

VOID CHECK
******INVALID VENDOR NUMBER******                                  .00 003327

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00033 12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-12100                                     *            4,925.37

MANAGEMENT FEES DEC20
12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-12200                                     *            3,360.00

ONSITE PERSONNEL DEC20
12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202011 320-53800-46100                                     *              295.00

QUICK CATCH-RMV DEAD DOG
12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47200                                     *               63.51

HOLIDAY INN-SANTAS ROOM
12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47200                                     *               53.14

CVS-CANDY CANE SANTA PICS
12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47200                                     *              515.00

TONY ADAM ENTERTAIN-SANTA

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE  12
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47200                                     *               15.98
FEEDIN TIME-SANTA HAY BAL

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47200                                     *              111.79
AMAZON-ORNAMENT/FACE PRZE

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47200                                     *                6.99
AMAZON-STAR GAZE BALLOONS

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47200                                     *               96.32
TURNER ACE-BATTERY/BUNGEE

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-46100                                     *              123.31
AMAZON-PORTABLE PWR STATN

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-46100                                     *               39.52
HOME DEPOT-TIMR/TESTER/CD

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-46100                                     *               53.93
TURNER ACE-BATTERY/LATCH

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47200                                     *               19.45
PUBLIX-20 POUNDS OF ICE

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47200                                     *               24.19
PUBLIX-KAHULA/RUM/BAILEY

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47200                                     *              113.65
PUBLIX-ALCOHOL AND SNACKS

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47500                                     *                5.00
FIRST COAST HOME-SVC CHRG

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47500                                     *            1,356.00
FIRST COAST HOME-HARDWARE

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-51000                                     *                2.97
TURNER ACE-USPS MAIL KEY

12/30/20 SMCCDD12 202012 320-53800-47500                                     *               41.55
TURNER ACE-MTL/TAPE/KNIFE

EVERGREEN LIFESTYLES MANAGEMENT,LLC                            11,222.67 003328
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00005 1/04/21 35324-12 202012 320-53800-43000                                     *               44.86

596 TRAILMARK DR #PUMP
1/04/21 52068-78 202012 330-53800-43000                                     *               85.05

801 TRAILMARK DR #AMENITY
1/04/21 62363-50 202012 320-53800-43000                                     *            2,825.04

000 PACETTI RD
1/04/21 65107-18 202012 320-53800-43000                                     *               15.04

975 TRAILMARK DR #IRR
1/04/21 68881-76 202012 320-53800-43000                                     *              124.69

990 TRAILMARK DR #PUMP
1/04/21 88213-81 202012 320-53800-43000                                     *               19.02

1922 TRAILMARK DR #LS
1/04/21 96815-95 202012 320-53800-43000                                     *               33.77

2799 PACETTI RD #ENTRY
1/04/21 96904-98 202012 330-53800-43000                                     *            1,182.38

805 TRAILMARK DR #AMENITY
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT                                           4,329.85 003329

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE  13
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 1/08/21 00038 12/10/20 392426ES 202011 330-53800-43200                                     *               51.40
GAS CHARGE 10/30-12/02/20

FLORIDA NATURAL GAS                                                51.40 003330
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00001 1/01/21 136      202101 310-51300-34000                                     *            2,416.67

MANAGEMENT FEES JAN21
1/01/21 136      202101 310-51300-35100                                     *              100.00

INFORMATION TECH JAN21
1/01/21 136      202101 310-51300-31300                                     *              416.67

DISSEMINATION FEE JAN21
1/01/21 136      202101 310-51300-51000                                     *               19.44

OFFICE SUPPLIES
1/01/21 136      202101 310-51300-42000                                     *               40.66

POSTAGE
1/01/21 136      202101 310-51300-42500                                     *              253.05

COPIES
1/01/21 136      202101 310-51300-41000                                     *               18.57

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                3,265.06 003331

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00025 1/04/21 23461505 202012 320-53800-34500                                     *            3,760.76

SECURITY SERVICES DEC20
GIDDENS SECURITY CORPORATION                                    3,760.76 003332

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00014 1/04/21 22052    202101 320-53800-46300                                     *            1,194.45

IRG-4PRS/4-I20 12"/2-I20
1/04/21 22054    202101 320-53800-46600                                     *              950.00

RMV 9 TREES/2 PINE/CLEAN
1/05/21 22055    202101 320-53800-46300                                     *            1,995.95

IRG-10PRS/11 I-20/21 NOZZ
NORTH FLORIDA LANDSCAPE CO.                                     4,140.40 003333

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00028 1/01/21 105      202101 320-53800-46700                                     *            1,145.00

JANITORIAL SERVICES-JAN21
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC.                              1,145.00 003334

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00137 1/04/21 RN010421 202012 320-53800-34500                                     *              320.00

SECURITY SRVC - 12/28/20
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             320.00 003335

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00024 12/19/20 556887-1 202012 330-53800-43100                                     *            4,801.33

805 TRAILMARK DR DEC20
12/19/20 556887-1 202012 330-53800-43100                                     *               32.81

295 BACK CREEK DR DEC20
ST.JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT.                                   4,834.14 003336

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE  14
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 1/08/21 00039 1/01/21 4433B    202101 320-53800-46400                                     *            1,675.00
MTHLY LAKE SERVICES JAN21

SITEX AQUATICS LLC                                              1,675.00 003337
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/08/21 00084 1/01/21 20-36452 202101 320-53800-34600                                     *               34.95

MTHLY FIRE ALARM MNTR JAN
SECURITY ENGINEERING AND DESIGN,INC                                34.95 003338

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/15/21 00040 12/31/20 PW95514  202101 330-53800-43300                                     *              192.85

TRASH REMOVAL 01/01-01/31
ADVANCED DISPOSAL                                                 192.85 003339

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/15/21 00087 11/24/20 20121    202011 320-53800-47500                                     *              413.27

RPLC LOW VOLT TRDMILL SEN
DIAMOND ELECTRICAL CONTRACTORS,INC.                               413.27 003340

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/15/21 00005 1/05/21 93295-44 202012 320-53800-43000                                     *              115.92

404 BLOOMFIELD WAY #PUMP
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT                                             115.92 003341

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/15/21 00002 12/30/20 119567   202011 310-51300-31500                                     *              761.50

AUDIT LTR FY19-20/BD MTG
12/30/20 119569   202011 310-51300-31500                                     *              667.00

FLWAC CRSPND/STAFF STAT
HOPPING GREEN & SAMS                                            1,428.50 003342

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/15/21 00014 1/01/21 22045    202101 320-53800-46200                                     *           20,975.00

LNDSCPE-COMMON AREA-JAN21
1/01/21 22045    202101 330-53800-46200                                     *            2,180.42

LNDSCPE-AMENITIES-JAN21
1/01/21 22045    202101 320-53800-46200                                     *              487.50

LNDSCPE-RGHT OF WAY-JAN21
NORTH FLORIDA LANDSCAPE CO.                                    23,642.92 003343

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/15/21 00068 1/11/21 IN-15274 202101 330-53800-34600                                     *            1,095.82

UPGRADE/FIX CAM & MONITOR
PRO-VIGIL, INC.                                                 1,095.82 003344

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/15/21 00028 1/11/21 106      202012 320-53800-46900                                     *              106.12

PAPER TOWELS/TRASH BAG/TP
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC.                                106.12 003345

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/15/21 00034 1/07/21 21101409 202012 330-53800-43200                                     *              105.75

801 TRAILMARK DR - DEC20
TECO PEOPLES GAS                                                  105.75 003346

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE  15
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 1/22/21 00027 1/08/21 904 940- 202101 330-53800-41000                                     *              193.26
FIRE ALARM LINE0687 JAN21

AT&T                                                              193.26 003347
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/22/21 00139 1/05/21 AE010521 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00

SECURITY SERVS - 01/05/21
1/14/21 AE011421 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00

SECURITY SERVS - 01/14/21
ADAM EMINISOR                                                     400.00 003348

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/22/21 00138 1/22/21 CM012221 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS - 01/17/21
CHRISTOPHER MOBLEY                                                160.00 003349

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/22/21 00038 1/08/21 406492ES 202012 330-53800-43200                                     *               75.20

GAS CHARGE 12/02-01/04/21
FLORIDA NATURAL GAS                                                75.20 003350

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/22/21 00014 12/31/20 22059    202012 320-53800-46600                                     *           10,875.00

ADD.1450 PINE STRAW/SPRD
NORTH FLORIDA LANDSCAPE CO.                                    10,875.00 003351

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/22/21 00104 12/09/20 2-20-287 202012 320-53800-46100                                     *              250.00

FIX STOP COMBO SGN-ARTWRK
ONSIGHT INDUSTRIES LLC DBA                                        250.00 003352

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/22/21 00079 11/16/20 2020-718 202011 300-13100-10100                                     *            1,850.00

PH9-CONST SURVEY CONTROL
11/30/20 2020-671 202010 300-13100-10100                                     *              450.00

TRAILMARK PH9C-MAP&LEGAL
11/30/20 2020-672 202010 300-13100-10100                                     *              450.00

TRAILMRK PH11B-MAP&LEGAL
CLARY & ASSOCIATES, INC.                                        2,750.00 003353

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/22/21 00132 12/17/20 TE54353  202011 300-13100-10100                                     *            1,458.64

PH9-GEN.CONSULT/EASEMENT
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES, INC.                                    1,458.64 003354

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/22/21 00144 11/23/20 6775-9   202011 300-13100-10100                                     *          442,994.47

TRAILMARK E PRCL PH1-NOV.
VALLENCOURT CONSTRUCTION CO., INC.                            442,994.47 003355

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/29/21 00027 1/19/21 15632743 202101 300-15500-10000                                     *              125.24

PHONE/INTERNET SRVC-FEB21
AT&T                                                              125.24 003356

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE  16
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 1/29/21 00139 1/24/21 AE012421 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00
SECURITY SERVS - 01/24/21

1/28/21 AE012821 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *              200.00
SECURITY SERVS - 01/28/21

ADAM EMINISOR                                                     400.00 003357
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/29/21 00138 1/27/21 CM012721 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS - 01/22/21
CHRISTOPHER MOBLEY                                                160.00 003358

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/29/21 00022 1/07/21 196384   202011 310-51300-31100                                     *              348.00

GEN.CONSLT.ENG.SVC(WA#52)
1/07/21 196384A  202012 310-51300-31100                                     *              525.00

GEN.CONSLT.ENG.SVC(WA#52)
ENGLAND-THIMS & MILLER, INC                                       873.00 003359

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/29/21 00092 1/18/21 41750118 202101 320-53800-47500                                     *              100.00

SVC CALL-ANN.MNT.TAG10574
J.GREENE ENTERPRISES INC                                          100.00 003360

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/29/21 00133 1/28/21 58611680 202101 330-53800-46800                                     *              720.00

ANN.TERMITE RENEWAL FY21
MCCALL PEST CONTROL                                               720.00 003361

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/29/21 00137 1/26/21 RN012621 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *              120.00

SECURITY SRVC - 01/22/21
1/26/21 RN012621 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECUIRTY SRVC - 01/23/21
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             280.00 003362

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/29/21 00024 1/19/21 556887-1 202101 330-53800-43100                                     *               32.78

295 BACK CREEK DR JAN21
1/19/21 556887-1 202101 330-53800-43100                                     *            6,731.86

805 TRAILMARK DR JAN21
ST.JOHNS COUNTY UTILITY DEPT.                                   6,764.64 003363

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 1/29/21 00153 1/25/21 SS012521 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS - 01/25/21
SAMUEL DAVID SHEFFIELD II                                         160.00 003364

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/03/21 00098 12/14/20 51202B   202102 310-51300-49100                                     *              500.00

ROOM RENT-02/17/21,SPEAKR
RENAISSANCE WORLD GOLF VILLAGE                                    500.00 003365

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/05/21 00027 1/21/21 25729549 202102 330-53800-41000                                     *              135.79

PHONE/INTERNET SRVC-FEB21
AT&T                                                              135.79 003366

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE  17
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 2/05/21 00118 2/01/21 12032817 202102 330-53800-46600                                     *              220.00
MTHLY LAWN TREATMNT-FEB21

BUG OUT SERVICE, LLC                                              220.00 003367
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/05/21 00138 2/03/21 CM020321 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *              160.00

SECURITY SERVS - 01/31/21
CHRISTOPHER MOBLEY                                                160.00 003368

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/05/21 00005 2/02/21 35324-12 202101 320-53800-43000                                     *               22.52

596 TRAILMARK DR #PUMP
2/02/21 52068-78 202101 330-53800-43000                                     *               47.28

801 TRAILMARK DR #AMENITY
2/02/21 62363-50 202101 320-53800-43000                                     *            2,825.04

000 PACETTI RD
2/02/21 65107-18 202101 320-53800-43000                                     *               12.99

975 TRAILMARK DR #IRR
2/02/21 68881-76 202101 320-53800-43000                                     *               73.69

990 TRAILMARK DR #PUMP
2/02/21 88213-81 202101 320-53800-43000                                     *               18.17

1922 TRAILMARK DR #LS
2/02/21 96815-95 202101 320-53800-43000                                     *               31.11

2799 PACETTI RD #ENTRY
2/02/21 96904-98 202101 330-53800-43000                                     *            1,123.27

805 TRAILMARK DR #AMENITY
FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT                                           4,154.07 003369

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/05/21 00001 2/01/21 137      202102 310-51300-34000                                     *            2,416.67

MANAGEMENT FEES FEB21
2/01/21 137      202102 310-51300-35100                                     *              100.00

INFORMATION TECH FEB21
2/01/21 137      202102 310-51300-31300                                     *              416.67

DISSEMINATION FEE FEB21
2/01/21 137      202102 310-51300-51000                                     *                5.98

OFFICE SUPPLIES
2/01/21 137      202102 310-51300-42000                                     *              103.15

POSTAGE
2/01/21 137      202102 310-51300-42500                                     *                 .30

COPIES
2/01/21 137      202102 310-51300-41000                                     *               48.08

TELEPHONE
GOVERNMENTAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES                                3,090.85 003370

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/05/21 00025 2/02/21 23461653 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *            1,443.56

SECURITY SERVICES JAN21
GIDDENS SECURITY CORPORATION                                    1,443.56 003371

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



AP300R                                YEAR-TO-DATE ACCOUNTS PAYABLE PREPAID/COMPUTER CHECK REGISTER   RUN  2/10/21          PAGE  18
*** CHECK DATES 12/02/2020 - 02/10/2021 ***       GENERAL FUND

BANK A GENERAL FUND

  CHECK  VEND#  .....INVOICE..... ...EXPENSED TO...              VENDOR NAME             STATUS             AMOUNT    ....CHECK.....
   DATE           DATE   INVOICE   YRMO  DPT ACCT# SUB  SUBCLASS                                                      AMOUNT     #

 2/05/21 00014 2/01/21 22069    202102 320-53800-46200                                     *           20,975.00
LNDSCPE-COMMON AREA-FEB21

2/01/21 22069    202102 330-53800-46200                                     *            2,180.42
LNDSCPE-AMENITIES-FEB21

2/01/21 22069    202102 320-53800-46200                                     *              487.50
LNDSCPE-RGHT OF WAY-FEB21

NORTH FLORIDA LANDSCAPE CO.                                    23,642.92 003372
- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/05/21 00028 2/01/21 107      202102 320-53800-46700                                     *            1,145.00

JANITORIAL SERVICES-FEB21
RIVERSIDE MANAGEMENT SERVICES,INC.                              1,145.00 003373

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/05/21 00137 2/03/21 RN020321 202101 320-53800-34500                                     *               60.00

SECURITY SRVC - 01/30/21
2/03/21 RN020321 202102 320-53800-34500                                     *              220.00

SECURITY SRVC - 02/02/21
ROBERT MICHAEL NELSON                                             280.00 003374

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/05/21 00039 2/01/21 4541B    202102 320-53800-46400                                     *            1,675.00

MTHLY LAKE SERVICES-FEB21
SITEX AQUATICS LLC                                              1,675.00 003375

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/05/21 00084 2/01/21 21-36824 202102 320-53800-34600                                     *               34.95

MTHLY FIRE ALARM MNTR FEB
SECURITY ENGINEERING AND DESIGN,INC                                34.95 003376

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
 2/05/21 00021 1/25/21 6012150  202101 310-51300-32300                                     *            4,310.00

TRUSTEE FEES-SER.2017A&B
US BANK                                                         4,310.00 003377

- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FOR BANK A                749,180.50

TOTAL FOR REGISTER              749,180.50

SIXM SIX MILE CREEK TVISCARRA 



Account 51202

INVOICE

Name Date 12/2/2020
Event
Attn
Address 475 W Town Place Suite 114
City St Augustine
Zip

Qty Charged
Catering

1 $���.00
��$�����

SUB-TOTAL $187.50

Direct Bill Amount Due $187.50
  Check

  Credit Card

Name
CC #

Expires

Six Mille Creek

32092

Description

 Speaker Phone
25% Service Charge

Sarah Sweeting

CDD Meeting

MC 3791

500 S Legacy Trail
St Augustine, FL  32092
(904) 940-8604 fax (904) 940-8008

INVOICE

Payment Details

Customer






























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































	Board Letter
	Agenda
	III.	Approval of Minutes of the December 9, 2020 Meeting
	IV. A.	Consideration of Supplemental Assessment Resolution 2021-07
	1.	Engineer’s Report Dated January 19, 2021
	2.	2021 Assessment Report Dated February 10, 2021
	V. A.	Consideration of Phase 9 Construction Proposals
	VI.	Ratification of Agreement with Carlton Construction, Inc. for Amenity Center and Hardscape and Landscape Features
		VIII.	Ratification of Environmental Services, Inc. Contract Change Order
	IX.	Consideration of Sign Proposal with Signtalk Graphix
	X.	Ratification of Agreement with ECS Florida, LLC for Geotechnical Engineering Services
	XI.	Consideration of Dog Park Policies
	XIV. A. Attorney - E-Verify Memo and Memorandum of Understanding
	B.	Engineer Items
	D.	Operations / Amenity Manager Items
	XVI. A.	Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2020 and Statement of Revenues and Expenses for the Period Ending December 31, 2020
	B.	Assessment Receipt Schedule
	C.	Check Register

	NlLWNoYWlzZS1sb3VuZ2Utc2xpbmcA: 
	form9: 
	q: Search
	button3: 

	form1: 
	properties[Sling Fabric]: Off
	quantity: 1
	add: 




